
SELECTMEN'S MEETING AGENDA* 
Donn B. Griffin Room, Town Hall 

732 Main Street, Harwich, MA 
Regular Meeting 6:30 P.M 
Monday, March 11, 2019 

*As required by Open Meeting Law, you are hereby informed that the Town will he video and audio taping as well as live broadcasting 
this public meeting. In addition, anyone in the audience who plans to video or audio tape this meeting must notify the Chairman prior 
to the start of the meeting. 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
III. WEEKLY BRIEFING  
IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 

V. CONSENT AGENDA  
A. 	Approve Renewal of Auto Class IV License for All Out Performance 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS/PRESENTATIONS  (Not earlier than 6:30 P.M) 
A. 	Public Hearing — Application for a Seasonal, Common Victualler, All Alcoholic Beverages 

License by Capeside Kitchen Inc. d/b/a Capeside Kitchen, 537 Route 28, Harwich Port —
Glen Jamieson, Manager. 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Request for attention to town roads — Robert Fratus 

1. Hawksnest Road — T-Base for Hawksnest Road/Expenses 
2. Round Cove Road — Paving 
3. Raptor Road — waive the in-lieu-of-sidewalk fee 

B. Golf Cart Lease for Cranberry Valley Golf Course 

VIII. CONTRACTS 

IX. OLD BUSINESS  
A. Approval of the Annual Town Meeting Warrant Articles — vote to sign 

X. WARRANT ARTICLES — REVIEW RECOMMENDATIONS 

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION FUND ARTICLES  
■ Appropriate Sums of Money From The FY 20 Estimated Annual Revenues of The Community 

Preservation Act Fund 
■ Fund Land Bank Debt Service 
■ Community Preservation Activities Under $50,000 
■ Brooks Academy Museum 
■ Harwich Affordable Housing Trust 
■ Sand Pond Restroom Project 
■ Whitehouse Field Improvement Project 
■ Red River Beach Shoreline Stabilization Project 



LAND MATTERS  
■ Approve Easement for Verizon and Eversource Energy at 1464 Orleans-Harwich Road (Rte. 39) 

for Fire Station 2 
■ Affordable Housing Trust Fund — List of Town Properties to Designate as Affordable 

REVOLVING/STABILIZATION/OPEB FUNDS  
■ Amend the Code of the Town of Harwich General By-Laws — Chapter 8 Departmental 

Revolving Funds §8-1. Funds Established 
■ Rescind the Establishment of the Capital Infrastructure Revitalization Fund at Cranberry Valley 

Golf Course 
■ Rescind the Authorization for the Golf Restaurant Lease 53D Revolving Account and Transfer 

the Balance into the Pro Shop Revolving Account 
■ Departmental Revolving Funds Authorization 
M 	Stabilization Fund 
■ OPEB Trust Fund 
■ Fund Prior Year's Unpaid Bills 

CUSTOMARY ARTICLES 
■ Herring Fisheries 

XI. 	TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORTS 
A. Budget Adjustments 	 
B. Departmental Reports 

X11. SELECTMEN'S REPORT  
A. Status of the Harwich Landfill Solar Panel Operation - discussion 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 

*Per the Attorney General's Office: The Board of Selectmen may hold an open session for topics not reasonably anticipated by the 
Chair 48 hours in advance oldie meeting following "New Business." If you are deaf or hard of hearing or a person with a disability 
who requires an accommodation contact the Selectmen's Office at 508-430-7513. 

Authorized Posting Officer: 	 Posted by: 	  
Town Clerk 

Sandra Robinson, Admin. Secretary Date: 	March 7, 2019 

  



!Ur 

OFFICE. OFIFIE SELECTMEN 
732 MAIN ST., HARWICH, MA 02645 

www.hEowich-ma.gov  
(508) 430-7513 

LICENSE FOR: 

     

CLASS I - AGENTS OR SELLERS 
CLASS II - USED CAR DEALERS 

      

   

	CLASS III — JUNK CAR DEALERS 
X 	CLASS IV — AUTO REPAIRMAN 

   

       

NEW APPLICATION 	X RENEWAL 	 FEE: $100 each 

BUSINESS NAME 	i%7serA1  D. Lang  

D/B/A  All Out Performance 	PHONE 	508-737-5028  

BUSINESS ADDRESS  136 Factory Road_,_HarvVich,MA 02645 

MAILING ADDRESS 	P.O. Box 641. Harwich Port, MA 02646 

NAME OF OWNER 	Joseph D. Lang  

EMAIL ADDRESSe-0_\.(,LIS:e.)-A-t-se,)  a  COM,  

IF CORPORATION OR PARTNERSHIP, LIST OFFICER INFORMATION BELOW. 
Name 	 Title 	 Address 

   

021-74-4545 
licarrt & title 

  

Pursuant to MGL Ch. 62c, Sec. 49A, 1 certiiy under the penalties of perjury that to the best of my knowledge 
and belief I have filed all state tax returns and paid all state taxes required by law. 

By 
Signature of individual or corporate name 	Corporate officer (if applicable) 

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE FORM 
The premises to be licensed as. described herein have been inspected & found to be in compliance with 
applicable local codes & regulations including zoning ordinances, health regulations, building & fire codes. 

Building Commissioner Board of Health 	 Fire Department 

Required signatures to be obtained by the app:icent prior to submission of new applications. 



Business Type (required): 
3. 0 Retail 

4. D Restaurant/Bar/Eating Establishment 

5. D Office and/or Sales (incl. real estate, auto, etc.) 

6. D Non-profit 

7. ❑ Entertainment 

10.0 Manufacturing 

11.E-1 Health 
Pelee. 

12.0 Other 	  

Si ature:(  

P 

Date: /0--/ (7 —/  
•7 el- 	? :7515 

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
Department of Industrird Accidents 

Office of Investigations 
600 Washington Street 

Boston, /IV 02111 
www.mass.govhlia 

Workers' Compensation Insurance Affidavit: General Businesses 
Applicant Information  

Business/Organization Name: 

Address:  3 6, 1-6c,  

Please Print Legibly 

 

6,  I I 0 u -V  

 

 

City/State/Zip: Cie Phone #:  7 7 Li -1/07 I- 7 21-8 

  

Are you an employer? Check the appropriate box: 

1. 0 I am a employer with 	employees (full and/ 
or part-time).* 

2.11- I am a sole proprietor or partnership and have no 
employees working for me in any capacity. 
[No workers' comp. insurance required] 

3. D We are a corporation and its officers have exercised 
their right of exemption per c. 152, §1(4), and we have 
no employees. [No workers' comp. insurance required]* 

4. We are a non-profit organization, staffed by volunteers, 
with no employees. [No workers' comp. Insurance req.] 

*Any applicant that checks box #1 must also fill out the section below showing their workers' compensation policy information. 
**Mlle corporate officers have exempted themselves, but the corporation has other employees, a workers' compensation policy is required and such an 
organization should check box #1. 

I am an employer that is providing workers' compensation insurance for my employees. Below is the policy information. 

Insurance Company Name: 	  

Insurer's Address: 	  

City/State/Zip: 	  

Policy # or Self-ins. Lie. # 	 Expiration Date: 	  

Attach a copy of the workers' compensation policy declaration page (showing the policy number and expiration date). 

Failure to secure coverage as required under Section 25A of MOL c, 152 can lead to the imposition of criminal penalties of a 
fine up to $1,500.00 and/or one-year imprisonment, as well as civil penalties in the form of a STOP WORK ORDER and a fine 
of up to $250.00 a day against the violator. Be advised that a copy of this statement may be forwarded to the Office of 
Investigations of the DIA for insurance coverage verification. 

I do hereby ceertifj),und theppins 	penalties ofperfury that the information provided above is true and correct. 

Official use only. Do not write in this area, to be completed by city or town official. 

City or Town: 	 Permit/License it 	  

Issuing Authority (circle one): 
1. Board of Health 2. Building Department 3. City/Town Clerk 4. Licensing Board S. Selectmen's Office 
6. Other 

Contact Person: Phone 

www.mass.govidia 



friarCh /1, 	ct` 
(1,7e,00let_ 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
TOWN OF HARWICH 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
APPLICATION FOR LIQUOR LICENSE 

Notice is hereby Given under Chapter 138 of the General Laws as amended that application has 
been made to this Board for a Seasonal, Common Victualler, All Alcoholic Beverages 1.,icense 
by Capeside Kitchen Inc, dibla Capeside Kitchen, 537 Route 28, Harwich Port, MA 02646, Glen 
Jamieson, Manager on the. following described premises located at 537 Route 28, Harwich Port, 
MA: First floor occupant consisting of 2 rooms, totaling 96 seats, Total square footage of 
dining rooms is 1,500 square feet with additional 1,000 square feet for 
kitehenibathroomlhall way. Two entrances and 4 exits. 

The Board of Selectmen will hold a hearing upon the application on Monday, March 11, 2019 no 
earlier tho 6:30 p.m. in the Donn B. Griffin Room at Town Hall, 732 Main Street, Harwich, at 
which time all interested parties will be heard. 

Board of Selectmen .. 
Local Licensing Authority 

Cape Cod Times 
February 27.2019 

Cape Cod Chronicle 
February 28, 2019 



Christopher Clark 
Town Administrator 

FROM: 	David J. Guillemette 
Chief of Police 

HARWICHPolice 
DEPARTMENT 

183 Sisson Roads Harwich, MA 02645 

Tel 508-430-7541 	Fax 508-432-2530 

 

DAVID J. GUILLEMETTE 
Chief of Police 

THOMAS A. GAGNON 
Deputy Chief 

Memorandum 

TO: 	Board of Selectmen 

DATE: 	March 6, 2019 

SUBJECT: 	Application for a seasonal All Alcoholic Beverages for Capeside 
Kitchen Inc. dba Capeside Kitchen at S37 Route 28 Harwich Port MA 
02646, Matt Rosadinl - Manager 

The Police Department has no objections regarding the Application for a 
seasonal All Alcoholic Beverage License for Capeside Kitchen. A background 
investigation of the proposed individual(s) indicates no disqualifying history. 

If you have any questions or need further clarification, please feel free to 
contact me at your earliest convenience. 



TOWN OF HARWICH, MA 
BOARD OF ASSESSORS 

732 Math Street, Harwich, MA 02645 

1;1,4 t1 ars 
/41/55V 	 4 ROUT 

27, ROUTE,* ikoutri.2 

14A.J9.1I0 
43 SEA ST 

ILGR 	EA ST 

Ml `ling Stri3~l Mali Coy 	CE2ipCx8Countly  

HARWICH PORT 	MA 02340 

PO BOX 121157 

527 MAIN ST 
	

HARWICH PORT 	MA 02646 

BOSTON 	 MA 02/12-1157 

641 ROUTE 28 uNIT 4 HARWICH PORT 	MA ^ 02846 

PO BOX 628 	 MONUMENT BEACH 	MA 07553 
30 GAF FIELD AVE 

141 WEBSTER ST 	 W NEWTON 	 MA 318136 

Abutters List Within 500 feet of Parcel 14/U5-1/0 

14 00 
6 R 	TE 

TegY 
5381 ROUT 

Kay Parcel ID 	 LncaSI0f1 

1887 

10558 

14-N1-6-0-R 

14-e5-n-E 

CAPE COD Mr-CENTS SAVINGS BA 

PILGRIM CONGREGATION 

537 ROUTE 28 

527 ROUTE 28 

1930 14-T8-0.R OC - 	 - EANSIDE PROPERTY INVESTMENTS 640 ROUTE 26 

6606 14.T0 	R csALLAGHER MARTIN 1.8 538 ROUTE 28 
GALLACIIER MAURA C 

1031 14-110-044 CAPE COD BANK ANO TRUST CON/PAN 536 ROM 28 

2062 14413•04I KANE MARTIN F S ET ALS 42 SEA ST 
MIDDLETON MARGARET E 

2063 HEAD DAVID C & 40 SEA ST 
HEAD FRANCES K 

6006 14..U5-1-0-R YORK I-0 TR I 537 ROUTE 20 
ROUTE 28 NOMINEE REALTY TRUST 

2045 14-U64E 541-543 MAIN STREET 641 ROUTE 28 
CONDOMINIUMS TRUST 

21488. 14U8-A-1-R 541 MAN STREET LLC 511-1 ROUTE 28 

23987 14-U8-A-2-R 541 MAIN STREET MX 541-2 ROUTE 28 

231188 14-U641-3-R $41 MAIN STREET LW 5414 ROUTE 28 

23906 14,1,16-8-4-9. 531 MAIN STRiii: LLC 641-4 ROUTE Vi 

24727 1444-4-0.R VRANOS WILLIAM & 43 SEA ST 
VRANOS KATHLEEN 

2065 14-U11-0-R 41 P1I.G1TINI ROAD LLO 41 PILGRIM RO 

PO BOX 327 	 HARWICH PORT 	MA 02696 

010 TO BANK GROUP 	 LONDON ONTARIO 	NBA 464 
380 WELLINGTON ST 42TH FL 

11 LEDYARD ST 	 WELLE8LEY 	MA 02131 

PO BOX 267 	 HARWICH PORT 	MA 02540 

Me ADAM  S ST 	 QUINCY 	 MA 07189 

C/0 BRAX INC 	 HARWICH 	 MA 02545 
51 OAK ST  
541 ROUTE 28 UNIT 1 	 HARWICH PORT 	MA 02046 

541 ROUTE 28 iiNiT 2 	 HARWICH PORT 	MA 02646 

541 ROUTE 28 UNIT 3 	 HARWICH FORT 

532 MAIN ST 

7121/2019 	Pap 



The C'ornmonwealth of Massachusetts 
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission 
239 Causeway Street Boston, MA 02114 

)17ww. mass•JOal.bcv  

APPLICATION FOR A NEW LICENSE 

vtunkpairt" y iHarwich  

 

    

1. LICENSE CLASSIFICATION INFORMATION 
QN ip, 	 TY 1 	 SATEGORY _..PREMISE , _CLASS 
On-Premises-t2 §12 Restaurant Ali Alcohol le Beverages seasonal 

Please provide a narrative 
the intended theme or 

overview of the transaction(s) being applied for. On-premises applicants should also provide a description of 
concept of the business operation. Attach additional pages, if necessary, 

:rea-as 	un 	resauran oo ing o provi.e : -er 'T me V IX - • IP nn s or a Our customers vial a Seasonai License. 

is this license application pursuant to special legislation? 	C 	Yes 	ti- 	No 	Chapter Acts of 

2. BUSINESS ENTITY INFORMATION 
The entity that will be issued the license and have operational control of the premises. 

Entity Name rapeside Kitchen lnc FEIN 82-5315503 

OBA 	papeside Kitchen 	 I 	Manager of Record Matt Rosadini 

Street Address 537 Route 28 Harwich Port MA 02646 

Phone 508-430-5150 Email capesideharwichport@gmail.com  

Alternative Phone Website h ps://www.capesidekitchen.com  

3. DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES 
Please provide a complete 
outdoor areas to be included 

description of the premises to be licensed, including the number of floors, number of rooms on each floor, any 
in the licensed area, and total square footage. You must also submit a floor plan. 

0 	i • . 

additional 1000 sq 
sting of groan 	• li '• 	 . 	i 	et .47- • 	• "i - 	 It 	' ' 	1 	' 

ft for kitchenibathroom/hallway, 

Total Square Footage: 2500 Number of Entrances: 2 Seating Capacity: 80 

Number of Floors 1  Number of Exits: Occupancy Number: 135 

4. APPLICATION CONTACT 
The application contact is the person whom the licensing authorities should contact regarding this application. 

     

     

Name: Matthew Rosadini Phone: 7.11T414M 

 

  

Title: Email: Treasurer capesideharwichport@gmail.cam 



Title and or Position 	 Percentage of Ownership Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen 

C Yes C No C Yes C No 
Name of Principal 	 Residential Address SSW 

Title and or Position 	 Percentage of Ownership Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen 

C Yes C No C Yes C No 

Additional pages attached? 1 C Yes 	No 

MA Resident 

r Yes C No 
DOB 

MA Resident 

C Yes 	No 

MA Resident 

Yes C No 

DOB 

MA Resident 

C Yes (` No 

APPLICATION FOR A NEW LICENSE 

CORPORATE STRUCTURE 

orporation 04-25-2018 Entity Legal Structure Date of Incorporation 

State of Incorporation iMassachusetts 
	

Is the Corporation publicly traded? C Yes 	(4 No 

6. PROPOSED  OFFICERS, STOCK OR OWNERSHIP INTEREST 
List ail individuals or entities that will have a direct or Indirect, beneficial or financial Interest in this license (Eg, Stockholders, Officers, 
Directors, LLC Managers, LLP Partners, Trustees etc.). Attach additional page(s) provided, if necessary, utilizing Addendum A. 

• The Individuals and titles listed in this section must be identical to those filed with the Massachusetts Secretary of State. 

• The Individuals identified in this section, as well as the proposed Manager of Record, must complete a CORI Release Form. 

• Please note the following statutory requirements for Directors and LLC Managers: 
On Premises (E.g.Resteurant/ Club/Hotel) Directors or LLC Managers - At least 50% must be US citizens; 
Off Pretnises(Liquor Store) Directors or LLC Managers - All must be US citizens and a majority must be 
Massachusetts residents. 

• If you are a Multi-Tiered Organization, please attach a flow chart identifying each corporate interest and the individual owners of 
each entity as well as the Articles of Organization for each corporate entity. Every individual must be identified in Addendum A. 

Name of Principal 	 Residential Address 	 SSN 	 DOB 

'Matthew Rosadini 5 Collins Road Berlin, MA 01503 100101/ 

Title and or Position 	 Percentage of Ownership Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen 	MA Resident 
'Treasurer/Secretary/Director 50 

(.` Yes 	a No (` Yes 	(— No (Yes C No 

Name of Principal 	 Residential Address SSN 	 DOB 

[Glen Jamieson 874 Queen Anne Road Harwich MA 0245 og;:•13i,c5 	104 

Title and or Position 

Title and or Position 

Name of Principal 

IF 

Percentage of Ownership Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen 

50 

i  

(—* Yes 	a No a Yes C No 

Residential Address SSN 

Percenta e of Ownershi Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen 

C Yes 	No (..` Yes 	C No 

Residential Address SN 

Name of Principal 

President/Director 

CP,VINAL HISTO Y  
Has any individual listed in question 6, and applicable attachments, ever been convicted of a 
State, Federal or Military Crime? if yes, attach an affidavit providing the details of any and all convictions. 

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT  
Are you request ng approval to utilize a management company through a management agreement? 
Please provide a copy of the management agreement 

C` Yes a- o 

  

Yes No 

 

2 

   



SSN Name of Principal 

Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen 

C Yes f' No 
	

Lc Yes 	No 

Residential Address 
	

SSN 

DOB  

MA Resident 

C Yes C No 

DOB 

Residential Address 

Title and or Position 	Percentage of Qwnershii  

Name of Principal 

Percentage of Ownership Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen 

i 
L C Yes C No C Yes (- No 

Residential Address SSN 

Title and or Position  

Name of Principal 

MA Resident 

C Yes C' No 

DOB 

Percentage of Ownership Director/ Lt.( Manager US Citizen 

r Yes 	No C.-  yes 	C No 

ResidentialAddress SSN 

Percentage of Ownership Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen 

(`Yes 	'No (- Yes 	No 

Resicfen la Address S N 

Title and or Position 

Name of Principal 

:Title and or Position 

Name of Principal 

Title and or Position 

Name of Principal 	 Residential Addres 	 SSN 

Title and or Position 	 Percentage of Ownership Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen 

(-Yes 	(- No ('Yes 	r No 

Name of Principal 	 Residential Address SSN 

le and or Position Percentage of Ownership Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen 

C Yes 	(-`No Yes 	(- No 

CRIMINAL HISTORY 

Has any individual identified above ever been convicted of a State, Federal or Military Crime? 
if yes, attach an affidavit providing the details of any and all convictions. 

MA Resident 

r Yes (- No 

DOB 

MA Residen 

Yes (- No 

DOB 

MA Resident 

(- Yes C No 

(- Yes (- No 

Percentage of Ownershi Director/ LLC Manager US Citizen 

I 	

1 

C Yes (- No (-Yes e No 

MA Resident 

(- Yes (-No 

DOB 

MA Resident 

(- Yes C No 

DOB 

ADDENDUM A 

5. PROPOSED OFFICERS, STOCK OR OWNERSHIP INTEREST (Continued...)  
List all Individuals or entities that will have a direct or Indirect, beneficial or financial Interest In this license (E.g. Stockholders, Officers, 
Directors, LLC Managers, LIP Partners, Trustees etc.), 

Entity Name Percentage of Ownership in Entity being Licensed 
(Write ''NA" if this is the entity being licensed) 



Date of Action 	 Name of License Reason for suspension, revocation or cancellation City 

Rent per Month Lease Beginning Date 
4094 

Lease Ending Date 	05/01/2023 	 Rent per Year 

Will the Landlord receive revenue based on percentage of alcohol sales? r Yes (ii` No 

. OCCUPANCY OF PREMISES 
lease complete ail fields in this section. Please provide proof of legal occupancy of the premises. 

• irthe applicant entity owns the premises, a deed is required. 
• If leasir or renting the premises, a signed copy of the lease is required. 
• if the lease is contingent on the approval of this license, and a signed lease is not available, a copy of the unsigned lease and a letter 

of intent to lease, signed by the applicant and the landlord, is requited. 
• If the real estate and business are owned by the same individuals listed in question 6, either individually or through separate 

business entities, a signed copy of a lease between the two entities is required. 

Please Indicate by what means the applicant will occupy the premises 

Landlord Name 

Landlord Phone 508-277-3212 

Landlord Address 

York Lo 

Lease 

Landlord Email FPm.mgrat@gmaiLcorn 

05/01 /2018 

49128 

APPLICATION FOR A NEW LICENSE 

6A.ift:EIEST IN AN ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE 

Does any individual or entity Identified in question 6, and applicable attachments, have any direct or indirect, beneficial or financial 
Interest in any other license to sell alcoholic beverages? Yes 

E  No El 	If yes, list in table below. Attach additional pages, if 
necessary, utilizing the table format below. 

Name 
	

License Type 
	

License Name 
	

Municipality 

68. PREVIOUS Y HELD INTEREST IN AN AL OHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE 
Has any individual or entity identified Identified in question 6, and applicable attachments, ever held a direct or indirect, beneficial or 
financial Interest in a license to sell alcoholic beverages, which is not presently held? 	Yes fl 	No El 
If yes, list in table below. Attach additional pages, if necessary, utilizing the table format below. 

Name 
	

License Type 
	

License Name 
	

Municipality 

6C, DISCLOSURE OF LICENSE DISCIPLINARY ACTION  

Have any of the disclosed licenses listed in question 6Aor 6B ever been suspended, revoked or cancelled? 
Yes 0 No El if yes, list in table below. Attach additional pages, if necessary, utilizing the table format below. 



C, Other (Please specify) 

Name of Contributor Amount of Contribution 

Tota 

APPLICATION FOR A NEW LICENSE 

8. FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE  

  

A. Purchase PrIce for Real Estate 

 

B. Purchase Price for Business Assets 

   

SOURCE OF CASH CONTRIBUTION 

Please provide documentation of available funds. (E.g. Bank or other Financial Institution Statements, Bank Letter, etc.) 

SOURCE OF FINANCING 
Please provide signed financing documentation, 

Name of Lender Amount Type of Financing 
a Is the lender 	licensee pursuan  to M.G.L.Ch.138. 

C Yes r No 

r Yes 	(' No 

C Yes C No 

,_.. 
C Yes C No 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION  
Provide a detalleci explanation of the form(s) and source(s) of funding for the cost identified above. 

r 
PLEDGE INFORMATION  

Please provide signed pledge documentation. 

Are you seeking approval for a pledge? c Yes 	(I No 

Please indicate what you are seeking to pledge (check all that apply) fl License 	fl Stock 	n Inventory 

To whom is the pledge being made? 

4 



Proposed Manager Name 

Residential Address 

Small 

Date of Birth 

5084305150 

Glen Jamieson 

  

SSN 

 

   

capesideharwichport@gmail,porn Phone 

874 Queen Anne Road Harwich Ma 02645 

10.  MANAGER APPLICATION  
A, MANAGER INFORMATION  

The individual that has been appointed to manage and control the licensed business and premises. 

Please Indicate how many hours per week you intend to be on the licensed premises 40 

13,01ZEKHIELBAQ . 

Are you a U.S. Citizen?* 	 C Yes 	C No 	*Manager must be a U.S. Citizen 

If yes, attach one of the following as proof of citizenship US Passport, Voter's Certificate, Birth Certificate or Naturalization Papers. 

Have you ever been convicted of a state, federal, or military crime? 	C Yes 	(i" No 

if yes, fill out the table below and attach an affidavit providing the details of any and ail convictions. Attach additional pages, if necessary, 
utilizing the format below. 

Date Municipality Charge Disposition 

C, EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION 
Please provide your employment history. Attach additional pages, if necessary, utilizing the format below. 

Start Date End Date Position Employer Supervisor Name 

5/1/2018 Current Owner/chef Capeside Kitchen Self 

3/03/2008 4/19/2018 Cook Grumpy's James Manning 

2/19/2002 1112/2008 Owner/Chet Sunny Day Cafe Self 

D. PRIOR DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
Have you held a beneficial or financial interest in, or been the manager of, a license to sell alcoholic beverages that was subject to 
disciplinary action? 	C Yes 	(i No 	if yes, please till out the table. Attach additional pages, If necessary,utlllzing the format below. 

Date of Action Name of License State City Reason for suspension, revocation or cancellation 

hereby swear under the pains and penalties of perjury fhot the information I have provided in this application is true and accurate: 

Manager's Signature 	 Date 1/17/2019 



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Please utilize this space to provide any additional information that will support your application or to clarify any answers 

provided above. 
." 	; it • 	r 	 Z.v  r: 	 01. 	• • 

and alcoholic drinks to accompany their food. The restaurants in the vicinity have licenses to sell alcohol and we are booking to 
well. We are seeking a seasonal license for full alcohol so we can serve beer/wine and alcohol for mixed drinks. 

able to as 
g' 	1 t 	• • • 	 : PI: • - 	*V* 	 W 



APPLICANT'S STATEMENT 

atthew Rosadini the: ©sole proprietor; ID partner; 0 corporate principal; El LLC/LLP manager 
Authorized Signatory 

 

of Capeside Kitchen Inc. 

t4anto of the Entity/Corporation 

hereby submit this application (hereinafter the "Application"), to the local licensing authority (the "LLA") and the Alcoholic 

Beverages Control Commission (the "ABCC" and together with the ILA collectively the "Licensing Authorities') for approval. 

I do hereby declare under the pains and penalties of perjury that I have personal knowledge of the information submitted in the 

Application, and as such affirm that all statements and representations therein are true to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

I further submit the following to be true and accurate 

(1) I understand that each representation in this Application is material to the Licensing Authorities' decision on the 

Application and that the Licensing Authorities will rely on each and every answer in the Application and accompanying 

documents in reaching its decision; 

(2) I state that the location and description of the proposed licensed premises are in compliance with state 

and local laws and regulations; 

(3) I understand that while the Application is pending, I must notify the Licensing Authorities of any change in the 

information submitted therein. I understand that failure to give such notice to the Licensing Authorities may result in 

disapproval of the Application; 

(4) I understand that upon approval of the Application, I must notify the Licensing Authorities of any change in the 

ownership as approved by the Licensing Authorities. I understand that failure to give such notice to the 

Licensing Authorities may result in sanctions including revocation of any license for which this Application is submitted; 

(5) I understand that the licensee will be bound by the statements and representations made in the Application, including, 

but not limited to the identity of persons with an ownership or financial interest in the license; 

(6) 1 understand that all statements and representations made become conditions of the license; 

(7) I understand that any physical alterations to or changes to the size of the area used for the sale, delivery, storage, or 

consumption of alcoholic beverages, must be reported to the Licensing Authorities and may require the prior approval 

of the licensing Authorities; 

(8) I understand that the licensee's failure to operate the licensed premises in accordance with the statements and 

representations made in the Application may result in sanctions, including the revocation of any license for which the 

Application was submitted; and 

9) 	I understand that any false statement or misrepresentation will constitute cause for disapproval of the Application or 

sanctions including revocation of any license for which this Application is submitted. 

(10) 	I confirm that the applicant corporation and each individual listed in the ownership section of the application is in 

good standing with the Massachuseits:Department of Revenue and has complied with all laws of the Commonwealth 

relating to taxes, reporting of employ -s• - *con  ctors, and withholding and remitting of child support. I 

Date: 101/17/2019 Signature: 

Treasurer 



er Si 	ture 	 Corporation Clerk's Signature 

CORPORATE VOTE  

The Board of Directors or LLC Managers of 
Capesde Kitchen c 

 

 

Entity Name 

duly voted to apply to the Licensing Authority of Harwich MA and the 

City/Town 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission on 

   

1
01/17/2018 

 

 

Date of Meeting 

For the following transactions (Check all that apply): 

[5-A New license 

Trander of License 

Change of Manager 

Change of Officers/ 
Di rectors/LLC Managers 

Change of Location 

Ei Alteration of Licensed Premises 

Change Corporate Name 

Change of Ownership Interest 
(LTC Members/ t_LP Partners, 
Trustees) 

El Change of ClaSS ge, Annual i Seasonal} 

D Change of License Type (1.-b. Cub I restaurant) 

El Change of Category (t-o_ as aztaaamme, Matti 

Issuance/Transfer of Stock/New Stoddloider 

0 Change Corporate Structure 

0 Pledge of Collateral ao.1-;cerutt.Stuakt) 

0 Management/Operating Agreement 

El Change of Hours 

El Change of DBA Other 

"VOTED: To authorize 
Matthew Flosadini 

Name of Person 

to sign the application submitted and to execute on the Entity's behalf, any necessary papers and 

do all things required to have the application granted." 

"VOTED: To appoint 	
'Glen Jamieson 

 

Name of Liquor License Manager 

as its manager of record, and hereby grant him or her with full authority and control of the 

premises described in the license and authority and control of the conduct of all business 

therein as the licensee itself could in any way have and exercise if it were a natural person 
residing in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts." 

For Corporations ONLY 

A true copy attest, 	 A true copy attest, 

0.0 



DATE OF DIRTH: leiteg". 	 SSN: 

OTH ER'S MAIDEN NAME: immummas 

GENDER MALE` 
	

HEIGHT: 

DRIVER'S LICENSE fr: 01.1ke4,'- 

ID THEFT INDEX PIN (IF APPLICABLE): 

STATE LIC ISSUED: Massachusetts 

WEIGHT: 
	

EYE COLOR: 

AN 	NY MARGADONNA 
Notary Public 

Corrarionwealth of MetzgOviviiiii 
My CommissPan 

March B, 20247 

Commonwealth of Massathusetts 
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission 

239 CaligeW ay Street, First Floor 
Bos ton, MA 02114 

ORS REQUEST FORM  

 

GOLEDBERG 
'MAST RER AND RECEIVER GENERAL 

JEANM LO  IA. ESQ, 
CHAIRMAN 

The Alcoholic Beverages Control Comtnission ("ABCC") ha: been certified by the Criminal History Systems Board to accese 
conviction and pending Criminal Offender Record Information ("CORI"). For the purpose of approving each shareholder, owner, 
licensee or applicant for an alcoholic beverages license, I understand that a criminal record check will be conducted on me, pursuant 
to the above. The infOnnation below is correct to the best of my knowledge. 

C LiCENSE INFORMATION 

1 ABCC NUMBER: 
a EXISTINGLiaNSfil L 

UCENSEE N 	E: ,/ 	 r- 	- 
(_eip e. -/ di A} i./..-17 zil CEEY/TOWNt 

, 	, 
r rze ) z j., 

410PLICANTINFORMATIOPI 

LAST NAME! Rosadinl 
	

FIRST NAME: 
	

Matthew 
	

MIDDLE NAME: ifkotxot 

MAIDEN NAME OR ALIAS OF APPLICABLE): 
	

PLACE OF BIRTH: 

CURRENT ADDRESS: 

C /TOWN: 

FORMER ADDRESS: 

I-FY/TOWN: 

5 Collins Road 

Berlin 	 STATE: ETA -41 ZIP: 01503 

412 George Hill 

Lancaster 	 STATE: A ZIP: 01523 

 

lai":-.)11/1441"citirmiot atthew Rosadini 	APPLiCANT/EMPLOYEESiGNATURE: 

PRINT Afv1) SIGN 

PRINTED NAME: 

NOTARY INFORMATTON 

On this rPeb   
	

before me, the undersigned notary public, personally appeared 

(name of document signer), proved to me through satisfactory evidence of identification, which were 

o be the person whose name is signed on the preceding or attached document, and acknow eeigerj to me that (he) (she) signed it voluntarily for 

Its stated purpose, 

L 	 NOTARY 

IMIQN(15EQUIS  
r 

RttivEVrti)t,f, 

fl EtAleliiiay The; wIde.r Mi WA*et is to i., stet 	those 4504,a4N1.1.41 601.1-  la-erkimual NI 15/t lily Haft 
flo laorv.10, t,  the Da. 0311441 3E0.541. 111 11100010 10 inuvide a9 appicalt the cppixtsiitY tt indade t. 

;ninost,tior, ta 010.1111 acaudef 01 thrf E¢ei we  am goals ALL *OM rapacia ittvai 'Put imturte 5Nt,  1!,id 010 

t1.00111010154; nicrOtti41 wth t>C6 rlo moil a f fea ter jp7f to14.461.4. 



L NOT Y 

MIDDLE NAME: 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

ESN: ID THEFT INDEX PIN (if APPLICABLE): DATE OF BIRT 

Jamieson 

MAIDEN NAME OR ALIAS (if APPLICABLE);  

Glen 

PLACE OF BIRTH: 

LAST NAME FIRST NAME: 

MOTHER'S 

GENDER: 

CURRENT 

CITY/TOWN: 

FORMER ADDRESS: 

crrurowNi 

MAIDEN NAME: DRIVER'S LICENSE fs; 5TATt. DC, ISSUED: Massachusetts 

flEiGHT: W EIGHT: MALE EYE COLOR: 

ADDRESS: 874 Queen Anne Road 

STATE: ZIP: Harwich IMA 02645 

30 Totiey Hill Drive 

STATE: ZIP: [Dennis A 02638 

PRINT ANO SIGN 

Glen Jamieson APPLICANT/EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE:  PRINTED NAME: 

Tom 

NOTARY INFORMATION 
i 	 1  
1 
	On this Te-A:, WY\ . 3 t     . . - . .3 	1 before ma, the undersigned notary public, personally appeared 

I 	 1 
)(name of document signer), proved to me through satisfactory evidence of identification, which were 	---\---"Y-',srei;1/4  L lc,  	# 

Ito be the person whose name is signed on the preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that (he) (she) signed it voluntarily for ..,.. 
lits slated purpose, 	

,..-. 

121111510N USE ONLY 

Pd MA 51th 5: L 

   

 

[rest 	 . 	',tr.,  .yrr..t 

 

'Om Mit liently theft Mit BIS tieri hen is to be CrOtriritid th. thOer ii.OVCrOre [hot  here brio iiiter m Aeotity Theft 

Phi kottbir he the Wit Corhried actOrter by lereettert is htherto,  Jr1 eprZeitis Ole oriiitoi4e, N loirodr are 

intoinerion mare the drilgatt OS ate COM toriest pipette MI COM (40.041 Mots Ow 1.14,f,11 Ot. INAS ire 

,.plod VA* toktttIliterl tt 54.10C.1 wt I3,10 .1n ltd 11311 106454. 

ANTHONY MARGADONN.A 
Notary N:ilk 

Commonwe-ottb of MassothuStitis 
My Commission Lxioirtsi` 

Morth 8, 2024 —" • 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission 

239 Causeway Street, First Floor 
Boston, MA 02114 

CORI 	REQUEST FORM 
DEBORAH B. GOLBABERG 	 JEAN LOR1210. ESQ. 

TRPAS't° RE R 10) RECFIIIFR GENERAL 	 CHAIRMAN 

llrc Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission CABCC") has been certified by the Criminal History Systems Board to access 
conviction and pending Criminal Offender Record Information (roRr). For the purpose of approving each shareholder, owner, 
licensee or applicant for an alcoholic beverages license, I understand that a criminal record check will be conducted on me, pursuant 
to the above. The information below is correct to the best of my knowledge, 

MCC NUMBER: 
Ot DISTHSLKENSEE1 

LICENSEE NAivie . 	=7'.-6 .-, i 
75; cie. 	r-,. (fe.-, lei) 

crtytrowm • i 	. 	I /7:, 	-. 	;' - f 6, 	,i, c '') 



MA SOC Filing Number: 201804473560 Date: 4/25/2018 2:02:00 PM 

.-.. 
The Commonwealth of Massachusetts 	Minimum Feet $250.00 

, N 	 William Francis Galvin 

Secretary of the Commonwealth, Corporations Division 
One Ashburton Place, 17th floor 

Boston, MA 02108-1512 
i 	 Telephone: (617) 727-9640 

Articles o 	rganization 
(GeneralLaws, Chapter 1561) „aection 2 o2.05tfCM 	31 , 

identification Number: 001324559 

ARTICLE I 

The exact name of the corporation is: 

CAPESIDE KITCHEN INC 

ARTICLE II 

Unless the articles of organization otherwise provide, all corporations formed pursuant to G.L. C156D have the purpose 
of engaging in any lawful business, Please specify if you want a more limited purpose: 

TO CON oucr A RESTAURANT BUSINESS AND DO ALL THINGS NECESSARY, APPROPRIATE, 
OR REASONABLY RELATED TO THE CONDUCT' OF A CrENERAL RESTAURANT BUSINESS, TO 
CARRY ON ANY BUSINESS OR OTHER ACTIVITY WHICH MAY BE LAWFULLY CARRIED ON 
A BY A CORPORATION ORGANIZED UNDER THE BUSINESS CORPORATION LAWS OF THE C 
OMMON WEALTH OF MASSACH USEr I S. 

ARTICLE III 

State the total number of shares and par value, if any, of each class of stock that the corporation 
issue. All corporations must authorize stock. If only one class or series is authorized, it Is not 
any particular designation. 

, 	 ...... 	.. 	.. 	, 	.  

is authorized to 
necessary to specify 

Total Issued 
and Outstanding 

Num of Shares 
Class of Stock 

Par Value Per Share 
Enter 0 if no Par 

Total Authorized by Articles 
of Organization or Amendments 

Num of Sitares 	Total Par value 

CNP $0.00000 100 	 $0.00 100 

GI, C156D eliminates the concept of par value, however a corporation may specify par value in Article III, See GI, 
01560 Section 6,21 and the comments thereto. 

ARTICLE IV 

tf more than one class of stock is authorized, state a distinguishing designation for each class. Prior to the issuance of 
any shares of a class, if shares of another class are outstanding, the Business Entity must provide a description of the 
preferences, voting powers, qualifications, and special or relative rights or privileges of that class and of each other 
class of which shares are outstanding and of each series then established within any class. 

N/A 

ARTICLE V 	 . .tr.eispro sharps o stock any class are: 



ALL SHARES MUST BE OFFERED TO THE CORPORATION FOR PURCHASE. PRIOR TO ANY SA 
TO.ANY NON-SHAREHOLDERS.  

ARTICLE VI 

Other lawful provisions, and if there are no provisions, this article may be left blank. 

N/A  

Note; The preceding six (6) articles are considered to be permanent and may be changed only by filing 
appropriate articles of amendment. 

ARTICLE VII 

The effective date of organization and lime the articles were received for filing if the articles are not rejected within the 
time prescribed by law. If a later effective date is desired, specify such date, which may not be later than the 90tti day 
after the articles are received for filing. 

Later Effective Date; Time: 

ARTICLE VIII 

The information contained in Article VIII is not a permanent part of the Articles of Organization, 

a,b. The street address of the initial registered office of the corporation in the commonwealth and the name 
of the initial registered agent at the registered office: 

Name: 

No. and Street: 

City or Town: 

MA1 I HEW R. ROSADINI 
537 MAIN STREET  
HARWICH PORT  State: MA Zip: 02646 Country: USA 

      

c. The names and street addresses of the Individuals who will serve as the initial directors, president, 
treasurer and secretary of the corporation (an address need not be specified if the business address of the 
officer or director is the same as the principal office location): 

Title Individual Name 
First, Middle, Last, Suffix 

Address (no PO Box) 

Address, City or Town, State, Zip Code 

PRESIDENT GLEN T JAMIESON 874 QUEEN ANNE ROAD 

HARWICH, MA 02645 USA 

TREASURER MATTHEW R ROSADINI 5 COLLINS ROAD 

BERLIN, MA 01503 USA 

SECRETARY MATTHEW 8 ROSADINI 5 COLLINS ROAD 

BERLIN, MA 01503 USA 

DIRECTOR GLEN T JAW -SON 874 QUEEN ANNE ROAD 

HARWICH, MA 02645 USA 

DIRECTOR MATTHEW R ROSADINI 5 COLLINS ROAD 	 1 
BERLIN MA 01503 USA 

—I 

d. The fiscal year end (i.e., tax year) of the corporation: 
December 

e. A brief description of the type of business in which the corporation intends to engage; 



RESTAURANT 

1. The street address (post office boxes are not acceptable) of the principal office of the corporation: 

No. and Street: 	537 MAIN STREET 
City or Town: 	HARWICH PORT 	State: MA 	Zip: 02646 	Country: USA 

g. Street address where the records of the corporation required to be kept in the Commonwealth are 
located (post office boxes are not acceptable): 

No, and Street: 	537 MAIN STREET 

City or Town: 	HARWICH PORT 	State: MA 	Zip: 02646 	Country: USA 
which Is 

X 	its principal office 	an office of its transfer agent 
an office of its secretary/assistant secretary 	 its registered office 

Signed this 25 Day of April, 2018 at 2:04:12 PM by the incorporator(s). Wan existing corporation is 
acting as incorporator, type in the exact name of the business entity, the state or other jurisdiction where 
it was incorporated, the name of the person signing on behalf of said business entity and the title helshe 
hohts or other authority b which such action is taken.) 
MATTHEW ROSADINI GLEN JAIvIIESON 

to 2001 • ma commonweam 01 massachusoits 
All Hiwits Reserved 



MA SOC Filing Number: 201804473560 Date: 4)25/2018 2:02:00 PM 

THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSE1 	IS 

I hereby certify that, upon examination of this document, duly submitted to me, it appears 

that the provisions of the General Laws relative to corporations have been complied with, 

and I hereby approve said articles; and the filing fee having been paid, said articles are 

deemed to have been filed with me on: 

April 25, 2018 02:02 PM 

WILLIAM FRANCIS GALVIN 

Secretary of the Commonwealth 



A
la  

4if7;NA 
\-(711  

c 1749 ) 
_,,, 

Sincere! 

Robert D. Fratus, Jr. 
74 Hawksnest Road 
Harwich MA 02645 

January 14, 2019 

Attn: Julie Kavanagh, Chair 
Harwich Board of Selectmen 
732 Main Street 
Harwich Center, MA 02645 
508-430-7514 

Re: Hawksnest Road 

Dear Members of the Board of Selectmen, 

Cell Phone 	(508) 958-1424 
Fax 	 (508) 430-8265 
E-Mail 	bob. fratus verizon.net  

I have been working on improving Hawksnest Road to meet with the Minimum Requirements of 
Access. The road has been widened. I am now wondering if the Town would I would install a 
layer of T-base (ground up asphalt). The Town is now getting large quantities of T-Base from all 
of the utility work on Town roads. I asked the gentleman that is running those construction jobs 
if I could get some of the T-base but he said he is required to give it to the Town. 

I believe you could direct him to deliver it to Hawksnest Road and the Town could spread it 
when they come out to grade the road. I believe they have been doing that in small amounts in 
the old section but not the newly widened section. 

If something like this is acceptable, I could meet with the Town personnel and show them where 
the bound stakes are located. 

Thank you for your time on this matter. 

Robert D. Fratus, Jr. 



Hawksnest Road Expenses 

Num 

 

Paid Amount 

   

Type Date 

Material - Fill 
Check 	12/08/2016 
Check 	12/09/2016 
Check 12/10/2016 
Check 12/12/2016 
Check 12/13/2016 
Check 12/13/2016 
Check 12/15/2016 
Check 04/24/2017 
Check 05/12/2017 
Check 05/12/2017 
Check 01/31/2018 
Check 02/12/2018 

Total Materials - Fill 

Excavation 
Check 12/21/2005 
Check 1/27/2006 
Check 2/2/2006 
Check 2/9/2006 
Check 2/17/2006 
Check 3/1/2006 
Check 3/3/2006 
Check 3/10/2006 
Check 7/22/2006 
Check 8/3/2006 
Check 01/08/2015 
Check 01/20/2015 
Check 04/02/2015 

549 Cape Sand & Recycling 
550 Cape Sand & Recycling 
551 Cape Sand & Recycling 
553 Cape Sand & Recycling 
554 Cape Sand & Recycling 
555 Cape Sand & Recycling 
556 Cape Sand & Recycling 
568 Cape Sand & Recycling 
570 Cape Sand & Recycling 
571 Cape Sand & Recycling 
641 Cape Sand & Recycling 
644 Cape Sand & Recycling 

7971 Tyler Brown 
7992 Tyler Brown 
8001 Tyler Brown 
8004 Tyler Brown 
8007 Tyler Brown 
8020 Tyler Brown 
8026 Tyler Brown 
8037 Tyler Brown 
8186 Tyler Brown 
8201 Tyler Brown 
438 Sean Smith 
439 Sean Smith 
444 Sean Smith 

189.20 
1191.95 
1326.19 
1857.93 
208.07 

2028.97 
430.32 
195.94 
575.31 
255.50 

3,884.59 
3,978.46 
9,717.39 

$230.00 
$580.00 
$680.00 
$680.00 
$578.00 
$714.00 
$544.00 
$308.00 
$750.00 
$300.00 

1,206.50 
2,060.00 
1,240.00 

$9,717.39 



Hawksnest Road Expenses 

Check 	04/02/2015 
Check 	12/22/2016 
Check 	12/27/2016 
Check 	01/31/2017 

444 Sean Smith 
557 Sean Smith 
558 Brian Barrows 
561 Brian Barrows 

300.00 
4,505.00 
3,000.00 
4,000.00 

Total Excavation 21,675.50 $21,675.50 

Landscaping / seeding 
Check 	04/26/2018 647 Craig Brown 688.00 688.00 

Surveying 
Check 	05/20/2003 1038 Jim Moore 1,000.00 
Check 	08/06/2003 1046 Jim Moore 2,975.00 
Check 	01/08/2004 7139 Jim Moore 240.00 
Check 	09/04/2009 8916 Richard J Hood, PLS 153.25 
General 	12/31/2011 11-P&H#6 R.J. Hood & Son, Inc. 2,265.00 
General 	12/31/2011 11-P&H#6 R.J. Hood & Son, Inc. 1,132.50 
Check 	02/19/2013 382 Richard J Hood, PLS 3,000.00 
Check 	03/04/2013 388 Richard J Hood, PLS 1,331.20 
Check 	05/06/2013 10171 Richard J Hood, PLS 237.50 
Check 	05/06/2013 10171 Richard J Hood, PLS 475.00 
Check 	08/27/2013 10199 Richard J Hood, PLS 380.00 
Check 	08/27/2013 10199 Richard J Hood, PLS 760.00 
Check 	05/19/2014 10271 Richard J Hood, PLS 1,500.00 
Check 	05/19/2014 10271 Richard J Hood, PLS 475.00 
Check 	11/10/2015 10397 Richard J Hood, PLS 1,620.00 
Check 	11/10/2015 10397 Richard J Hood, PLS 1,890.00 
Check 	01/06/2016 10407 Richard J Hood, PLS 975.00 
Check 	06/27/2016 10454 Richard J Hood, PLS 420.00 
Check 	06/27/2016 10454 Richard J Hood, PLS 285.00 
Check 	09/08/2016 10481 Richard J Hood, PLS 367.50 
Check 	09/16/2017 631 Richard J Hood, PLS 1,125.00 
Check 	01/12/2018 10606 Richard J Hood, PLS 2,110.00 



Hawksnest Road Expenses 

Check 	07/27/2018 
Check 	11/08/2018 

666 Richard J Hood, PLS 
10694 Richard J Hood, PLS 

660.00 
2,278.00 

Total Surveying 27,654.95 $27,654.95 

Engineering 
Check 	04/08/2017 566 Down Cape Engineering 180.00 
Check 	03/04/2013 390 Lantery Associates- Earl Lantery 1,000.00 
Check 	04/14/2013 401 Lantery Associates- Earl Lantery 1,175.00 
Check 	02/27/2014 10245 Lantery Associates- Earl Lantery 505.60 
Check 	06/28/2017 10555 Lantery Associates- Earl Lantery 875.00 

Total Engineering 3,735.60 $3,735.60 

Electrical 
Check 	07/22/2016 489 John F. Linhares, Electrician 8,000.00 
Check 	08/16/2016 10474 John F. Linhares, Electrician 10,250.00 

Total Electrical 18,250.00 $18,250.00 

Disposal Fees 
CC 	4/25/18 S & J Exco 255.00 
CC 	4/25/018 S & J Exco 255.00 

Total Disposal 510.00 $510.00 
$81,543A4 

This summary is all the costs of Hawksnest and Raptor Road. 

Raptor Road has more surveying costs but I did that project over a long period and got all the fill for free. 

Overall, Raptor Road is 1/5th the length of Hawksnest and Raptor combined. So approximately $65,000 is the cost of Hawksnest. 



Robert D. Fratus, Jr. 
74 Hawksnest Road 
Harwich MA 02645 

January 14, 2019 

Attn: Julie Kavanagh, Chair 
Harwich Board of Selectmen 
732 Main Street 
Harwich Center, MA 02645 
508-430-7514 

Re: Round Cove Road — West of Rt. 137 

Cell Phone 	(508) 958-1424 
Fax 	 (508) 430-8265 
E-Mail 	bob.fratus verizon.net  

Dear Members of the Board of Selectmen, 

I am asking the Board to review the conditions of this section of Round Cove Road. This section 
of Road leads from Rt 137 and terminates in Hawksnest State Park at Hawksnest Pond. The 
section I would like addressed is the section that is unpaved and meets with Hawksnest Road. 
Beyond that is Hawksnest State Park. 

Part of Round Cove Road has been paved. The pavement ends after the last house on the road. 
The remainder, between the pavement and Hawksnest Road, is in severe and almost unpassable 
condition. II is a Town road and should be maintained to be at least passable by a regular car. 
As it is now, the holes in the road are the size of small cars. Sooner or later, someone is going to 
rupture a gas tank. Every winter, people get stuck in those holes and have to be towed out. 

Hawksnest State Park is one of Harwich's attractions. It should be accessible in a safe and 
pleasant manner. As a Scenic Corridor it should not be in such a state of disrepair. From a 
safety view point, if there was a fire emergency in the Park or at the Pond, Round Cove Road is 
the quickest access. In the past few years there have been two large fires. If there is a medical 
emergency at the Pond, seconds count and an ambulance would have to enter via Hawksnest 
Road which would takes several more minutes than through Round Cove Road if they were 
coming from Station 2. Since we are spending millions to make Station 2 better and improve 
response times, it makes sense to improve this road so it is passable by emergency vehicles. 

I believe the Town can get a lot of free fill from RH White who is installing the gas lines. 
Perhaps some of it could be used on Round Cove Road. 



I have spent an enormous amount of money improving Hawksnest Road as well as designing and 
installing a giant cul-de-sac on Argyle Way North to ensure Adequate Access as required by the 
Town. I would think the Town would have to meet its own requirements on Town Roads. 

Thank you for your time to consider this request. 

Sin 

Robert D. Fratus, Jr. 



Sincere' 

Robert D. Fratus, Jr. 

Robert D. Fratus, Jr. 
74 Hawksnest Road 
Harwich MA 02645 

Cell Phone 	(508) 958-1424 
Fax 	 (508) 430-8265 
E-Mail 	bob.fratus verizon.net  

January 14, 2019 

Attn: Julie Kavanagh, Chair 
Harwich Board of Selectmen 
732 Main Street 
Harwich Center, MA 02645 
508-430-7514 

Re: In-lieu-of-Sidewalk fee for Raptor Road 

Dear Members of the Board of Selectmen, 

I have told by the Planning department that I must pay a fee of $7,330 called an In-lieu-of-
sidewalk Fee upon completing Raptor Road. Since I have spent over $25,000 on the most recent 
improvement to Hawksnest Road (between Raptor Road and Round Cove) and over $25,000 
from 74 Hawksnest down to Raptor Road, I am asking for the Board to waive the In-lieu-of-
sidewalk fee. 

Thank you for considering this request. 



El 

 

Buildings and Public Works  

Cl. Please show Prevailing Wage was used. 

C2. If construction is near $10,000 you also need: 
EI 	a. Written spec sheet. 

CI 	b. Advertised for two weeks on Central Register 

and COMMBUYS. 

I=1 	c. Apparent low bidder posted to Town website. 

C3. If construction over $25,000 you need C1, C2, 

as well as: 
EI 	a. Show project was in the Capital Plan. 

l=1 	b. Show that 50% payment bond was in bids. 

C4. If construction over $50,000 you need C1, C2, 

C3, as well as: 
EI 	a. Bid Bond of 5% of total value. 

❑ b. Sealed Bids. 

c. 	End of Public Works construction requirements 
C5. If Building estimated construction costs are 

over $100,000 and estimated design costs are 

over $10,000 you'll need to follow the 

Designer Selection RFQ process: 
Ei 	a. Advertise in Central Register and local 

newspaper for two weeks. 

O b. Set a designer fee or price ceiling. 

❑ c. Use Standard Designer Application Form 

C6. If Building construction over $150,000 you'll 

need C1, C2, C3, C4, C5, as well as: 
El 	a. 100% payment bond was in bids. 

D b. 100% performance bond was in bids. 

CI 	c. DCAMM certified bidders. 
ID 	I. DCAMM certified sub-bids if over $25,000. 

C7. If Building construction over $10,000,000 
you'll need C1, C2, C3, C4, CS, C6, as well as: 
a. 	Solicit qualifications prior to sealed bids. 

  

a 

   

    

    

     

Signature of Town Administrator or Assistant Town Administrator: 

Goods and Services  

GS1. If procured using the State Bid List: 
a. 	Over $25,000 please show project was on the 

Capital Plan. 

GS2. If project is over $5,000: 
• a. Please provide written spec sheet used and 

who it was sent to. 

D b. Maximum contract length is three years. 

G53. If project is over $50,000: 
O a. Show project was advertised for two weeks in 

a newspaper and on COMMBUYS. 

I=1 	b. Show project utilized sealed bids. 

❑ c. Apparent low bidder posted to Town website. 

GS4. If project is over $100,000: 
D a. Show project was advertised for two weeks in 

COMMBUYS and Goods and Services Bulletin. 

❑ b. Show project utilized sealed bids. 

Note 1: If lowest bidder was found to be either 

not responsive or not responsible, the Town may 

begin negotiations with next lowest bidder. 

Note 2: Bids may be negotiated downwards but 

never higher than original quote. 

Note 3: Municipalities shall not provide a down 

payment, deposit, or provide funding before 

possession of purchased item. 

Project Name:   Gi6Nft 	cro4 1--.4`"4&  	TM Year and Article #: 	  Appropriation: $ 	  

Low Bidder: 
	

Bid Price: 
	.  1=15V- 

7/30/18 Revised Procurement Checklist 
	 IZev 

Please complete checklist below for contracts requiring Selectmen* signature before Wednesday morning** 

in order to get sign-off approval from the Town Administrator or the Assistant Town Administrator. 

*Note: contracts (not grants) below $50,000 can be signed by Town Administrator. 

❑ 1. Please provide a separate page titled "Summary of Project" which includes: 
0 	a. Provide how many bidders there were, the range of bids, and apparent low bidder. 
I=1 	b. Identify the funding source, such as article number and amount approved. 

El 	c. Include what you feel is pertinent, but keep this section to 4 sentences or less. 

111 2. Finance Director has signed that funds are available: 	  Account # 	 

❑ 3. Please provide a single copy of the bid packet along with all supporting documents. 

❑ 4. Please use K-P Law provided standardized contracts. 

Christopher Clark 
lbwn Administrator 

**Note: Failure to gain sign-off before Wednesday at noon  results in the contract being delayed to the next meeting. 



Summary of Project 

The Town of Harwich requested bids under Massachusetts State Contract, Operational Services 

Division, Document Number FAC88, Category 5A, to lease a fleet of golf carts to operate at Cranberry 

Valley Golf Course as outlined below. 

Duration of Contract: 

One year, with two one-year optional extensions at the Town's discretion. Cart fleet to be 

delivered no later than April 1, 2019. 

Product/Services Requested: 

75 golf carts 

One vehicle with cage for pushing the driving range ball picker 

Five utility vehicles with rear buckets 

Two golf course ranger carts with roofs and windshields 

Service agreement to provide regularly scheduled maintenance, repairs and parts (including 

labor) to above carts 

One gas powered, six seat cart for transporting people 

Lease Terms: 

Seeking a revenue share arrangement with monthly payments documented and paid by Town of 

Harwich to Lessor. 

Estimated Value of Contract: $55,000 

Summary of Bids: 

All 3 companies listed on the state contract submitted bids. The deadline to submit bids was 

March 4, 2019. 

The bid received from the Town's current cart vendor, New England Golf Cars, was determined 

by the Director of Golf and the Town Administrator to be the most favorable to the Town on the 

criteria that the Town will receive the most revenue and that the fleet offered meets 

requirements of the scope of work. 



New England Golf Cars (Yamaha) 

Proposed cart— 2014 Yamaha (existing fleet) 

Lease terms 	 1 year with two one-year options 

83.25% Town 

Additional costs 	 none 

Service Contract 	 Included 

Five Star Golf Cars (EZ-Go) 

Proposed cart — 2019 EZ-Go TXT gas car 

Lease terms 	 3 years — option to upgrade to electric 

74% Town 

Additional costs 	 Rental of six passenger ($195/month) 

Service Contract 	 $4,875 per year service contract 

Country Club Enterprises (Club Car) 

Proposed Cart 2018 Club Car Tempo 

Lease Terms 	 74% Town 

1 year with two one-year options 

Additional Costs 	 None 

Service Contract 	 Included 



February 25, 2019 

Scope of work — Golf Cart Lease for Cranberry Valley 

The Town of Harwich is seeking bids under Massachusetts State Contract, Operational Services 

Division, Document Number FAC88, Category 5A, to lease a fleet of golf carts to operate at Cranberry 

Valley Golf Course as outlined below. 

Duration of Contract: 

One year, with two one-year optional extensions at the Town's discretion. Cart fleet to be 

delivered no later than April 1, 2019. 

Product/Services Requested: 

75 new or slightly used (if used the Town reserves the right to inspect and at the Town's sole 

discretion to void any carts deemed unsatisfactory) Gasoline powered golf carts, as are 

standard in the golf industry (2 seats, 2 golf bag wells...) equipped with Suntops, split 

windshields, bag covers, cart sign holders, (2) sand bottles, rake and holder 

One vehicle with cage for pushing the driving range ball picker 

Five utility vehicles with rear buckets 

Two golf course ranger carts with roofs and windshields 

Service agreement to provide regularly scheduled maintenance, repairs and parts (including 

labor) to above carts 

One gas powered, six seat cart for transporting people 

Lease Terms: 

Seeking a revenue share arrangement with monthly payments documented and paid by Town of 

Harwich to Lessor. The town seeks to utilize the existing or similar lease (attached) 

Please respond to request for bid no later than March 4, 2019 by email to: 

Roman Greer 

rgreer@town.harwich.ma.us   



AGREEMENT FOR TOWN OF HARWICH 

The following provisions shall constitute an Agreement between the Town of Harwich, 

acting by and through its Board of Selectmen, hereinafter referred to as "Town," and New 

England Golf Cars, with an address of 62 Industrial Way, Seekonk, MA, 02771 , hereinafter 

referred to as "Contractor", effective as of the 11 day of March, 2019. In consideration of the 

mutual covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1: SCOPE OF WORK: 

The Contractor shall perform all work and furnish all services necessary to provide the 

Town with a fleet of golf carts for use on Cranberry Valley Golf Course, including the scope of 

services set forth in Attachment A. 

ARTICLE 2: TIME OF PERFORMANCE: 

The Contractor shall complete all work and services required hereunder commencing March 15, 

2019 through March 15, 2020. 

ARTICLE 3: COMPENSATION: 

The Town shall pay the Contractor for the performance of the work outlined in Article 1 

above the contract sum of 16.75% of gross golf cart revenue 

ARTICLE 4: CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 

The following documents form the Contract and all are as fully a part of the Contract as if 

attached to this Agreement or repeated herein: 

1. This Agreement. 
2. Amendments, or other changes mutually agreed upon between the parties. 
3. All attachments to the Agreement. 

In the event of conflicting provisions, those provisions most favorable to the Town shall 

govern. 

ARTICLE 5: CONTRACT TERMINATION: 



The Town may suspend or terminate this Agreement by providing the Contractor with ten 

(10) days written notice for the reasons outlined as follows: 

1. Failure of the Contractor, for any reason, to fulfill in a timely and proper manner 
its obligations under this Agreement. 

2. Violation of any of the provisions of this Agreement by the Contractor. 
3. A determination by the Town that the Contractor has engaged in fraud, waste, 

mismanagement, misuse of funds, or criminal activity with any funds provided by 
this Agreement. 

Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time for convenience by providing the 

other party written notice specifying therein the termination date which shall be no sooner than 

thirty (30) days from the issuance of said notice. Upon receipt of a notice of termination from 

the Town, the Contractor shall cease to incur additional expenses in connection with the 

Agreement. Upon such termination, the Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for all 

satisfactory work completed prior to the termination date as determined by the Town. Such 

payment shall not exceed the fair value of the services provided hereunder. 

ARTICLE 6: INDEMNIFICATION: 

The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town and its officers, 

agents, and all employees from and against claims arising directly or indirectly from the contract. 

Contractor shall be solely responsible for all local taxes or contributions imposed or required 

under the Social Security, Workers' Compensation, and income tax laws. Further, the Contractor 

shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town with respect to any damages, expenses, or 

claims arising from or in connection with any of the work performed or to be performed under 

this Agreement. This shall not be construed as a limitation of the Contractor's liability under the 

Agreement or as otherwise provided by law. 

2 



ARTICLE 7: AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: 

The compensation provided by this Agreement is subject to the availability and 

appropriation of funds. 

ARTICLE 8: APPLICABLE LAW: 

The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws, 

regulations and orders relating to the completion of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be 

governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

ARTICLE 9: ASSIGNMENT: 

The Contractor shall not make any assignment of this Agreement without the prior 

written approval of the Town. 

ARTICLE 10: AMENDMENTS: 

All amendments or any changes to the provisions specified in this Contract can only 

occur when mutually agreed upon by the Town and Contractor. Further, such amendments or 

changes shall be in writing and signed by officials with authority to bind the Town. No 

amendment or change to the contract provisions shall be made until after the written execution of 

the amendment or change to the Contract by both parties. 

ARTICLE 11: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: 

The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it is acting as an independent contractor for 

all work and services rendered pursuant to this Agreement and shall not be considered an 

employee or agent of the Town for any purpose. 

ARTICLE 12: INSURANCE: 

The Contractor shall be responsible to the Town or any third party for any property 

damage or bodily injury caused by it, any of its subcontractors, employees or agents in the 

performance of, or as a result of, the work under this Agreement. The Contractor and any 

subcontractors used hereby certify that they are insured for workers' compensation, property 

damage, personal and product liability. The Contractor and any subcontractor it uses shall 

3 



purchase, furnish copies of, and maintain in full force and effect insurance policies in the 

amounts here indicated. 

General Liability 
Bodily Injury Liability: 
Property Damage Liability 
(or combined single limit) 

Automobile Liability 
Bodily Injury Liability: 
Property Damage Liability 
(or combined single limit) 

$1,000,000 per occurrence 
$ 500,000 per occurrence 
$1,000,000 per occurrence 

$1,000,000 per occurrence 
$ 500,000 per occurrence 
$1,000,000 per occurrence 

Workers' Compensation Insurance  
Coverage for all employees in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws 

Professional Liability Insurance  
Minimum Coverage 	 $1,000,000 per occurrence 

Prior to commencement of any work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the 

Town with Certificates of Insurance which include the Town as an additional named insured and 

which include a thirty day notice of cancellation to the Town. 

ARTICLE 13: SEVERABILITY: 

If any term or condition of this Agreement or any application thereof shall to any extent 

be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable by the court of competent jurisdiction, the validity, 

legality, and enforceability of the remaining terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be 

deemed affected thereby unless one or both parties would be substantially or materially 

prejudiced. 

ARTICLE 14: ENTIRE AGREEMENT: 

This Agreement, including all documents incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the 

entire integrated agreement between the parties with respect to the matters described. This 

4 



Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and representations, either written or 

oral, and it shall not be modified or amended except by a written document executed by the 

parties hereto. 

ARTICLE 15: COUNTERPARTS: 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed to be a counterpart original. 

5 



CERTIFICATION AS TO PAYMENT OF STATE TAXES 

Pursuant to Chapter 62C of the Massachusetts General Laws, Section 49A(b), I, 

	 , authorized signatory for the Contractor do hereby certify under the 

pains and penalties of perjury that said Contractor has complied with all laws of the 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts relating to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and 

withholding and remitting child support. 

Social Security Number or 	 Signature of Individual or 
Federal Identification Number 	 Corporate Name 

By: 
Corporate Officer 
(if applicable) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the 

day and year first above written. 

CONTRACTOR 
By 

Printed Name and Title 

TOWN OF HARWICH 
by its Board of Selectmen Over $50,000 

Approved as to Availability of Funds: 	by its Town Administrator Under $50,000 

Finance Director 
	

Contract Sum 	Town Administrator 

6 



TOWN OF HARWICH 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

FOR GASOLINE POWERED GOLF CARTS 

FOR CRANBERRY VALLEY GOLF COURSE 

ATTACHMENT A 

Agreement made this 11th day of March, 2019 between the Town of Harwich, a municipal corporation 

situated in Barnstable County with a mailing address of 732 Main Street, Harwich, Massachusetts 02645, 

hereinafter referred to as "LESSEE" and New England Golf Cars hereinafter referred to as "LESSOR". 

Whereas, the parties wish to enter into a lease agreement for gasoline powered golf carts for Cranberry 

Valley Golf Carts located at 183 Oak Street, Harwich, MA 02645, it is mutually agreed by and between 

the parties as follows: 

DURATION OF CONTRACT 

This contract shall be in force for a period of one year, commencing on March 15, 2019 and ending on 

March 15, 2020. There are two one-year lease extensions at the same terms at the sole discretion of 

the Town of Harwich. 

CONDITIONS 

1. Lessor agrees to provide: 

75- 2014 Model, gasoline powered golf carts equipped with suntops, split windshields, 

bag covers, (2) sand bottles, rake and holder. The Lessor agrees to provide at no 

additional cost to the Town of Harwich the following additional vehicles: 

(1) One vehicle with cage for pushing the driving range ball picker. 

(2) Five utility vehicles with rear buckets. 

(3) Two golf course ranger vehicles for roofs and windshields. 

(4) One six seat concierge cart for transporting people. 

2. 	All maintenance, repairs, and parts including labor will be at the expense of the Lessor. The 

Lessee agrees to keep the carts clean and orderly so that they will not detract from the 

standards, appearance and cleanliness of the golf course. The carts will be rotated daily. The 

golf course will be responsible for gassing up the carts and performing some minor maintenance 

(i.e., repairing flat tires). 



3. Lessor agrees to furnish a mechanic on request to handle any major maintenance that may be 

required on carts. 

4. Title to said vehicles shall remain at all times the sole exclusive property of the Lessor. Said 

vehicles may not be removed from the premises of the lessee and\or the Golf Course. 

5. The Lessee assumes responsibility for the safe housing indoors or under suitable cover of the 

golf carts during the night hours. Ignition keys are to be removed from the carts after release by 

patron and at night time. 

6. Lessor shall maintain and keep in effect adequate fire and extended coverage, theft, and 

collision insurance covering the golf carts. 

7. Lessor shall obtain, at the Lessor's expense, but on behalf of the Town, general liability 

insurance coverage with minimum coverage for bodily injury, including death, of $1 million for 

any one person and $2 million for any single occurrence. Such insurance policy shall name the 

Town of Harwich as the primary insured. The Lessee and the Lessor shall have the right to 

obtain and maintain additional policies of liability insurance as each of them in their sole 

discretion deem appropriate. The insurance coverage provided by the Lessor pursuant to the 

Lease Agreement shall be the primary insurance, and any other insurance covering Lessor or 

Town shall be secondary and in excess of such policy. 

8. Use of golf carts by Lessee, it's employees, invitees or agents for the purpose of carrying 

refreshments, picking up balls from the driving range, performing duties as rangers or marshals, 

maintenance, transportation between residences and golf courses, parades, and any use on 

thoroughfares or any use other than rental while playing golf is strictly prohibited without the 

approval from the Lessor and any insurance coverage provided herein does not apply to these 

unauthorized uses of the golf carts without such approval. 

9. Any acts of vandalism to the rental vehicle shall be reported in writing to the Lessor upon 

discovery together with any names and/or evidence that would lead to the apprehension of the 

vandals or would aid in filing an insurance claim. Property damage, fire, theft, and injuries 

resulting from the use of the vehicles shall be reported in the same manner. 

10. The Lessee, by authority of this contract, agrees to collect and pay all amusement, sales, or 

other taxes payable under the laws governing the Lessee's particular location and hereby waives 

any responsibility of the Lessor to do so. 

11. Lessor shall have the right to withdraw any carts at any time for maintenance, inadequate 

revenue or any reasons and abuses beyond normal wear and tear. Lessor will replace said carts 

which are removed for certain reasons. Lessee will always have 75 carts on site. 



12. Lessor shall have right to withdraw carts for default, non-payment, insolvency, or bankruptcy 

whereupon the Lessor can enter the premises of the Lessee to take possession. The Lessee shall 

not be relieved of the liability of past-due payments in the event of such circumstances. 

13. The Lessee agrees that there shall be no other electric or mechanically driven golf carts for the 

lease on the Lessee's grounds except machines furnished by the Lessor during the term of the 

lease. 

14. Normal wear and tear on the golf carts will be expected but abuse to carts will be the 

responsibility of the Lessee. 

15. The Lessor will furnish the Lessee with eight spare tires to keep the golf carts running between 

service calls. 

16. Advertising — Lessee shall not, without the prior consent of the Lessor, use, nor shall it permit 

others to use, the equipment for the purpose of displaying any advertisements or publicity 

materials. 

17. The Lessor will provide at no expense to the Lessee all supplies related to the customer use 

documentation. 

18. The Lessor will provide the Lessee with special tournament fleet requests at no additional 

charges above the normal customer use fees. Fee to be charged not to exceed $20 to the 

Lessee per cart per day. 

19. The Lessee agrees to pay the Lessor as per payment schedule per month. The Lessor will require 

the renter to sign the rental ticket in each instance the cart was used. 

20. The Lessee agrees not to allow the use of said carts by minors or any persons incapable of 

operating carts safely. 

21. The percentage to be retained by the Town is 83.25% of gross revenue collected from the rental 

of carts with the Lessor retaining 16.75% of gross. 



 

 

ANNUAL TOWN MEETING 

WARRANT 

With 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MAY 6, 2019 



 

 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ANNUAL TOWN MEETING 
May 6, 2019 

 
Procedures ..............................................................................................................................5 
Motion Chart ..........................................................................................................................6 
Tax Rate Chart .......................................................................................................................7 
Municipal Finance Terms Voting ..........................................................................................8 
Proposition 2 ½ Terms ...........................................................................................................9 

 

ARTICLES 

 

1. Town Officers & Committees ..........................................................................................10 
2. Reports of Town Officers & Committees ........................................................................10 
3. Elected Officials Salaries .................................................................................................10 
 

BUDGETS 

 

4. Town Operating Budget ................................................................................................... 

5. Monomoy Regional School District Budget .................................................................... 

6. Cape Cod Regional Technical School District Budget .................................................... 

7. Water Department Budget ............................................................................................... 

8. Wastewater/Sewer Budget ............................................................................................... 

CAPITAL BUDGET 
 

9. Adopt the Capital Plan ..................................................................................................... 
10. Lease Purchase Agreements ............................................................................................ 
 

ADMINISTRATION 

 

11. Capital Items Funded From Free Cash ............................................................................ 

12. Facility Maintenance and Repair Fund ............................................................................ 

13. Fund the Snow and Ice Deficit for FY19 ......................................................................... 

14. Fund Shortfalls in Budget Transfers for FY19 ................................................................ 

 

WATER DEPARTMENT 

 

15. Purchase/Replace Mini Excavator for Water Department ............................................... 

16. Pleasant Lake Avenue - Replacement of Section of Water Main Entering Tank ............ 

17. Replace the T1 Main Facility Generator .......................................................................... 

18. Purchase a 2019 Ford F-550 Truck for the Water Department ....................................... 

 

 

 



 

 2

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

 

19. Purchase and Equip Vehicles for the DPW ..................................................................... 

20. Reconstruction of Lower County Road ........................................................................... 

21. Purchase of Mobile Lift System ...................................................................................... 

22. Road Maintenance Program ............................................................................................. 

 

ZONING/PLANNING BOARD 

 

23. Single-family dwelling with accessory apartment ........................................................... 

24. Freestanding Portable signs ............................................................................................. 

25. Retaining walls for septic systems ................................................................................... 

26. Special provisions for lifting existing structure to new and appropriate elevations ........ 

27. Provide funding for an Update of the Town’s Local Comprehensive Plan ..................... 

 

LIBRARY 

 

28. Fund Library Technology ................................................................................................ 

GOLF 
 

29. Landscape Reclamation at Cranberry Valley Golf Course .............................................. 

30. Bunker Renovation at Cranberry Valley Golf Course ..................................................... 

 

CEMETERY DEPARTMENT 

 

31. Amendments to Cemetery Rules and Regulations........................................................... 

32. Cemetery Arboretum Project – Mapping and Software ..................................................  

 

MISCELLANEOUS  

 

33. Solar Photovoltaic Energy Systems ................................................................................. 

34. Amendment to the Agreement Between the Towns of Chatham and Harwich for the 

formation of a Regional School District .......................................................................... 

 

M.G.L./CHARTER/BYLAW AMENDMENTS 

 

35. Charter Amendment - Change from Water Commission to Water/Wastewater 

Commission ..................................................................................................................... 

36. Amendments to Harwich Home Rule Charter - Capital Outlay Plan .............................. 

37. Amendments to Ex-Officio Members – clarify terms of office ....................................... 

 



 

 3

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION 
 

38. Appropriate Sums of Money From The FY 20 Estimated Annual Revenues of The 

Community Preservation Act Fund ................................................................................. 

39. Fund Land Bank Debt Service ......................................................................................... 

40. Community Preservation Activities Under $50,000 ........................................................ 

41. Brooks Academy Museum ............................................................................................... 

42. Harwich Affordable Housing Trust ................................................................................. 

43. Sand Pond Restroom Project ........................................................................................... 

44. Whitehouse Field Improvement Project .......................................................................... 

45. Red River Beach Shoreline Stabilization Project ............................................................ 

 

PRIVATE PETITIONS 

 

46. Defray Costs for the Chase and Harwich Port Libraries.................................................. 

47. Promote the Town of Harwich ......................................................................................... 

48. Supplement Annual Allocation of Mass Cultural Council For Local Cultural Council 

Grants ............................................................................................................................... 

49. Pleasant Bay Alliance ...................................................................................................... 

50. Amend the Code of the Town of Harwich to prohibit procurement of and dispensing 

beverages in plastic containers of any size ...................................................................... 

51. Refrain from Using Town Funds/Resources to Enforce Federal Immigration Laws ...... 

52. Support for Legislation to Change State Seal and Motto ................................................ 

53. General By-Law Amendment to Ban the use of Single-Use Plastic Straws.................... 

54. Amendment to the Harwich Board of Health Regulations - Flavored Tobacco Products  

55. Selectmen’s Public Record of Votes................................................................................ 

56. Amend the Code of the Town of Harwich Charter – Update the Name “Selectmen” to 

“Select Board” ................................................................................................................. 

PET BURIAL GROUND 
 

57. Rescind Article 57 of the 2016 Annual Town Meeting – Pet Burial Ground .................. 

58. Establish Annual Revolving Fund for the Pet Burial Ground ......................................... 

59. Complete Construction of the Pet Burial Grounds .......................................................... 

 
LAND MATTERS 

 
60. Approve Easement for Verizon and Eversource Energy at 1464 Orleans-Harwich Road 

(Rte. 39) for Fire Station 2 ............................................................................................... 

61. Affordable Housing Trust Fund – List of Town Properties to Designate as Affordable ......  

 

 

 



 

 4

REVOLVING/STABILIZATION/OPEB FUNDS 

 

62. Amend the Code of the Town of Harwich General By-Laws – Chapter 8 Departmental 

Revolving Funds §8-1. Funds Established....................................................................... 

63. Rescind the Establishment of the Capital Infrastructure Revitalization Fund at Cranberry 

Valley Golf Course .......................................................................................................... 

64. Rescind the Authorization for the Golf Restaurant Lease 53D Revolving Account and 

Transfer the Balance into the Pro Shop Revolving Account ........................................... 

65. Departmental Revolving Funds Authorization ................................................................ 

66. Stabilization Fund ............................................................................................................ 

67. OPEB Trust Fund ............................................................................................................. 

68. Fund Prior Year’s Unpaid Bills ....................................................................................... 

 

CUSTOMARY ARTICLES 

69. Herring Fisheries .............................................................................................................. 
  
 
 
APPENDIX A – Sample Ballot  

APPENDIX B – Budget 

APPENDIX C – Capital Plan 



 

 5

VOTING PROCEDURES 

 
 
I A quorum, 150 registered voters, must be present in order to conduct business.  The only 
 motion in order when no quorum is present is a motion to adjourn. 
 
II A two-thirds majority of the Town Meeting shall be required for inclusion of any Capital 
 Outlay, unless it was included in the Capital Outlay Plan adopted at the preceding Town 
 Meeting. 
 
III All motions introduced at the Town Meeting shall be in writing when required by the 
 Moderator. 
 
IV Voters are limited to two times speaking on any one question; the total time speaking not 
 to exceed 10 minutes. 
 
V Only registered voters shall occupy the meeting “floor”. 
 
VI No voter will be allowed to speak until he or she is recognized by the Moderator. 
 
VII Motion requiring more than a simple majority to pass: 
 

A. To reconsider a vote on a motion – ¾ majority (this motion must be made prior to the 
next adjournment of the meeting). 

B. To consider articles in an order other than as appears on the warrant – ¾ majority. 
C. To pay unpaid bills –4/5 majority at the Annual Town Meeting, 9/10 majority at a 

Special Town Meeting. 
D. To move the previous question (terminate debate) – ¾ majority. 

 
VIII Quorum cannot be questioned after a motion has been made and seconded. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

6 
 

MOTION CHART Section 1-211 
(Application of Rules is indicated by an X) 

 
 

Motions 

 

Debatable Non 

Debatable 

Amendable Non 

Amendable 

Second  

Required 

Second Not 

Required 

Majority 

Vote 

2/3 

Vote 

¾ 

Vote 

May 

Reconsider 

Cannot 

Reconsider 

Adjourn  X  X X  X    X 

Adjourn 

(in a time 

certain) 

X  X  X  X   X  

Amendment X  X  X  X   X  

Adopt a 

Resolution 

X  X  X  X    X 

Accept & Adopt X  X  X  X1   X  

Postpone  

Indefinitely 

X   X X  X   X  

Previous 

Question 

Terminate 

Debate 

 X  X X    X  X 

Reconsider 2 X   X X    X  X 

Consider 

Articles 

Out of Order 

X  X  X    X  X 

Point of Order  X    X      

1. Unless a greater than simple majority required by General Laws of Town of Harwich by-laws. 

2. See section 1.207 



 

7 
 

 

 

  

TAX RATE CHART 

 
THE CHART BELOW SHOWS THE AMOUNT OF MONEY REQUIRED TO CHANGE 

THE FY 2019 TAX RATE 

 
TAX RATE CHANGE IN $/1000 DOLLARS REQUIRED 

$0.01 $56,835 

$0.05 $284,175 

$0.10 $568,349 

$0.15 $852,524 

$0.20 $1,136,699 

$0.25 $1,420,874 

$0.30 $1,705,048 

$0.35 $1,989,223 

$0.40 $2,273,398 

$0.45 $2,557,572 

$0.50 $2,841,747 

$0.55 $3,125,922 

$0.60 $3,410,096 

$0.65 $3,694,271 

$0.70 $3,978,446 

$0.75 $4,262,621 

$0.80 $4,546,795 

$0.85 $4,830,970 

$0.90 $5,115,145 

$0.95 $5,399,319 

$1.00 $5,683,494 



 

8 
 

MUNICIPAL FINANCE TERMS 

 
APPROPRIATION:  An authorization granted by the Town Meeting to make 
expenditures and to incur obligations for specific purposes. 
 
AVAILABLE FUNDS:  Available funds refer to other funds available for appropriation 
by the Town Meeting, such as Wetland Protection funds, Cemetery Lot sales and 
Perpetual Care Interest and old article balances returned to revenue. 
 
OVERLAY, ALSO CALLED ALLOWANCE FOR ABATEMENTS AND EXEMPTIONS: 

The overlay is the amount raised by the Assessors in excess of appropriations and other 
charges for the purpose of creating a fund to cover tax abatements granted and avoiding 
fractions in the tax rate.  It cannot exceed 5% of the levy. 
 
FREE CASH:  Certified each year by the Director of State Bureau of Accounts, this is the 
portion of the fund balance which is available for appropriation by a Vote of Town 
Meeting.  It is not cash, but rather is the approximate total of cash and receivables less 
current liabilities and earmarked reserves. 
 
TRANSFER:  The authorization to use an appropriation for a different purpose; in most 
cases only the Town Meeting may authorize a transfer. 
 
RESERVE FUND:  This fund is established by the voters at an Annual Town Meeting 
only and is composed of an appropriation (not exceeding 5% of the tax levy of the 
preceding year).  Transfers from the Reserve Fund are within the exclusive control of the 
Finance Committee, and are for “extraordinary or unforeseen” situations, normally 
emergencies. 
 
STABILIZATION FUND:  This is a special reserve for future expenditures.  The 
aggregate amount in the fund shall not exceed, at any time, 10% of the valuation in the 
preceding year.  Money may be voted into the fund by a majority vote at Town Meeting.  
Money may be appropriated from the fund only by a two-thirds vote at Town Meeting for 
any municipal purpose. 
 
CHERRY SHEET:  An annual statement received from the State Department of Revenue 
detailing estimated receipts for the next fiscal year from various State Aid accounts and 
estimated charges payable by the assessors in setting the tax rate.  Named for the cherry 
colored paper, which the State traditionally has printed it on. 
 
 

  



 

9 
 

PROPOSITION 2 ½ TERMS 

 
Chapter 59, Section 21C of the Massachusetts General Laws commonly referred to as 
Proposition 2 ½ (Prop. 2 ½) or the Tax Limiting Law for Cities and Towns in 
Massachusetts. 
 
LEVY:  The property tax levy is the revenue a Town can raise through real and personal 
property taxes.  The property tax levy is the largest source of revenue for the Town. 
 
LEVY CEILING:  This is the maximum the levy limit can be.  The ceiling equals 2.5% 
of the Town’s full and fair cash value. 
 
LEVY LIMIT:  The Maximum the levy can be in a given year.  The limit is based on the 
previous year’s levy limit plus certain allowable increases. 
 
LEVY LIMIT INCREASE:  The levy limit automatically increases each year by 2.5% of 
the previous year’s levy limit. 
 
NEW GROWTH:  New construction and new parcel subdivision may also increase the 
Town’s levy limit. 
 
OVERRIDE:  A community can permanently increase its levy limit by successfully 
voting at a referendum to exceed the limits.  A community may take this action as long as 
it is below the levy ceiling. 
 
GENERAL OVERRIDE:  A general override ballot question can be placed on a 
referendum if a majority of the Board of Selectmen vote to do so.  If the ballot question is 
approved by a majority of the voters, the Town’s levy limit is permanently increased by 
the amount voted at the referendum.  The levy limit increase may not exceed the Town’s 
levy ceiling.  Override questions must be presented in dollar terms and specify the 
purpose. 
  
DEBT EXCLUSION:  This override ballot question can be placed on a referendum by a 
two-thirds vote of the Board of Selectmen.  If a majority of the voters approve the ballot 
question the Town’s levy limit is increased only for the amount voted at the referendum 
for the life of that debt only.  The levy limit increase may exceed the Town’s levy ceiling. 
 
CAPITAL OUTLAY EXPENDITURE EXCLUSION:  This override ballot question can 
be placed on a referendum by a two-thirds vote of the Board of Selectmen.  If a majority 
of the voters approve the ballot question the additional amount for the payment of the 
capital project cost is added to the levy limit or levy ceiling only for the year in which the 
project is being undertaken. 
 
CONTINGENT VOTES:  Chapter 634 of the Acts of 1989 permits a Town Meeting to 
appropriate funds contingent upon passage of a referendum question (OVERRIDE).  A 
contingent vote does not automatically result in an override referendum.  An override 
referendum can only be called by the Board of Selectmen.  If a referendum is called by 
the Selectmen it must take place within forty-five days of the Town Meeting vote. 

 

 



 

10 
 

 

MUNICIPAL FINANCE TERMS RELATED TO CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

 
Capital Planning: (See Capital Improvements Program) 
 
Capital Budgeting An appropriation or spending plan that uses borrowing or direct outlay 
for capital or fixed asset improvements. Among other information, a capital budget 
should identify the method of financing each recommended expenditure, i.e., tax levy or 
rates, and identify those items that were not recommended. (See Capital Asset, Fixed 
Asset) 
 
Capital Outlay The exchange of one asset (cash) for another (capital asset), with no 
ultimate effect on net assets. Also known as "pay as you go," it is the appropriation and 
use of available cash to fund a capital improvement, as opposed to incurring debt to cover 
the cost. 
 
Capital Assets – All tangible property used in the operation of government, which is not 
easily converted into cash, and has an initial useful live extending beyond a single 
financial reporting period. Capital assets include land and land improvements; 
infrastructure such as roads, bridges, water and sewer lines; easements; buildings and 
building improvements; vehicles, machinery and equipment. Communities typically 
define capital assets in terms of a minimum useful life and a minimum initial cost. (See 
Fixed Asset) 
 
Capital Improvements Program – A blueprint for planning a community's capital 
expenditures that comprises an annual capital budget and a five-year capital program. It 
coordinates community planning, fiscal capacity and physical development. While all of 
the community’s needs should be identified in the program, there is a set of criteria that 
prioritizes the expenditures. 
 
Fixed Assets – Long-lived, tangible assets such as buildings, equipment and land 
obtained or controlled as a result of past transactions or circumstances. 



 

10 
 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

TOWN OF HARWICH 

ANNUAL TOWN MEETING 

May 6, 2019 

 
BARNSTABLE, ss: 
 
To either of the Constables of the Town of Harwich in said county, 
 
         Greetings: 
 
In the name of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts you are hereby directed to notify and 
warn the inhabitants of said Town qualified to vote in elections and Town affairs to meet 
in the Community Center Gymnasium, 100 Oak Street in said Town on May 6, 2019 at 
7:00 P.M., then and there to act on the following articles: 
 

ARTICLES 

 
TOWN OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES 

 
ARTICLE 1: To choose various Town Officers and Committees.  Customary Article 
 

REPORTS OF TOWN OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES 
 

ARTICLE 2: To hear reports of all Town Officers and Committees for the year 2018.  
Customary Article 
 

ELECTED OFFICIALS SALARIES 
 

ARTICLE 3:  To see if the Town will vote the salaries of the Elected Officials of the Town 
for fiscal year commencing July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2020 as follows and to act 
fully thereon.  Estimated cost: $124,474. 
 

Selectmen (5) $2,400 each 
Moderator $1,000 
Water Commissioners (3) $1,000 each 
Library Trustees (7) $1,000 each 
Town Clerk                 $101,474 

 
TOWN FY 20 OPERATING BUDGET 

 
ARTICLE 4: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available 
funds or borrow such sums of money as may be required to defray Town charges for Fiscal 
Year 2020, and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Board of Selectmen.  (BUDGET – 
SEE APPENDIX B). Estimated Cost: $39,759,420. 
 



 

11 
 

Operating Budget  

  

Betterments 99,872 

Cable Fund 168,594 

CPA 553,700 

FEMA 13,815 

Free Cash 50,000 

Golf Improvement 139,000 

Overlay Surplus 100,000 

State Aide 687,545 

Water Enterprise 726,219 

Waterways & 

Mooring 310,303 

Subtotal 2,849,048 

  

Local Receipts 13,518,260 

  

Taxes 23,392,113 

  

Operating Budget 39,759,420 

 

Explanation This article is a customary article to appropriate funding for the fiscal year 

2020 operating budget of the town.  The operating budget includes a provisional 

appropriation for the first year payment on General Obligation Debt associated with the 

Lower County Road Project to be presented in Article 20.  If the Lower County Road 

Project fails to reach approval at either Town Meeting or Ballot Vote and the Operating 

Budget passes then the appropriation associated with the first year debt payment will be 

removed.  A complete summary of the FY 2020 Budget can be found in Appendix B. 

 
MONOMOY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT FY 20 BUDGET 

 
ARTICLE 5: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available 
funds or borrow such sums of money as may be required to pay for the Monomoy 
Regional School District Assessment for Fiscal Year 2020, and to act fully thereon.  By 
request of the Monomoy Regional School Committee and Superintendent.  Estimated cost: 
$26,754,276. 

MRSD Budget  

  

Operating Budget 24,280,721 

Transportation 554,789 

Capital 260,748 

Debt - High School 1,658,018 

Total 26,754,276 



 

12 
 

CAPE COD REGIONAL TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT FY20 BUDGET 
 

ARTICLE 6: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available 
funds or borrow a sufficient sum of money as may be required to pay for the Cape Cod 
Regional Technical High School District Assessment for Fiscal Year 2020, and to act fully 
thereon.  By request of the Cape Cod Regional Technical High School District.  Estimated 
cost: $2,332,198. 
 

CCRTHS Budget  

  

Operating Budget 1,421,763 

Debt - New School 910,435 

Total 2,332,198 

 
Explanation: This assessment includes funding for our portion of the construction of the 

new facility.  This is the first installment of debt service.  Voters approved a debt exclusion 

for this project. 

 
FY20 WATER BUDGET 

 
ARTICLE 7: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available 
funds or borrow such sums of money as may be required to defray Water Department 
Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2020, and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Water 
Commissioners and Superintendent.  Estimated cost: $4,327,977.36. 
 
Explanation: Water Budget is an Enterprise operation funded from water rates and fees 

only. 

 
FY20 WASTEWATER/SEWER BUDGET 

 
ARTICLE 8: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available 
funds or borrow such sums of money as may be required to defray the Wastewater/Sewer 
Department Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2020, and to act fully thereon.  By request of 
the Board of Selectmen.  Estimated cost: $225,000. 
 
Explanation: The FY19 Budget included this budget in the amount of $70,000.  It is 

anticipated that due to the small number of initial users that the town will need to subsidize 

payments obligated to Chatham IMA for use of their plant.  This budget increase to 

$125,000 is taxpayer supported.  The FY 2020 Budget will be used to fund a $75,000 

Program Administrator to help in transition.  The D/H/Y efforts would be funded with 

$25K and $25K to amend the CWMP.  $100,000 from Free Cash would be used to fund a 

program to help connection costs for income eligible people through the County. 

 
 
 
 



 

13 
 

ADOPT THE CAPITAL PLAN  
 

ARTICLE 9:  To see if the Town will vote to adopt the Capital Plan for the ensuing seven 
year period as adopted last year by the Town Meeting with new fiscal year 2026 as 
proposed by the Board of Selectmen and set forth below or as amended by vote of the 
Town Meeting, and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Board of Selectmen.  
(APPENDIX C) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



OLIVA L &kW 2112 5 :9:1/526:TEM$&11.591.5.50j213 
	

3j2212011 
211kIfiftil 
	

Fr. 	 NEL 
	

Fr1 
	

Fr .8 
	

ir e 
	

FT/5 
AffillrilS1FATkra . 
limn Fl 	.Ii Cermir ALItildegek Peiftd. 	 _ I 	)11.101 • 

Harm rh Colter MR cdpwalk Pro. AL.41031515rant00111 cfallimil I 	- _ 
ILCITIn Hi 	d, Ierner Irisenm TED 
Amin Mu Hum • Fkre1411.1:475 ILO 
!Iznik' Derr C.ilifireltrneridliri-203 Dab i heti mil Pniurt Lai In-moment $ 	KM 
Airmln Waimea! Fiarisi-xtkm III 21 511LtuFlanykllati5LFF•LaromiLRII PUN 
111r4lri Inlifilp Pi MrdtrAkin lit 21 5110.b514amitipat(i•FplerptikiWNT 

1 

Tin In Maim! 11.5a.rnipp:tIrramL31:ntel Hawlr 4 Dolman 31. 24 $ 	- I. 	450,0X1 
Ailailri kii1iii4i *Ago coheir! Forger Wen Harkidl3olgla, Ith Mel $ 	24 Ha Ha 
.11.11 N In Opal Fkw I. 	Flo. tr.SIte Pin Evand Erldns la 17 P TEC 
;11.0 PI II% fillWM1 ii$ PIP t.116:0111:1JhInkrireFindS.51.FirmiDinnial rip 	' iia - —.  • 

AA Ill;  LIxL 	13 ll't 6.111..11 tt min E•ul ding apt Milt!' Ea MINICII 
.1LinO. friimiciiiRhil Ink Er' Heel Reillawrer.1 SePpigkile 3 	MOO i' 	NAV 5 	1116 $ UM 5 ION MAXI 5 	WM 
CCM [Fn. i • - —1 cirmi re Fr: 14.rlal 5npoj %pull:Cal Ihi4613 F-glrelanjoriu 	 I{ ll$57K bid V . 	L 3 .1,41XI 
Ceritiirr .11rl:OrkimParrtf.errele-idappii; sni S317mre IL L La 5 	1ttlX0 
1:015 5 6T0.11015 . 	. . 
Onienilko _. min•rktA•i115111 Reg 1.51:kf Ikirolt.'j $ 	3s1.0111 $ a 
Cros•-patko Awe 513klea dmiirrre adman ipd Mix Ela.wl $ 	1.1.001X1 $ 	- _ 

1 ENGIN EMI Ida 
ErirerroTh Y191.F.lui AM 5.1rIzot Dralrop Nam rEl Iropn:4a Tent $ 	4:1IXKI L 	1-EIDAt 3 MAI S Utati I 
Fill' FOR r.-C PP: 
FrilbrIlh r.-UFIli In a k mat Fxd ?itONkle.M.I.Orrpiai.2131.31 Ire p a* t Tent $ 	ZONA $ 	IUDS $ 	35 335 
FKIIII !Ida r..-13Fili Fr efro Ilaaapr•anrAihri IrDolo.Lbra 	MK 5 	fa ia _ 
FAIN Igir..-DPPi -iptplapi Barr raki21 Neil- Vatisimp $ 	Xifi.mo 
FAL.' liark•OPIK DPINFadaks aii Padank silp ifis..reflyskomyi - S 	1.M.130' 
F5riki NirrI)PPI )14.5%kiAtuFir Ileill-q:  - 4 	15.1311 

 

FAL.' Iblar,OFMi Ehsalz L.Inaillprl J 	115 NI 
Faclilahl“.-Dfir 0.11ipi'Ceritr-ExilerReplImment $ 	]E. $ - 5 	• 
FAL.' klaa.-11171 Cullora Ccnter• 'Moir.... • - atenst$Lsh'ilici:km dal Fp Lill S - ... - • • 
F5C Da NIPP.-DfW 0.111pli Cerkel -MlirpAiiiitumart-ratkantiMrd I; rb.rt-ANr nom $ 	. $ - $ AXI.IWI 5 
F•111:Filia.-111rW Cortimmi:9 trilti Gamin' I. 	Mal 
Mtn! Fii-E-Elar Orririgii!DIIIII F:011Ve450lei itePlipXy rEixe $ 	MAO 
Failtg lillls.-Errt Enrprmi., teilti 1 tandensikg LlriLiard.ki Minders VIM • 
FiciVIIP.-0F+1 51:L1'19.111y Wily Rcalleplicmi g - $ ZIONV 
Farm Wir.-DPO 	'Afar! kit. Prplaterr er I. $ 

5 
MR 5. 	- . 
=WI il — 	• F.xliu idNr..prilm 	Car ma! Cillmi likiNTR.ppipcinicit 

 

1
4
 

 

 



N.. dr.. . r -F2Vi Er FP 2) Fig L. Fr 22 FP z.5 FL241 Fez FP 
H111 
R . t Pha sr 3. Taer..• I t Fr za.IF mkt a . i F re Ram Sys-krn (Ph. "HI 5- 	411.1.3 S 	• 5 	- 5 - $ • $ 	. 5 . 
R.. Ana- 3. Treer...... Fr Al.. la a . 1 F Irk Rai . S•pmen (F.kna II 5. 	- 5- 	21:0.114) 5 	3(4111IP S MI AN 6 .201).= $ 	mac. 5 • 
H•e 1.:4:1m HQ S. 	- i. 	600M 
li.e kr White P t p bRiven1 h tprxn 5- 	- 5 	!UM 5 • Mii.ii $ 	- WM 
Fl.t Mix' Ednodm iqulorert•I 'from FL Merl 1;53-4hal 5- 	SAN $ 	. 	5 • 
R ... hub. ELIn GI Min .Equl s rent - I haeleralp 	Gra rtF . re .4 RAW) 5- 	150W1  $ 	- 	5 - 
R1 11.I. 11.1. RE9LNArro r I • . lirt.- 	.um Fkirpiedkof • 	 . 5 	- 5. 	ZOOM  j 	-  5 - 
li di Nth lieplat ar er I Pray • Ti - ITaleralfii rk •Srat .1  1. ncled Portr0 	S 5 	NIVIV $ 	- 5 .. . 
Fi..e Popper aid =Ler Rapist CM psi:M*3 Pin pe Italder ta.led COM 	$ 	. 5 	1,13AIM 
R ... Ladder Truck I mpl az. met (Sh. Axel . I $ 	- 5 - 5. - 
HOLF _ _ 
Golf Milterlterarisr 11:2 rime Lorstl4 rs in lane) T 	MAKI  
soli kid Mn'. D rL Pag plal t HAIL% Fi 2ft I IA FM.. b F131.15 2.1:)11F1 ill 	I 5 	93,14K1 5 	3 E .DDI 
6:11 1.1 HUE hl ming Egulp.r.ef I Ferr Lass. 5 	17,1513 5 	EOM $ 	17,1513 5 •117,1155 S KM 
MI Iregii:Eirrerd575 Metal. Wr.ing.PANV 5 	51.:U 
•tilf Herr 1 	hi illPIEPS.M101.111 Ali Pnljekil 5 	Mal $ 	HUM 
&If Gall fsorseIntrI Er 1..pmale $ 	. $ 	- $ 	. $ ?WI • $ )5,1KI $ 	)1...1:01 $ TE4iii 
HA I EC kill. AMER 
11141x.yermr Nib le ri-v-klaroli 1i'  I e pro ow LI s $ 	70.8:10 - 
Ha rIximuler 46e - li 	. itaiteibent. I •• 	. 	• avl -Ea i nro Elia 4 - 5 MIX' 5 10:50X1  
Ph rkerr. an Er Ale. H rb:r Jen Aercru. rutko Ilituly, beir rid tar•strielia I 5 	57 5 	2I.'*I IN S 

Ha rlxm ai I N. 5.1111.11aixr 1.13-11 I Earl ii 1.1..ad I 3iinsi us Areal Fa ams-ruthar. 5 • 5 	3 5-3. Ha S 1,3ego 
Hi 1 karip i I kr NV meth Camar H a r5 s 1 II nhicIng 6 	• 5 • 5 5 13. 13{1 
Ph rlx.rn. n I Er Ilsi•rigfte BullhelifFlepitarrrtri ISIp$R Dt-,,IV irislOmir.FFikirk. --  5 	- $ 	• • 44,140 	5 
LE PAN _ 
ilra-e lfrayIrWrchirdioltca.41.toroadns 5 	. $ 	41.1.13 3 5.3.1.3.3 
Moan' Irgolu.L tr. rp 511......11 13 pa r a t i 51 rm. lizaFer 1.... rl or Reme...11..9 5 	ii3,151X1 . 	- . 	.. 
PiAlln ill 
IF a ming HELEN I' -msliPTHEisInglanniirkr ISMICIalnsi SAHLFDal Ca) 5 	3.tati TIND TM TM MD la_ _ 	__ 
P a p ring Lod thripotherme H am ll histe 
P pew Lreal 12......mr.areaela Rah LI pelate• $ 
10_1•2 E 
Mke Neer II t p ... rer.et 15 ri 1 Prrirm. - 2 di A 3.p..7 go NS $ 	biXti $ 	KM , Tr en •5 	MOM $ - 1I F 

1 

 

1
5
 

 

 



pi/vv.. 1 OM an an an. az a.gi ff_g 	
- 	

!rl'. 2  1  
Fillalf 111311.5 

1 
PaFelikulu 371sr Is5d laiiknar re Mn 111,4Xl.in $ 	1,440.= .5 	Llikal $ 	MEMO $ 	3.45LNI S 	E,4041313 I S 	:.+30.4.13 

11.1:40031.3 Weil Harrill Rapm31 Behrp2S1 In F5.3D&Cens-1udlurv.i) :Fil F J IA .5 	- $ 	$E.A.L 
Weil lismil Raute21.0.eicatrei-Jiirrrola It. hods! .5 	. $ 	5.61X.IXC  

PrkiciNcrks dwercorkiRoillNi4lmjficiFederalT Phoig 5 	5.360.115 
:SI ADM Illm$TWFIgadrlialroimarmoXitiPSHINI.J.K. 

Fi.b1r.Woris limit 11.114airritayeaal imiaismi lintelo* $ 	- $ 	IMMO 
1:14•5;.? ?0& 1-111W4 1.1n1 Meld 5.1:41- Irephin lksfirliv Id imlearril ._ 
1:111=WINIS lYkeilli.l.alql Wen kir Lutiriellliz• X.013 
Ps k i E Wats F-Drd FARM' rip MK' - 042 MIX, 
FilrieNorlis 2-0111}Tim kers-PIM-ea:hi 5 	IMO*  
Ph11:VOr10 	..... .101:0.5n 5.0.m.cerE0+lviiii PorprlYedtir -Higihriv AL 5 	MIX* 
Pli i I= WIY14 	lih di Ili-Fri In a] Mil 	,lie - _ 5. 	35.5101 $ 	335,01* $ 	$31..1.113 5 	mem $ 	mac $ 	BIAS 
Ill 6.5130.1 	. . 
tit I fauth 	F1-nsalt glsEpl Imo P•Olir% I. 1 i Prni Ill Mita $ 	1.13,011 5. 	• $ 	- 5 
Km *141.PA 	541$ Nraller~Sa'EPIAlliii lercrcii troth $ 	1.311:11.1 MI i $ 	, 
LK I Youth 	Yilliimilausa lids Sa.rmisard Piplariewrylahre Idalinf $ 	55.1:411 
11.K1170.1111 	Red Pk- Lesti Bulie Di Igixrdignii•rrn is-1.7.116mA Ito 5- 	7d 
1iC6141.10 	rail'IX0114LA 52.11:1 lesliiiin 1. 	• 5 	I 

T liRSTEWATER 
leirmoter 	DifeCar rp.ri re Itstrer;hip • tE 411, 1x • sire n0 . . 
P is! IA xer 	liaeofch 11 Is ielpal.e 1 TR.:we iiii PM. DPI INA KR 1103g1

-  
$ 	- 1 	- $ 	4.IXd kill 

'11 ifj FA ger EVAYPPhaskaPliwarteahtdcedillialleiki-3 EOM cf. 54s .4%6 GM$ - - i 	L.130.*XI 5 	:.5.31:010 $ 
lasirmater 	- EialagePhaiir.0 Immo In$crim Pali 1 ArIrraikm fr 	- 5 	akiX ) 	MAD $ 	- 
111ATE1 	

— krittlip OM Jilmaer Lint Repkirri I INW bistil win illillil lkie:i WEI 
lala. Pk mil Lila Talk •Fl FlpeJ . xerirt $ 	3011,113 
Yid $ 	11.143 . T3 cre-mrxisi 21 Pler. 	Truitt"! PaNltp 
larrY  11.10.kie.lori7 EIE r 150 11bl0 ._. 	. 
iiry n Ivf WAN six, ifi•oh Ha nek i E dish rfo—Ba a ail nip.% kyi iv • E S 	• 5 	500.011 - 	- $ 	Mow 

aw MI FrniSuperlkiteMS3fkpkte r.-,di 1 Inck.Elngt nip hip K551. 
VI f•er RtenWilii Mir Replmefflotacrivla dreg D•Sii IMI55reenXi rid PM 5 	313.03 S 	2.401Z 
VIIVW Slide I Eileraiu 5 	5.1 1:03 5 	• $ 	- 
• rea• Yarlaw 'V.2E3.33:I Palmer I $ 	135.1:411 
Water P1ismr1 bit On rue Tai.F:rhaiiirim $ 	• 	5 	. I. 	3 J 53 Lig S. 	• 
II ma' PP i m 1 Ehscol I p I 9 e I PiFes kr Vlasierplan VI Mt al la ot --• - T 	3 MOMI

.1. 
.5 	• 5 	- $ 	- 

4T. w tar strlk-FE INLIVII 3131 gab4S-11:15 Pipe Prq IZt I MI 
VI ater Velik-lekepl.serres12 I F:rykse Lakill Ilimperim Fr Mxdfr Wm 13NA $ 	' 4 	• $ 	MAD 5- 	)5,11,11,3 

 

1
6
 

 

 



S 	 

 

17 
 

LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENTS 

 

ARTICLE 10:  To see if the Town will vote to enter into various lease purchase financing 
agreements for town equipment included in the operating budget for FY 2020, said leases 
may be for a term not to exceed the useful life of the equipment as determined by the 
Board of Selectmen; and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Board of Selectmen.   
 
Explanation: The Municipal Modernization Act of 2016 contains a new section requiring a 

recommendation by the Town Administrator and a two-thirds vote of the legislative body to 

authorize a tax-exempt lease purchase agreement.  To qualify under this new section a 

qualifying lease must be in excess of three years, must not exceed the useful life of the 

equipment,  must establish a nominal residual value of the equipment at the end of the 

lease, and must be approved by a two-thirds vote of Town Meeting.  

 

ADMINISTRATION 

 
CAPITAL EQUIPMENT AND PUBLIC WORKS ITEMS FUNDED FROM FREE CASH 

ITEMS UNDER $50,000 
 

ARTICLE 11:  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from 
available funds or borrow a sufficient sum of money to fund the items in the table below 
included in the FY 2020 Capital Plan, and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Board of 
Selectmen.  Estimated cost: $136,874. 
 

1 ADA Compliance Plan Improvements $20,564 

2 Community Center Compressors $20,000 

3 Phase III Town-wide Radio System                        $20,000 

4 Auto Extraction Equipment  $100,000 

 Auto Extraction State Grant (appropriation deducted from Grant) ($95,000) 

5 Taser Replacement (5-yr lease program) $14,910 

6 Traffic Speed Monitoring Radar $26,400 

7 Harwich Center ADA Sidewalk Project (Town match toward Grant) $30,000 

 Gross Total less Grants $136,874 

 

FACILITY MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR FUND 

 
ARTICLE 12: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available 
funds or borrow a sufficient sum of money as may be required to defray costs related to 
Facility and Grounds Maintenance and Repair included in the FY 2020 Capital Plan, and to 
act fully thereon. By request of the Board of Selectmen. Estimated cost $774,750. 

 



 

18 
 

 
FUND SNOW AND ICE DEFICIT FOR FY19 

 
ARTICLE 13 : To see if the Town will vote to transfer from available funds a sufficient 
sum of money to fund the Fiscal Year 2019 Snow and Ice Deficit Account, and to act fully 
thereon.  By request of the Board of Selectmen.  Estimated cost $ 325,000. 
 

FUND BUDGET SHORTFALLS IN BUDGET TRANSFERS FOR FY19 
 

ARTICLE 14: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available 
funds or borrow a sufficient sum of money to fund shortfalls in various FY 19 budget and 
fund transfers, and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Town Administrator and Finance 
Director.  Estimated cost: $100,000. 
 
Explanation: The Water Department discovered serious conditions on pipes by the Lothrop 

Street Tank that needed immediate repair.  Funding may come from within the Water 

Budget or from retained earnings. 

 

WATER DEPARTMENT 

 
PURCHASE/REPLACE MINI EXCAVATOR FOR WATER DEPARTMENT 

 
ARTICLE 15: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available 
funds and/or borrow a sufficient sum of money to purchase/replace a John Deere 35D Mini 
Excavator or equivalent, and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Water Commissioners 
and Superintendent.  Estimated cost: $64,000 
Explanation: The existing John Deere 35D was purchased in 2005 and has over 5000 

hours of use. It has been determined the Pins/Turntable need to be replaced which will 

cost more than $11,000. The current trade in value for the machine is $15,000.  The 

replacement cost is $64,000 with anticipated trade in value of $14,000. The net cost is 

estimated at $50,000. 

 
PLEASANT LAKE AVENUE TANK – FULL REPLACEMENT 

 
ARTICLE 16: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available 
funds and/or borrow a sufficient sum of money to increase the diameter of the water main 
entering the Pleasant Lake Tank including vertical pipe at the base of the tank into the tank 

1 Highway Barn Metal Roof  $260,750 

2 Cultural Center Subsidy $125,000 

3 203 Bank Street Parking Improvements - demolition $60,000 

4 Wixon Dock Landside Improvements $70,000 

5 Allen Harbor Jetty Design $57,000 

6 Brooks Library Sidewalk Repair $90,000 

7 Pleasant Road Beach Parking Lot Paving $112,000 

 TOTAL $774,750 



 

19 
 

and minor structural modifications, and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Water 
Commissioners and Superintendent.  Estimated cost: $300,000 
Explanation: The existing 12" pipe fill pipe is undersized. When attempting to fill the tank 

pressure in the distribution system can exceed 120 PSI. As a result, the tank cannot be 

filled to its 1.5 million gallon capacity and limits the ability to utilize the tank to control 

pumping operations. 

 
REPLACE THE T1 MAIN FACILITY GENERATOR AT CHATHAM ROAD 

 
ARTICLE 17: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available 
funds and/or borrow a sufficient sum of money to replace the T1 Main Facility Generator 
located on Old Chatham Road, and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Water 
Commissioners and Superintendent.  Estimated cost: $65,000 
 
Explanation: The existing generator was installed in 2005 and has failed to operate in 

critical times of need multiple times in the past year. This generator is responsible for 

providing backup power to the SCADA System (controls, monitors, & alarms for the water 

system) and 3 water production wells.  

 
PURCHASE A 2019 FORD F-550 TRUCK 

 
ARTICLE 18: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available 
funds or borrow a sufficient sum of money to purchase a 2019 Ford F-550 or equivalent, 
and to act fully thereon.  This vehicle will replace a 2005 F-350 Dump Truck.  By request 
of the Water Commissioners and Superintendent.  Estimated cost: $76,551. 
 
Explanation: The new vehicle is estimated to cost $76,551 less anticipated trade in the 

value of $6,551. The vehicle to be replaced has considerable rot to the frame & dump 

body. In the past year the oil pan and PTO that controls the dump body had to be replaced. 

It has been determined by the DPW’s vehicle maintenance division the F-350 should be 

replaced due to the following: 

• Frame and body rust/rot is progressing rapidly. 

• Seat and seat belt attaching points are rotting. 

• The dump body has holes in the floor that will get larger with use. 

• The tailgate on the dump body does not fit correctly. 

• The subframe for the dump body is rotting. 

• The oil pan is rusty/flaking, will need replacement. Cab off procedure. 

 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

 
PURCHASE AND EQUIP VEHICLES FOR THE DPW 

 
ARTICLE 19: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available 
funds and/or borrow a sufficient sum of money to purchase and equip the following 
vehicles: 
 



 

20 
 

       (1) One Ton Dump Truck (Highway)    $   80,000 
       (1) Johnston Sweeper Body/Pony Motor (Highway)   $ 125,000 
       (2) C&D Trailers (Disposal)                $ 150,000 
       (1) Rolloff Pup Trailer (Disposal)     $   40,000 

              $395,000 

 
and to further authorize the trade-in or sale of the following old vehicles toward  
the purchase price, where the Board of Selectmen find that the vehicles cannot be 
utilized elsewhere in Town: 
 
   1999 Ford F-350 Dump Truck 
         2009 Great Lakes Pup Trailer 
 
and to act fully thereon.  By request of the DPW Director.  Estimated cost: $395,000 
 
Explanation: 

One Ton Dump Truck - The current 1999 Ford dump truck has approximately 160,600 

miles on it, is in poor condition, and is a front line vehicle used for snow removal and 

moving personnel and equipment. 

 

Johnston Sweeper Body/Pony Motor - The truck/chassis of our 2007 Johnston Sweeper 

are in good condition, while to sweeper body and pony motor are failing.  Replacing the 

body and pony motor would save us in excess of $150,000 over purchasing a new sweeper, 

while prolonging the life for another 10-15 years. 

 

C&D Trailers - This request is to add to our existing fleet of C&D trailers, which are 

utilized daily to transport C&D waste off-Cape.  The additional trailers would enable us to 

better manage that function, which provided the Town with approximately $1.45 million in 

gross revenue in FY18. 

 

Rolloff Pup Trailer - We will soon be facing major maintenance on our current 10 year 

old pup trailer, which is used to transport our recycling products off-Cape.  Given the age 

and amount of use this trailer gets, we feel it is not worth spending the money required for 

the necessary maintenance. 

 
RECONSTRUCTION OF LOWER COUNTY ROAD 

 
ARTICLE 20: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from 
available funds and/or borrow in accordance with Ch.44 of the M.G.L., or any other 
enabling authority, the sum of $4,560,475 to fund the Reconstruction of Lower 
County Road including all costs incidental and related thereto, as requested in the 
Capital Plan for FY20.  The appropriation authorized by this vote shall not take 
effect until the Town votes to exempt from the limitations on total taxes imposed by 
M.G.L. ch.59, §21C (Proposition 2 ½) the amounts required to pay the principal of 
and the interest on any borrowing authorized under this article.  And further, in 
accordance with Chapter 44, Section 20 of the General Laws, the premium received 



 

21 
 

by the Town upon the sale of any bonds or notes thereunder, less any such premium 
applied to the payment of the costs of issuance of such bonds or notes, may be 
applied to pay project costs and the amount authorized to be borrowed for each such 
project shall be reduced by the amount of any such premium so applied, and to act 
fully thereon. By request of the DPW Director.  Estimated cost: $4,560,475 
 
Explanation: The road is in poor condition, with structural defects in its base and a 

sidewalk that is not ADA compliant. The sheer scope of the project is more than we could 

handle under our County Bid Road Construction items and the cost is more than could be 

absorbed within our road maintenance plan.  Although Lower County Road is eligible for 

State funding in the Transportation Improvement Program, there is no way to meet the 

Complete Streets criteria (sidewalks and bike lanes on both sides of the street) within the 

Town’s 40’ right of way.  Since the Water Department completed the $1.2M worth of water 

main replacements, the road is in utter shambles and in dire need of this project.  The 

funding is coming from two sources.  The first $4,560,475 from the Debt Exclusion; and 

$1.0 million from the Road Maintenance Program. 

 
PURCHASE OF A MOBILE LIFT SYSTEM 

 
ARTICLE 21: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available 
funds or borrow a sufficient sum of money to purchase and equip the following: 
 
   Mobile Lift System (Vehicle Maintenance)   
 
and to act fully thereon.  By request of the DPW Director.  Estimated cost: $90,475 
 
Explanation: Mobile Lift System - Our current lifts are unable to lift larger vehicles, such 

as fire trucks and road tractors and waste trailers, complicating required maintenance.  

The mobile lift system would allow us to safely elevate all vehicles in the Town fleet. 

 
ROAD MAINTENANCE PROGRAM 

 
ARTICLE 22: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate and/or transfer 
from available funds, and/or borrow the sum of $700,000 to fund the Road 
Maintenance Program as requested in the Capital Plan for FY20, including but not 
limited to Lower County Road and all costs incidental and related thereto. The 
appropriation authorized by this vote shall not take effect until the Town votes to 
exempt from the limitation on total taxes imposed by M.G.L. c.59 § 21c 
(Proposition 2 ½ ) the amounts required to pay the principal of and the interest on 
any borrowing authorized under this article. And further, in accordance with Chapter 
44, Section 20 of the General Laws, the premium received by the Town upon the 
sale of any bonds or notes thereunder, less any such premium applied to the payment 
of the costs of issuance of such bonds or notes, may be applied to pay project costs 
and the amount authorized to be borrowed for each such project shall be reduced by 
the amount of any such premium so applied, and to act fully thereon.  By request of 
the DPW Director.  Estimated cost: $700,000. 



-  -  -  -  

-  -  -  -  

-  

-  

-  

-  

 

22 
 

 

Explanation: The capital request for road maintenance is for $700k for FY20, which we 

anticipate being augmented by approximately $700k in Chapter 90 funds.  The capital 

project request form lists 5 years of our road maintenance plan with cash flows of 

approximately $1.4M each year and has our 5 year Road Maintenance Plan attached.   

 

ZONING/PLANNING BOARD 

 
SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING WITH ACCESSORY APARTMENT 

 
ARTICLE 23: To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town’s Zoning Bylaw, as 
follows: 
 
(i) By amending ARTICLE V, Use Regulation, §325.13.A, Paragraph I, Residential 
Uses, namely Table 1, Use Regulations, Paragraph I – Residential Uses, Use No. 10, 
Single-family dwelling with accessory apartment, as follows (deletions shown in strike-
through and proposed language in bold underline):   

 

Table 1, Use Regulations 

 
Use RR RL RM RH-

1 
RH-
2 

RH-
3 

CV CH-
1 

CH-
2 

IL MRL MRL-
1 

WR 

Paragraph IV – Residential Uses 

10 Single-
family 
dwelling 
with 
accessory 
apartment 
(§325-
51H§325-
14.T) 

S 

P 

S 

P 

S 

P 

S 

P 
- - 

S 

P 

S 

P 
- - 

S 

P 

S 

P 

S 

P 

 
and 
 
(ii) By renumbering and repositioning with the Zoning Bylaw ARTICLE X, 
Administration and Enforcement, §325-51.H, Single-family dwelling with accessory 
apartment, as and to ARTICLE V, Use Regulation, §325-14.T, Single-family dwelling 
with accessory apartment; and 
 

(iii) By amending said Article X, Administration and Enforcement, §325-51.H, Single-
family dwelling with accessory apartment, now ARTICLE V, Use Regulation, §325-14.T, 
Single-family dwelling with accessory apartment, as follows (deletions shown in strike-
through and proposed language in bold underline): 

 

T. Single-family dwelling with accessory apartment. 

(1) Purpose. The intent of permitting accessory apartments is to: 
a. Increase the number of small dwelling units available for rent in Town; 



- 

- - 
- 

 

23 
 

b. Increase the range of choice of housing accommodations; 
c. Encourage greater diversity of population with particular attention to young adults 

and senior citizens; and 
d. Encourage a more economic and energy-efficient use of the Town's housing supply 

while maintaining the appearance and character of the Town's single-family 
neighborhoods. 

 
(2) Definitions. OWNER One or more individuals holding title to the property. 
 
(3) Criteria. for special permit approval. Special permits for single-family dwellings with a 
An accessory apartment is allowable within a single-family dwelling, either attached or 
detached, may be granted upon determination by the Planning Board that provided that 
the following criteria have been met satisfied: 

a. Only one accessory apartment is permitted for each principal dwelling unit. 
b. The accessory apartment may not be held in separate ownership from the principal 

use. 
c. Only one of the principal dwelling or accessory apartment may be rented at any 

given time and, if rented, shall be rented for a term of no less than six (6) 
consecutive months. 

d. The accessory apartment shall have a net floor area not exceeding 1/2 of the net 
floor area of the principal dwelling unit and not more than 900 square feet. 

e. The accessory apartment shall have not more than two bedrooms. 
f. At least one off-street parking space shall be provided for the accessory dwelling 

unit apartment. 
g. The minimum lot area required for a parcel to be eligible for a special permit to 

allow an accessory apartment shall not be less than 15,000 square feet if the parcel 
is situated in a RH-1, CV, CH-1, MRL or MRL-1 District; 20,000 square feet if 
situated in a RL, RM or RR District; and 40,000 square feet if situated in a Water 
Resource (WR) Overlay District. For parcels existing within an approved Open 

Space Residential Development or Cluster Subdivision, the lots size shall be 

consistent with the endorsed plan. 
h. The accessory apartment shall be designed so that, to the degree reasonably 

feasible, the appearance of the property remains that of a single-family property 
with matching materials, colors, window styles and roof design for one structure, if 
the apartment is attached, or for both structures, if the apartment is detached. 

i. The principal dwelling unit and accessory apartment shall meet all wastewater 
treatment requirements for the combined number of bedrooms. 

j. The proposed use shall not create traffic hazards or volume greater than the 
capacity of the streets affected. 

k j. The proposed use shall not exceed the building or site coverage for the zoning 
district. 
l k. If an addition is to be built for the proposed use, the addition shall be set back from 
front, side and rear lot lines the distance required in the zoning district for new 
construction. 



 

24 
 

The Building Commissioner shall determine compliance with said criteria following 

receipt of the application for a building permit for a change of use and/or for 

construction of the said accessory apartment. 

 

(4) The applicant shall record with the Registry of Deeds for Barnstable County a certified 
copy of the special permit decision and the special permit shall lapse if it is not so recorded 
and if it is not duly exercised within two years as provided for under MGL c. 40A, § 9. 
 
(5) Transfer of ownership. The provisions of the special permit may be transferred with 
ownership of the property provided the provisions of this section and all other provisions 
of the Zoning Code of the Town of Harwich and the State Building Code are met and the 
Planning Department has approved a transfer for the special permit. The new owner also 
may request a Planning Board certification for the accessory apartment. To obtain such 
certification, the owner shall submit a written request with a statement that the conditions 
at the time of the original special permit approval remain unchanged and with a 
certification of ownership. The Planning Board certification shall be recorded at the 
Registry of Deeds. 
 
(6) (4) A final determination that the owner has failed to comply with these forgoing 
criteria provisions or the termination of occupancy by the owner of the subject property 
shall be evidence that the rights and benefits conferred hereunder the special permit were 
abandoned or otherwise surrendered and discontinued by the owner and all such rights and 
benefits shall lapse are null and void and the elements that make the accessory apartment 
a separate dwelling unit shall be removed from the property within 90 days of said final 
determination, with the owner to comply with all requirements of the State Building Code 
and Town Zoning in removing elements determined to be unpermitted; and to act fully 
thereon.  By request of the Planning Board 
 

FREE-STANDING PORTABLE SIGNS 

 

ARTICLE 24: To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town’s Zoning Bylaw §325-2 
Word usage and definitions and by addition a new §325-26.K as follows 
 
Within §325-2 delete the existing definition of “A-Frame/Easel/Sandwich-Board Signs” 
and replace with the following definition: 
 
 “FREESTANDING PORTABLE SIGN” – A single or double-faced, self-supporting sign 
made of wood, cardboard, plastic, metal or other lightweight and rigid material.  
 
And, add a new §325-26.K to read as follows: 
K.  Freestanding Portable Sign. 

(1) A sign permit from the Building Department shall be required; 
(2) The area of the sign shall be no more than six (6) square feet per side; 
(3) The sign height above the ground shall not exceed three (3) feet; 
(4) The sign width shall not exceed three (3) feet; 



 

25 
 

(5) The sign shall be unlit, shall be inaudible, and shall have no moving parts (except 
any necessary hinge to fold and unfold said sign); 

(6) The sign shall be stable and have no external supports; 
(7) The sign area (one side only) shall count towards the total allowable sign area (in 

square feet) for the business, pursuant to §325-27 
(8) The sign shall indicate no more than the name of the business, a special event, 

hours of operation, sale of a product or service, and price; 
(9) Only one (1) freestanding portable sign per business may be located on a 

property; a business with street frontage on two (2) streets may have no more 
than one (1) such sign on each street front; however, if there are multiple 
businesses on a property, there shall be no more than one (1) such sign per 
business, regardless of the street frontage; 

(10) The sign may only be displayed up to two (2) hours before the business is open to 
the general public and during the time business is open to the general public; and 

(11) The sign shall also comply with the requirements of §325-26.D-G, above; 
 
and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Planning Board 

 

RETAINING WALLS FOR SEPTIC SYSTEMS 
 
ARTICLE 25:  To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town’s Zoning Bylaw §325-16, 
Table 2 and to add a new subparagraph “R. Retaining Wall(s) for Septic Systems” to §325-
18, as follows: 
 
§325-16, Table 2, add a Note “3” to the “Front (feet)”, “Side (feet)”, and “Rear (feet)” 
columns, which shall read as follows: 
 
 “3May be reduced to 10 feet for Septic System pursuant to §325-18.R.” 
And, 
 
§325-18 add a new subsection “R. Retaining Wall(s) for Septic Systems” to read as 
follows: 
 
“R. Retaining Wall(s) for Septic Systems. The provisions of §325-17 notwithstanding, on 
an improved parcel, a retaining wall(s) associated with the installation of a septic system 
(e.g. mounded septic system) required by the Board of Health and/or Title 5, shall be 
setback no less than 10 feet to any lot line; 
 
and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Planning Board 

 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR LIFTING EXISTING STRUCTURE TO NEW AND 
APPROPRIATE ELEVATIONS 

 
ARTICLE 26: To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town’s Zoning Bylaw Article 
XVII – Flood Plain Regulations by 1) changing §325-108 Definitions to §325-109 
Definitions and 2) adding a new §325-108 “Special Provisions for Lifting Existing 



 

26 
 

Structures to New and Appropriate Elevations” and by adding four new definitions, 
alphabetically, to the new §325-109 Definitions, and further to amend §325-2 Word usage 
and Definitions “Building/Structure Height” paragraph B by deleting the existing language 
and replacing it, as follows: 
 
§325-108 Special Provisions for Lifting Existing Structures to New and Appropriate 
Elevations 
  
(1) Notwithstanding the provisions of any other provision of the Harwich Zoning By-law 
to the contrary, except as otherwise provided pursuant to paragraph (3) of this subsection, a 
person shall be allowed to lift an existing structure located in an Area of Special Flood 
Hazard to a new and appropriate elevation, or constructing a staircase or other attendant 
structure necessitated by such raising without the need for Board of Appeals relief, 
provided, however, this exemption shall apply only to the minimum extent or degree 
necessary to allow the structure to meet the new and appropriate elevation with adequate 
means of ingress, egress and accommodation of typical basement facilities. 
  
(2) Appurtenant to lifting an existing structure, the existing structure may be relocated 
elsewhere on the lot as long as said relocation does not create a new, or increase the 
intensity of a setback nonconformity.  
  
(3) The exemption established pursuant to paragraph (1) of this subsection shall not be 
available to a person who has altered or is seeking to alter the original dimensions of a 
structure if, had the alteration not been made, the structure could have been raised to meet 
the new and appropriate elevation either without the exemption or with an exemption of 
lesser degree than is needed with the alteration. 
  
And, 
§325-109 Definitions, as the following: 
 
ATTENDANT STRUCTURE means an area to accommodate utilities, laundry facilities or 
mechanicals which are otherwise typically located within a basement area. 
  
EXISTING STRUCTURE means any commercial or municipal structure or residential 
dwelling that currently exists, or existed prior to the catastrophic event, at the time a 
request is made to elevate. 
  
HIGHEST APPLICABLE FLOOD ELEVATION STANDARD means the one-percent 
(1%) FEMA base flood elevation plus up to an additional three (3) feet. 
  
NEW AND APPROPRIATE ELEVATION means any elevation to which a structure is 
raised, or is to be raised, that is equal to or higher than the applicable FEMA base flood 
elevation, provided, however, in no case shall the new and appropriate elevation exceed the 
highest applicable flood elevation standard. 
 
And, 



 

27 
 

§325-2 Building/Structure Height 
 
B. For a building or structure located within an area of special flood hazard, refer to 
§325-108; 
 
And to act fully thereon.  By request of the Planning Board 

 

PROVIDE FUNDING FOR AN UPDATE OF THE TOWN’S LOCAL 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

 
ARTICLE 27:  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from 
available funds and/or borrow a sufficient sum of money for the updated of the Town’s 
Local Comprehensive Plan, and to act fully thereon.  By Town Planner, Planning Board 
and Town Administrator.  Estimated cost:  $200,000 
 
Explanation: The Local Comprehensive Plan (LCP) was last updated in 2011. The LCP is 

written to be consistent with the Cape Cod Commission Regional Policy Plan, which has 

recently been updated. The LCP is required to be updated every 5 years. The LCP also 

serves as the Master Plan for the Town pursuant to MGL c.41A, §81D “Such plan shall be 

a statement, through text, maps, illustrations or other forms of communication, that is 

designed to provide a basis for decision making regarding the long-term physical 

development of the municipality. The comprehensive plan shall be internally consistent in 

its policies, forecasts and standards, and shall include the following elements:” Growth 

and development Goals and policies statement; Land use plan; Housing; Economic 

development; Natural and cultural resources; Open space and recreation; Services and 

facilities; Transportation, and; Implementation program. The plan serves as a guide to 

future development and needs of Harwich and it also assists the Town with potential grant 

opportunities. 

 

LIBRARY 

 
FUND TECHNOLOGY HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE FOR BROOKS FREE 

LIBRARY 
 

ARTICLE 28:  To see if the Town will vote to transfer from available funds the remaining 
balance of funds contained in the follow articles funded by Free Cash and Appropriation:  
Article 39 of 2011 Annual Town Meeting ($1,037.09), Article 23 of 2014 Annual Town 
Meeting ($13,459.46) and Article 10 of 2017 Annual Town Meeting ($6,826).  Said 
transfer of funds to be used for the purchase and replacement of technology equipment and 
software for the Brooks Free Library, and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Library 
Trustees.  Estimated cost:  $21,322.55 
 
Explanation: The motion to approve this article will re-purpose the remaining balance of 

$1,037.09 in Article 39 of the May 2011 Annual Town Meeting Parking Lot Lights and 

Reconfiguration, $13,459.46 from Article 23 of the May 2014 Annual Town Meeting for 

Library Carpet Replacement, and $6,826 from the $110,000 designated for the Library 



 

28 
 

generator in Article 10 of the May 2017 Annual Town Meeting for Facility Maintenance 

and Repair.  

 

Source of Funds 

 

$1,037.09  Article 39 of the May 2011 ATM - Parking Lot Lights and 

Reconfiguration 

$13,459.46 Article 23 of the May 2014 ATM – Library Carpet Replacement.  

$6,826.00 Article 10 of the May 2017 ATM for Facility Maintenance and 

Repair (funds remaining of the $110,000 designated for Library 

generator)  

_________ 

$21,322.55 

 

GOLF DEPARTMENT 

 
LANDSCAPE RECLAMATION, MAJOR TREE REMOVAL  

 
ARTICLE 29: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer and/or borrow 
a sufficient sum of money from the Golf Improvement Fund to continue landscape 
reclamation and tree removal according to the FY20 Capital Plan, but not restricted to any 
other areas that the Golf Director and the Committee deem necessary, and to act fully 
thereon. By request of the Director of Golf and the Golf Committee. Estimated cost: 
$35,000. 
 
Explanation:  this is the next phase of tree removal specific to the “front side”, holes 1-9.  

Removal of growth that restricts both air and light enhances the playability of these 

fairways as recognized by consultation with the USGA, and with the endorsement of the 

Golf Committee, the Director, and the Superintendent of the Green. 

 
BUNKER RENOVATION AT CRANBERRY VALLEY GOLF COURSE 

 
ARTICLE 30: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer and/or borrow 
a sufficient sum of money from the Golf Improvement Fund to rebuild and renovate hazard 
features according to the FY20 Capital plan at Cranberry Valley Golf Course commonly 
referred to as “Bunkers”, but not be restricted to any other areas that the Golf Director or 
Committee deem necessary, and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Director of Golf 
and the Golf Committee.   Estimated cost $75,000 
 
Explanation:  This type of hazard has a useful life of up to five years.  It is imperative to 

renew and rebuild these important features of our golf operation periodically to insure the 

maximum playability of the golf course. 

 

 

 



 

29 
 

CEMETERY 

 

AMENDMENTS TO CEMETERY RULES AND REGULATIONS 
CEMETERY RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
ARTICLE 31:  To see if the Town will vote to approve the revised Cemetery Department 
Rules and Regulations as submitted by the Harwich Cemetery Commission, and to act 
fully thereon. (Changes are in BOLD UNDERLINED to be added and STRIKEOUTS to 
be DELETED) 

Harwich Cemetery Commission Rules and Regulations of Harwich Cemeteries  

I. Rules 

1.   Town Cemeteries are open daily from dawn to dusk. 

2. No vehicle shall be operated in any part of the cemeteries and at speeds no faster than 
10 MPH. Violators will be subject to a speeding fine.  

3. Recreational motorcycling, roller skating, skateboarding, and/or any other types of 
similar recreational sports are prohibited. The Town is not liable for any injuries 
sustained by any person participating in a recreational activity within Cemetery 
property.  Any activity that encroaches on individual lots or graves is prohibited. 

4. Any person disturbing the quiet and/or order of the grounds by loud noise, speeding, 
or other improper or disorderly conduct, or who shall violate any of these rules, will 
be removed from the grounds and such person will be dealt with as provided by law. 
The entrance of any intoxicated person is prohibited.  

5. No person shall remove, cut, break or mark any tree or shrub; or mark upon, deface, 
or injure any monument or structure on the grounds.  

6. Gravestone repairs or rubbings require prior authorization of the Cemetery 
Commission or its designated agent. A copy of the Association for Gravestones 
Studies Gravestone Rubbings Do’s and Don’ts will be provided.   

7. Firearms shall not be discharged in the cemeteries, except for salutes at military 
funerals, Memorial Day, or Veterans Day.  

II. Interments 

1.   Burial lots in the cemeteries shall be used for no other purpose than a place for the 
interment of the human dead including cremation remains.  

2.   No interment shall be made until the Cemetery Administrator or designee has been 
furnished with a burial permit and/or cremation certificate as required by law, 
together with a written order/interment form from the legal owner, or the legal 
representative of the right of burial in the lot in which interment is to be made. No 
grave shall be opened for interment or removal unless authorized by the Cemetery 
Commission and the area has been flagged by Cemetery personnel. 

3. All interments shall be enclosed in a cement vault except. Infants shall require an 
approved container.  Cremations shall require an urn or other permanent approved 
container.  



 

30 
 

4. Lot usage:  In lots (4’ x 10’) one full burial and one cremation or four cremations.  In 
cremation lots (4’ x 3’) two cremations. 

5. Single Cremation in Harwich Center Cemetery.  Lot usage is for one cremated 
remain for internment in this section (internment rights are from Plan of Land in 
Harwich (Center) “Proposed Cremation Section” map prepared by Harwich 
Engineering Department file # 1529-00. 

  

III. Cemetery Lots 

1.   Cemetery personnel shall furnish, to those who desire to purchase rights of burial in 
lots or graves, information relative to the cost of the same and the conditions upon 
which interments may be made. The owners of rights of burial, or their heirs, shall 
not sell the said exclusive right of burial other than to the Town of Harwich, as 
provided for under MGL Ch.114. Compensation will be no greater than the original 
purchase price.  

2. Assignment of right of burial shall be arranged by first contacting the Cemetery 
Administrator.  An assignment form needs to be completed, notarized and submitted 
to the Cemetery Administrator in order to ensure accurate recording of all 
assignments. 

3. Upon the death of the title owner, a lot passes to heirs-at-law (MGL.Ch.114, s.29) 
unless specifically devised by will or trust (subject to Ch. 190, sec.3). 

6. A full burial lot (minimum 4’x10’) containing recorded remains, may, also, 
accommodate  one cremation burial,  provided the cremation remains be that of an 
heir-at-law or family member of the prior interred remains and be so certified and 
approved by the Commission.   

7. Burial lots for the interment of any indigent resident Veteran are provided at no cost 
and are set aside for burials of Veterans residing in the Town at the time of their entry 
into service and /or at the time of their death verified by the Veterans Agent and 
subject to the approval of the Cemetery Commission.   

8. Single grave space may be made available to the resident parents and without charge 
for the indigent, stillborn or very young infant within the Town at the time of death.  

9. All work performed on graves or lots by the owners, or by their order, shall be 
performed only with prior authorization of Cemetery personnel in order to preserve 
as much as possible the natural appearance of cemeteries. 

10. Maintenance of all plantings and maintenance and removal of all plantings and 
holiday arrangement placed by a lot owner, or designee, is the responsibility of the 
lot owner, and the Cemetery Commission reserves the right to remove any planting 
that becomes unsightly. The Town of Harwich is not liable for items left at a grave, 
or damage to flowers, flags, containers, or monuments due to weather, vandalism, 
theft, or maintenance procedures. All Christmas decorations must be removed by 

January 31st anything left on the grave will be removed by the cemetery 

personnel. 

11. Items left at or on the lots after burial will be removed after one week. 
12. The Above Rules will be strictly enforced. 
13. Annual/perennial flowers must be planted at the base of a monument/marker, so as 

to not interfere with maintenance department procedures. 



 

31 
 

14. Fences, borders, curbing, hedges, trees, rampant-growing plantings and crushed 
stone are prohibited. No signs or lettered wooden boards of any kind are permitted 
on a gravesite, unless prior approval by Cemetery Commission.  Any bench or 
structure needs prior approval by Cemetery Commission before installation. 

15. Masons, stonecutters and all workmen shall at all times be under the control of 
Cemetery Commission and must carry off all rubbish and restore roads, avenues and 
paths, damaged by their operations. The Town of Harwich will not be responsible 
for any errors made by any improper inscription on any memorial.  

16. The Town reserves the right to correct any errors made in the description, transfer or 
conveyance of any interment rights or property, either by canceling such conveyance 
and substituting and conveying in lieu thereof interment property or burial rights of 
equal value and similar location may be selected by Cemetery Commission.    

  
IV. Markers, Headstones, Monuments 

1. SINGLE LOT – 30”width (left to right) x 16” (front to back) and/or two flush 
markers. 

2. CREMATION LOT  
a. Cremation Lot (4’ x 3’) maximum of 2 flush markers measuring 2’ x 1’ per 

marker or 1 marker not to exceed 2’ x 2’.  
b. Harwich Center Cemetery Cremation Lot (size) one flush marker measuring 

8” x 6” with 6” x 4” bronze plaque.  
3. MULTIPLE LOTS – Marker is not to exceed 50% of the width of lot with a base 

depth of 18” maximum and height of 48”.  
4. IN EXISTING CEMETERIES – Where family lots have been established, those 

families will be allowed to add memorials to duplicate the existing markers or 
headstones. 

5. No markers, headstones, monuments, curbing or other structure will be permitted to 
be erected in the cemeteries without a sufficient foundation. All markers, headstones, 
monuments and other structures shall be made of granite, marble, slate, or other 
approved marker. All monuments are to be centered at the head of lot or centered at 
the mid-line. 

6. A marble or granite bench will be allowed on a lot as the only permanent, central, 
inscribed, memorial; therefore both a monument and a bench are not permitted. 

7.   The Cemetery Administrator is required to have written notification prior to any 
foundation work/memorials placement, with all information outlined and submitted 
on a Cemetery Department Monument Permit Order. Prior to the initiation of any 
monument work, the lot must be marked/flagged by Cemetery Department 
personnel. Monuments are required to be set in such manner that they will not 
conflict with the alignment of neighboring monuments.  

8.  Monuments and other structures that are not in compliance are subject to removal 
without notice. 

V. Administration 

Under the administrative direction of the Town Administrator and the policy 
direction of the Cemetery Commissioners, the Cemetery Administrator shall have 



 

32 
 

overall responsibility for the proper administration of Town Cemeteries in 
accordance with these rules and regulations and applicable Federal and State laws. 
The Town of Harwich Home Rule Charter and MGL Ch. 114 establish the Cemetery 
Commission and the appointment of members. Duties of the Cemetery 
Commissioners are proscribed under MGL Ch. 114 S23 and the Town of Harwich 
Home Rule Charter, S 7-15-2. 

VI. Active Cemeteries (Burial space available) 

Evergreen Cemetery, 1403 Orleans Road and 40 Cemetery Road, East Harwich 
Island Pond Cemetery, 15 Island Pond Road, Harwich Center  
Mount Pleasant Cemetery, 95 South Street, Harwich Port 
Kelley Cemetery, 18 Old Brewster Road, North Harwich 
South Harwich Cemetery, 270 Chatham Road, South Harwich 
Pine Grove Cemetery, 32 Pine Grove Road, West Harwich 
North Harwich Cemetery, 610 Depot Street & Main Street Ext., North Harwich 
Harwich Center Cemetery, 686 Main Street, AKA Congregational Church Yard 
Cemetery 

VII. Inactive Cemeteries (No burial lots available for sale) 

Bank Street Burial Ground, Bank Street, near Long Road 
Baptist Church Cemetery, Depot Street & 62 Route 28, West Harwich 
Herring River, West Harwich, Herring River, West Harwich 
Hawks Nest Cemetery, corner of Spruce and Walker Roads, East Harwich 
Lothrop Cemetery, Off Lothrop Ave, West Harwich 
Methodist Church Cemetery, corner Queen Anne Rd. & 15 Church Street, East 
Harwich 
Old Methodist Cemetery, AKA Eldredge Cemetery Queen Anne Rd., East Harwich 
Old Smith Cemetery, Bells Neck Road, West Harwich 
Ryder Cemetery, Route 39 near water tower, Harwich 
Cemetery office is located @ 273 Queen Anne Road 100 Oak Street, mail received 
at Town Hall, 732 Main Street.  Office phone 508-430-7549 Fax 508-430-7598 

 
Explanation:    The Harwich Center Cemetery AKA Congregation Church Yard Cemetery 

per Land Court Decision is not owned by the Town and will need to be removed from the 

Active Cemeteries list.  Cemetery Office is located at the Community Center 100 Oak 

Street. 

 
CEMETERY ARBORETUM PROJECT – MAPPING AND SOFTWARE 

 
ARTICLE 32:  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from 
available funds and/or borrow a sufficient sum of money to fund the Arboretum project at 
the cemetery for the mapping and purchase of software.  To be funded by the Cemetery 
Lot Sales Revolving Fund, and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Cemetery 
Administrator and the Cemetery Commission.  Estimated cost:  $30,110. 
 



 

33 
 

Explanation: This article covers only initial cost to acquire and program.  Ongoing 

maintenance costs in future years amount to $7,000 per year are expected. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 
SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC ENERGY SYSTEMS 

 
ARTICLE 33: To see if the Town will authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter into long-
term leases, licenses, agreements, or other contractual agreements on behalf of the Town, 
subject to such terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen shall deem to be in the best 
interest of the Town, for all or part of any of the following Town-owned properties 
including: 
 

• “As of Right” Site on Queen Anne Road (next to the existing solar field) 

• Cranberry Valley Golf Course (grounds and cart barn) 

• DPW Maintenance Building on Queen Anne Road 

• Community Center on Oak Street parking canopies 

• Public Safety Building ground mount on Sisson Road 

for the purposes of developing, sponsoring, administering, installing, operating, and 
maintaining solar photovoltaic energy systems and supplying solar energy, and further to 
authorize the Board of Selectmen and Town Administrator to take such actions as may be 
necessary under Massachusetts law to effectuate said agreements; and to act fully thereon.  
By Request of the Board of Selectmen. 

 

Explanation:  Town is participating CVEC PUI Storage Initiative Round 4 with these sites 

under consideration. 

 

AMENDMENT TO THE “AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWNS OF CHATHAM 
AND HARWICH WITH RESPECT TO THE FORMATION OF A REGIONAL 

SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

ARTICLE 34: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to execute 
an amendment to the “Agreement between the Towns of Chatham and Harwich with 
Respect to the Formation of a Regional School District” as available at the Town Clerks 
Office of each respective town, and to act fully thereon. By Request of the Board of 
Selectmen and Monomoy Regional School District. 
 
Explanation: The Monomoy Regional School District Agreement calls for a review of the 

document after five years. This review has been completed and amendments are 

recommended. Most of the revisions include elimination of the transition elements 

contained in the original agreement and an updating of language to include the Monomoy 

name.  Based on feedback from the community and Select Boards, the Assignment of 

Schools language makes no change to the current regional agreement wording about 

assignment to elementary schools.  Both towns retain their elementary schools with their 

town's children attending elementary school in the town of their residence. The Capital 



- 

 

34 
 

Expenditure and Borrowing costs shares have been updated to reflect the cost sharing of 

the operating budget. The amendment must be approved by both Harwich and Chatham 

respective Board of Selectmen and Town Meeting before becoming effective.  

 

M.G.L./CHARTER /BY-LAW AMENDMENTS 

 
AMEND THE TOWN OF HARWICH - CHARTER TO THE WATER COMMISSION 

TO WATER/WASTEWATER COMMISSION 
 

ARTICLE 35:   To see if the Town will vote pursuant to M.G.L. c.43B, §10 to amend 
Chapters 6 and 10 of the Town Charter, which amendment will be subject to approval by 
the voters at the 2020 Annual Town Election, as set forth below, with strikethrough text to 
be deleted and bold text to be inserted:  

1. Amend Chapter 6, subsection 6-1-1, General Provisions, as follows: 
 

6-1-1 The officers and town agencies to be elected by vote of the town shall be: a 
moderator, a town clerk, a board of selectmen as provided in chapter 3, members of 
the Monomoy regional school district committee, a water and wastewater 
commission, a board of library trustees, and a housing authority. 
 

2. Amend Chapter 6, Section 6, Water Commission, as follows: 
 

Section 6. Water and Wastewater Commission 
 

6-6-1 A water and wastewater commission of 3 5 members shall be elected for 3-year 
overlapping terms. 

 
6-6-2 The water and wastewater commission shall possess and exercise all powers 
given to this the board of water commissioners under chapter 165 of the acts of 
1935, and boards of sewer commissioners under chapter 83 of the General 

Laws.  The water and wastewater commission shall be responsible for the 

administration, maintenance and operation of the water and sewer systems 

and facilities. 

6-6-3 The water and wastewater commission shall appoint a water and 
wastewater superintendent, and shall request this officer to cooperate with, and be 
responsive to, requests from who shall work cooperatively with the town 
administrator. the town administrator’s office. 

6-6-4  Notwithstanding any other provision of this section to the contrary, the 

board of selectmen shall be responsible for the design and construction of the 

town sewer systems and for implementation of the comprehensive wastewater 

management plan.   

 

3.  Amend Chapter 10, Additional Provisions, by inserting the following new section: 
 

 Section 4.  Water and Wastewater Commission Transition 

 



 

35 
 

10-4-1  The vote of the May 6, 2019 Annual Town Meeting to amend Section 6 

of the Town Charter shall take effect upon approval by the voters at the 2020 

Annual Town Election (“amendment”).   

 

10-4-2  As of the effective date of the amendment,  the water commission shall 

have the additional powers, duties and responsibilities of a sewer commission 

under the general laws, except as otherwise specified in the amendment.  No 

contracts or liabilities in force on the effective date of the amendment shall be 

affected by the expansion of the powers and duties of the water commission, 

and the newly established water and wastewater commission shall in all 

respects be the lawful successor of the water commission.  All records, 

property and equipment whatsoever of the water commission shall be assigned 

to the water and wastewater commission, and any appropriation for the 

operations of such water commission and water system, and for the sewer 

system, shall be available for expenditure by the water and wastewater 

commission consistent with the purposes for which such funds were 

appropriated. 

 

10-4-3 Any incumbent elected water commissioner shall serve as a member of 

the water and wastewater commission for a period equivalent to the 

remainder of their elected term, and shall be entitled to have the words 

“candidate for re-election” appear next to their name on the ballot if they 

choose to run for election to the water and wastewater commission while 

serving in that capacity.  At the first annual town election held after the 

effective date of this Charter amendment, two additional offices of water and 

wastewater commissioner shall be included on the election warrant, one for a 

two-year term and one for a three-year term; provided, however, that until 

said election, the water and wastewater commission shall be deemed to consist 

of three members.   

 

And to act fully thereon.  By request of the Board of Selectmen and Water Commissioners. 

 

CHARTER AMENDMENTS – CAPITAL OUTLAY COMMITTEE 
 
ARTICLE 36:  To see if the Town will vote pursuant to M.G.L. c.43B, §10 to amend 
Chapter 9, Sections 5 and 6  of the Town Charter, which amendment will be subject to 
approval by the voters at the 2020 Annual Town Election, as set forth below, with 
strikethrough text to be deleted and bold text to be inserted:  
 

CHAPTER 9. FINANCIAL PROVISIONS AND PROCEDURES  

Section 5. Capital Outlay Committee 

9-5-1 A capital outlay committee of 7 members shall be appointed for 3-year 

overlapping terms. Two members shall be appointed by the finance committee, 2 

members shall be appointed by the board of selectmen, 1 member shall be appointed by 

the planning board, and 2 members shall be appointed by the town administrator. 



 

36 
 

9-5-2 The capital outlay committee shall assist the town administrator in the development 

of the capital outlay plan to be adopted and/or amended each year at the Annual Town 

Meeting; and may, at the request of the Town Administrator and/or the Board of 

Selectmen, assist the Town Administrator in the preparation of a Capital Outlay 

Budget. 

Section 6. Capital Outlay Plan [Amended 5-23-2012 by Ch. 103 of the Acts of 2012] 9-6-1 

The purpose of the 7-year capital outlay plan shall be to provide the town with a long-

range forecast of the town's major capital improvement needs and to attempt to keep debt 

borrowing levels as even as possible from year to year. 

9-6-2 A "capital outlay" shall mean the acquisition, construction or renovation of buildings, 

equipment or land having a total cost of $50,000 during any budget year and planning funds 

for any such capital outlay. 

9-6-3 The town administrator and the capital outlay committee shall submit a 7-year 
capital outlay plan to a joint public meeting of the board of selectmen and the finance 
committee during the month of December of each year. 

9-6-4 The board of selectmen shall prepare articles to be included in the May annual town 
meeting warrant seeking adoption of the 7-year capital outlay plan and funding of the 
current year of the plan. 

9-6-5 A simple majority vote of the town meeting shall be required to adopt the 7-year 

capital outlay plan as submitted. Any amendment to a previously adopted Capital Plan 

shall require a two-thirds vote at the Annual Town Meeting. 

9-6-6 If any part of the current year of the plan receives funding support at the annual town 
meeting, but fails at any necessary debt exclusion, capital exclusion or proposition 2 1/2 

override ballot votes, the unsupported portion shall be returned to the 7-year capital plan in 
year 1 of the next 7-year plan. 

 
9-6-7 With the exception of petition articles, any article submitted for the annual or 
special town meeting warrant which requests a capital outlay as defined in section 9-6 2, 
but which is not included in the current year of the capital outlay plan as adopted by town 
meeting shall require approval of the capital outlay committee, the board of selectmen 
and the finance committee and any such article shall require a 2/3 majority vote of the 
town meeting, and to act fully thereon.  By Request of the Board of Selectmen and the 
Bylaw Review Committee. 
 

CHARTER AMENDMENTS – EX-OFFICIO MEMBER APPOINTMENTS 
 
ARTICLE 37: To see if the Town will vote pursuant to M.G.L. c.43B, §10 to amend 
Chapter 7, Section 7 of the Town Charter, which amendment will be subject to approval by 
the voters at the 2020 Annual Town Election, by adding a new subsection 5 as set forth 
below, with strikethrough text to be deleted and bold text to be inserted:  
 



 

37 
 

7-1-5 Ex-Officio Appointments (New Section) 

In order to ensure that the terms of ex-officio appointees do not exceed the terms 

of their appointments by the sending official, board, commission or committee, all 

such appointments shall run for one year or less to end on June 30th of the then 

current fiscal year. In the event of a resignation or inability to serve by an ex-

officio appointee either from the sending entity or as ex-officio appointee, the 

term of the replacement shall expire in accordance with the term of the original 

appointee. Any ex-officio appointment made by a board, committee or 

commission under the jurisdiction of Board of Selectmen shall be subject to 

approval by vote of 3 or more members of the Board of Selectmen. 

And further to amend Chapter 7, Section 2, Item 7-2-2 of the General Provisions, 

Item (b) to read: 

Elect necessary officers including ex-officio appointments under the 

jurisdiction of the sending board, commission or committee. 

and to act fully thereon.  By Request of the Board of Selectmen and the 
Bylaw Review Committee. 

 

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION  

 
APPROPRIATE SUMS OF MONEY FROM THE FY20 ESTIMATED ANNUAL 

REVENUES OF THE COMMUNITY PRESERVATION ACT FUND 
 
ARTICLE 38: To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the following sums of money 
from the FY 20 estimated annual revenues of the Harwich Community Preservation Act 
Fund as required by the G.L. Chapter 44B and Chapter 149, §298 of the Acts of 2004 as 
follows: 

• A sum of money for the acquisition, creation and preservation of  
open space; 

• A sum of money for the acquisition, preservation, restoration and  
rehabilitation of historic resources; 

• A sum of money for the acquisition, creation, preservation and  
support of community housing; and 

• A sum of money for the Community Preservation Act Fund  
FY 2018 Undesignated Fund Balance (including Recreation) 
 

 and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Board of Selectmen. 
 

   Appropriation    FY 20 
  Community Housing Reserve   $168,411 
  Open Space Reserve    $168,411 
  Historic Preservation Reserve   $168,411 
    
Explanation:  To see if the town will reserve for future appropriations amounts from the 

FY 20 Community Preservation Act Fund estimated annual revenues for the purpose of 



 

38 
 

acquisition, creation and preservation of open space and community housing, for the 

purpose of acquisition, preservation, restoration and rehabilitation of historic resources.  

 
FUND LAND BANK DEBT SERVICE 

 
ARTICLE 39:  To see if the Town will vote to appropriate from the Community 
Preservation Act Funds – Undesignated Fund Balance, $553,700, to fund the Debt Service 
on the outstanding Land Bank Debt.  Any funds left unspent from this Article are to be 
returned to the Community Preservation Act funds – Undesignated Reserve, and to act 
fully thereon.  By request of the Community Preservation Committee and the Finance 
Director.  Estimated Cost:  $553,700. 
 

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION ACTIVITIES UNDER $50,000 
 

ARTICLE 40:  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, and/or transfer from 
the Community Preservation Act Funds, a sufficient sum of money to fund the items in the 
table below consistent with their respective applications.  Any funds left unspent from this 
Article are to be returned to the Community Preservation Act Fund from which the 
appropriation is made as specified in the chart below, and further authorize the Community 
Preservation Committee to enter into an agreement with the Community Development 
Partnership, and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Community Preservation 
Committee, Recreation Department, the Community Development Partnership, and the 
Bikeways Committee.  Estimated Cost:  $72,450 
 
 
 Project Purpose Amount Appropriation Source 

1 Community Development 
Partnership 

Cape Housing Institute $7,500 Community Housing 
Reserve 

2 Lifeguard Stands Replace 11 Lifeguard 
Stands at Town Beaches 

$37,950 Undesignated Reserve 

3 Depot Street North 
Crossing System 

Installation of pedestrian 
warning lights on the 
bike trail 

$27,000 Undesignated Reserve 

 
 

TOTAL $72,450 
 

 
BROOKS ACADEMY MUSEUM 

 
ARTICLE 41:  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate and/or transfer from 
the Community Preservation Act Funds – Historic Preservation Reserve, a sufficient sum 
of money to fund first, a structural engineering study pertaining to the foundation of the 
building; second, to be used to make said foundation structurally sound; and third, once 
both of the above are completed, to be used to restore and preserve the outer shell of the 
building and/or protect the building from further damage due to water and dampness, 
including any appurtenant interior work. Any funds left unspent from the Article are to be 
returned to the Community Preservation Act Fund - Historic Preservation Reserve, and to 
act fully thereon. By request of the Community Preservation Committee and the Brooks 
Academy Museum Commission.  Estimated Cost:  $130,000 



 

39 
 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST 
 

ARTICLE 42:  To see if the Town will vote to appropriate from Community Preservation 
Act Funds – Community Housing Reserve, $304,384.47 and $35.615.53 from the 
Estimated FY 20 Community Housing Revenue for a total of $340,000 to fund the 
Harwich Affordable Housing Trust to create and preserve affordable housing in the Town 
of Harwich in the amount of $310,000, and to fund a part-time Housing Coordinator in the 
amount of $30,000.  Any funds left unspent from this Article are to be returned to the 
Community Preservation Act Funds – Community Housing Reserve, and to act fully 
thereon.  By request of the Community Preservation Committee and the Board of 
Selectmen.  Estimated Cost:  $340,000 
 

SAND POND RESTROOM PROJECT 
 

ARTICLE 43: To see if the Town will vote to appropriate from Community Preservation 
Act Funds-Undesignated Fund Estimated FY 20 Revenue, $125,000 to replace current 
restroom facility at Sand Pond, Harwich.  Any funds left unspent from this Article are to 
be returned to the Community Preservation Act Funds-Undesignated Fund Balance, and to 
act fully thereon.  By request of the Community Preservation Committee and the Harwich 
Recreation and Youth Commission.  
Estimated Cost: $125,000 

 
WHITEHOUSE FIELD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 
ARTICLE 44: To see if the Town will vote to appropriate from Community Preservation 
Act Funds-Undesignated Fund Estimated FY 20 Revenue, $55,000 to replace the 
scoreboard at Whitehouse Field and to purchase and install safety netting and poles in front 
of spectator berms on first and third base lines.  Any funds left unspent from this Article 
are to be returned to the Community Preservation Act Funds-Undesignated Fund Balance, 
and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Community Preservation Committee and the 
Harwich Recreation and Youth Commission.  
Estimated Cost: $55,000 
 

RED RIVER BEACH SHORELINE STABILIZATION PROJECT 
 

ARTICLE 45: To see if the Town will vote to appropriate from Community Preservation 
Act Funds-Open Space Reserve in the amount of $50,000 and from the Undesignated FY 
20 Estimated Revenue $50,000 to preserve and protect the Red River Beach Shoreline.  
Any funds left unspent from this Article are to be returned to the Community Preservation 
Act Funds – Open Space Reserve and Undesignated Reserve, and to act fully thereon.  By 
request of the Community Preservation Committee and the Conservation Commission.  
Estimated Cost: $100,000 

 

 

 

 



 

40 
 

PRIVATE PETITIONS 

 
DEFRAY THE EXPENSES OF THE CHASE LIBRARY AND HARWICH PORT 

LIBRARY 
 

ARTICLE 46: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate and/or transfer from 
available funds the sum of $20,000 to help defray the expenses of the Chase Library and 
the Harwich Port Library; said funds to be expended under the direction of the Chase 
Library and Harwich Port Library Trustees, and to act fully thereon.  By Petition.  
Estimated cost: $20,000 
 
Explanation: Chase Library and Harwich Port Library are free, publicly supported 

libraries.  Town funds have been appropriated either through the general budget or by 

articles since 1911 (Chase) and 1926 (Harwich Port).  These funds are essential for 

continued operation and for the customary State reimbursements. 

 
PROMOTE THE TOWN OF HARWICH 

 
ARTICLE 47: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate and/or transfer from 
available funds a sufficient sum of money for the Harwich Chamber of Commerce to 
promote the Town and its businesses and cultural endeavors to advance economic 
development initiatives for and with the Town of Harwich.  Said monies to be used to 
manage and fulfill year-round visitor/resident/business information services, to promote 
and market the Town, to generate and initiate materials and activities that encourage the 
establishment, growth and sustainability of businesses in Harwich, and to implement 
economic development objectives and activities in partnership with the Town, and to act 
fully thereon.  By petition.  Estimated cost: $30,000 
 
 Explanation:  For more than 60 years, Harwich Chamber of Commerce (HCC) has 
worked in the best interest of Harwich and for the people living in, working in and visiting 

the Town of Harwich. Since 1995, the citizens of Harwich, through the annual Town 

Meeting, have voted to fund warrant articles submitted by the Harwich Chamber of 

Commerce in support of its work promoting the community, providing needed 

informational services, and developing and advancing economic sustainability and 

development strategies. We are again requesting the Town’s support for the Chamber's 

efforts in: 

(a) providing year-round informational services to residents, visitors, second homeowners, 

and businesses (over 78,000 visits to our Information Center in 2018) 

(b) Support of the Chamber’s efforts, in partnership with the Town of Harwich, to develop 

and implement economic development initiatives to benefit the Town as defined by 

objectives in the Town’s Local Comprehensive Plan, and marketing Harwich’s Cultural 

Districts; the simultaneous designation of both Harwich Port and Harwich Center in 2019.   

(c) Promoting the Town of Harwich and its brand: The Warm Side of the Cape, thereby 

continuing to grow the vitality and economy in the community. 

 (a) Year-Round Information Services: Harwich’s Information Center is open 52 weeks a 

year. Combining this valuable resource with the Chamber’s internet/website portals, New 



 

41 
 

explore boards located at Logan Airport, North and South Stations as well in many 

locations throughout Massachusetts, New England and Nationally and continued 

telephone and mail inquiries, Harwich Chamber annually provides more than 320,000 

instances of contact with visitors, seasonal and year-round homeowners and residents, 

organizations and businesses. These connections offer the opportunity to market and 

promote the Town utilizing our new brand “The Warm Side of the Cape.” By being 

available to meet the needs of our “customers” we are able to encourage patronage of our 

local amenities and businesses and to connect individuals and businesses with the 

appropriate Town offices and officials 12 months a year in a friendly, warm and upbeat 

fashion. 

 (b) Promoting the Town of Harwich: The Harwich Chamber continues to be the lead 

force in promoting the Town of Harwich. By utilizing a multi-faceted approach, HCC 

strives to position Harwich as a premier destination for local, regional, national and 

international individuals and families. The marketing strategies are aimed at encouraging 

residents, second homeowners (current and potential), and visitors to avail themselves of 

Harwich’s recreational amenities, as well as for shopping, dining, vacations, day trips, 

events and festivals. The plan, which positions Harwich as a desired vacation destination 

and an outstanding place in which to live and work, includes: 

 1.  The 2019 Harwich Magazine will celebrate our history and our future as well as 

continue to share our Arts and Culture , the Town’s primary comprehensive printed and 

online publication for attracting visitors to Harwich, and a year round resource for our 

residents, second home-owners and businesses.  

2.  The HCC website’s robust content complements the Magazine and links to a wide range 

of Town resources.  

3.  Ancillary printed and on-line pieces, including specialized maps (cranberry bogs, 

lodging locator, dining locator, beaches, bike trail) that target market segments and 

interests. As well as the new Cultural District maps for Harwich Port and Harwich Center. 

4.  Media placements in local, regional and national publications.  

 

Special events and festivals are about more than attracting people to town to enjoyable 

experiences. They are about defining key elements of Harwich’s brand and about 

parlaying those assets into support for our businesses, non-profit organizations, and the 

community. In 2017 the Harwich Chamber of Commerce in partnership with sponsorships 

from Harwich Chamber of Commerce members we brought back after a 10 year absence 

the much loved Fireworks as part of the Harwich Cranberry Festival and continues to 

grow today. In addition, Fall for Harwich provided the umbrella under which thousands of 

people were invited to participate in a wide array of more than 30 events, including the 

half-marathon road race, music festival, bog walks, concerts, teas, arts & crafts, our 

second sidewalk sale and more. Fall for Harwich and Christmas in Harwich also provide 

opportunities for our local non-profits to raise much needed funds and increase their 

visibility. In addition, the Chamber continues to actively engage in creating and 

implementing new events as well as expanding existing events. In 2018, the Chamber 

coordinated ten Port Summer Night Musical Strolls in Harwich Port,(traditionally every 

Wednesday in July & August in 2018 we added the last Wednesday in August and the first 

Wednesday in September as a thank you to our residents) several musical concerts that 

combined opportunities with restaurants and other businesses to increase meals, shopping 



 

42 
 

and a night out with a show.  We look forward to continuing to expand these offerings in 

2019.     

Economic Development: HCC will continue to collaborate with the Town on economic 

development strategies and initiatives. Over this past year, HCC has worked tirelessly on 

behalf of the Town and its businesses and continues to do so with sponsoring gatherings 

with key partners at the state level bringing them into our town. The Chamber has also 

provided training, counsel and support to dozens of small businesses challenged to survive 

in the current economic climate, and has met with several individuals considering locating 

their business in Harwich.  

HCC continues to strengthen its collaboration with other local chambers of commerce 

through the Local Cape Chambers Collaborative (LC3) and the Lower Cape Chambers 

group. Among the many activities currently underway are: 

·         With LC3 meeting with the Economic Development Council on regional economic 

development priorities, identified by local chambers in consultation with town officials  

·         With LC3 continued advocacy on transportation issues, including real time 

information, bridge issues, issues relating to drug use, attracting more traffic to the 

Regional Airport and more.  

·         With Lower Cape Chambers hosting the Annual Lower Cape Home & Garden Show 

this year again to be held at the Cape Cod Tech, trainings, inter-chamber networking 

(giving greater business-to- business opportunities)  

·         Parking and Connectivity continue to explore opportunities for remote parking lots 

and transit service for harbors, beaches and other sites with high seasonal demand  

The Chamber is honored to partner with the Town on building a better community, but the 

Chamber relies on the Town’s support to help achieve its goals. Without this support, the 

Chamber’s marketing activities will be significantly reduced. We appreciate the past 

support of the Town of Harwich and request funding for these important, revenue-

generating initiatives. Thank you for your consideration              

 
SUPPLEMENT ANNUAL ALLOCATION OF MASS CULTURAL COUNCIL FOR  

LOCAL CULTURAL COUNCIL GRANTS  

ARTICLE 48:    To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from 
available funds and/or borrow a sufficient sum of money to supplement the Massachusetts 
Cultural Council annual allocation for community grant awards to artists, performers, and 
interpretive scientists who bring events and programs to local venues which enhance the 
cultural experience of Harwich citizens of all ages, and to act fully thereon.  By request of 
the Harwich Cultural Council.  Estimated Cost: $3,600. 

PLEASANT BAY RESOURCE MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE 
 
ARTICLE 49: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available 
funds and/or borrow the sum of $26,170 to cover the Town’s share of matching funds for 
conducting an update of the Massachusetts Estuaries Project Linked Watershed Model for 
Pleasant Bay.  The funds will be combined with a total of $119,220 in matching funds 
from the Towns of Brewster, Chatham and Orleans, and $72,610 from the Southeast New 
England Estuaries Program Watershed Grant awarded to the Pleasant Bay Alliance.  The 



 

43 
 

model update is an implementation activity specified in the Pleasant Bay Watershed Permit 
issued to the Town by Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection, and to act 
fully thereon.  By request of the Pleasant Bay Alliance.  Estimated cost: $26,170. 

 
AMEND THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF HARWICH TO PROHIBIT THE 

PROCUREMENT OR DISPENSING OF BEVERAGES IN PLASTIC CONTAINERS  
 

ARTICLE 50: To see if the Town will vote to adopt the following as a General Bylaw and 
to insert it into the Cod of the Town of Harwich as Chapter 125, Article I, §125-1: 
 
The procurement by the Town of Harwich of either water or any other beverage in plastic 
containers of any size is prohibited, and the dispensing of water or any beverage in plastic 
containers is prohibited on Town property, and to act fully thereon.  By Petition.   
 
Explanation: The by-law is a municipal by-law.  It eliminates town procurement and 

distribution of plastic bottled beverages.  It is not a commercial ban.  We are taking the 

perspective that the town, being a government entity, has within its oversight the 

responsibility to protect human and environmental health, with the latter also having a 

relationship to human health.  Arguably, plastic is a known human health issue based on 

the fact that it cannot biodegrade and will enter the human food chain.  Further, plastic 

production relies on non-renewable resources and creates toxic emissions at the point of 

production, recycling and incineration-based waste disposal.  Also, there is evidence that 

chemicals within plastic leach into the beverage within a bottle thereby presenting yet 

another entry point for adverse health consequences. 

 
REFRAIN FROM USING TOWN FUNDS/RESOURCES TO ENFORCE FEDERAL 

IMMIGRATION LAWS 
 
ARTICLE 51: To see if the Town of Harwich will vote to request the Selectmen to 
authorize Town law enforcement and Town officials to refrain from using Town funds 
and/or other Town resources to enforce federal immigration laws to the extent permissible 
by law, including, but not limited to, 8 U.S.C. §1373 and 8 U.S.C. §1644, in keeping with 
current practices, unless presented with a criminal warrant, court order or other evidence of 
probable cause as required by the Fourth Amendment of the United States Constitution, 
and to act fully thereon. (Non-binding resolution) By Petition.  No funding requested 
 
Explanation: This article is a non-binding resolution that asks the Town of Harwich to 

affirm its current policy regarding immigration enforcement and its Police Mission 

Statement to provide "legitimate and equitable law enforcement with a strong focus on 

active community engagement and community service."  When everyone feels free to 

approach police or other officials, including people concerned about their immigration 

status, then it is more likely that suspicious activity will be reported, that people will step 

forward as witnesses, that an abused woman will come for help, that people will call in an 

emergency. This approach has already been favored in several Cape Cod towns, and also 

by police chiefs throughout the country.  Reports show that decreases in crime with this 

approach – just as multiple studies show that immigrants in general are less likely to 



 

44 
 

commit crimes than U.S. born persons.  Those are facts.  The Town of Harwich has a clear 

interest in unbiased community interactions and the Harwich Police Department is 

committed to the “health, well-being, and safety” of all town residents.  This article will 

help in achieving these goals. 

 

SUPPORT FOR LEGISLATION TO CHANGE STATE SEAL AND MOTTO 
 

ARTICLE 52: To see if the Town will vote to support proposed legislation providing for 
the creation of a special commission to (1) investigate the features of the official seal and 
motto of the Commonwealth, and (2) ensure that they accurately reflect and embody the 
historic and contemporary commitments of the Commonwealth to peace, justice liberty 
and equality as well as basic respect for members of Native Nations residing in the 
Commonwealth, and to act fully thereon.  By Petition  
 
Explanation:  Resolution in Support of Changing the State Flag and Seal of 

Massachusetts: Whereas the history of the State of Massachusetts is replete with instances 

of conflict between the European Colonists and the Native Nations of the region, who first 

extended the hand of friendship to the Colonists on their shores in 1620, and helped them 

to survive starvation during the settlers’ first winters on their land; 

Whereas members of the Native Nation for whom the State of Massachusetts is named 

were ambushed and killed by Myles Standish, first commander of the Plymouth Colony, in 

April of 1623, barely two years after the Pilgrims arrived on their shores; 

Whereas the naked Colonial broadsword brandished above the head of the Native man on 

the Massachusetts state Flag and Seal is copied from Myles Standish’s own broadsword, 

borrowed from the Pilgrim Hall in Plymouth by the illustrator Edmund Garrett in 1884; 

Whereas the belt binding the Native’s cloak on the Flag and Seal is modeled after a belt 

worn by Metacomet, known to the English as King Philip, who was among the 

Wampanoag leaders who resorted to a mutually destructive war in 1675-76 in defense of 

Native lands against Euro-Colonial encroachment; 

Whereas the proportions of the body of the Native man in the Flag and Seal were taken 

from a Native skeleton kept in Winthrop, the bow modeled after a bow taken from a Native 

man shot and killed by a colonist in Sudbury in 1665, and his features taken from a 

photograph of an Ojibwe chief from Great Falls, Montana, considered by the illustrator to 

be a “fine specimen of an Indian,” though not from Massachusetts; 

Whereas the history of relations between Massachusetts since Colonial times and the 

Native Nations who continue to live within its borders includes the forced internment of 

thousands of so-called “praying Indians” on Deer Island, in Boston Harbor, where they 

died by the hundreds of exposure in 1675; their subsequent enslavement in Boston, 

Bermuda, and the Caribbean Islands; the offering of 40 pounds sterling as bounty for the 

scalps of Native men, women and children in Massachusetts beginning in 1686, increased 

to 100 pounds sterling for the scalps of Native adult males by 1722, half the amount for 

Native women and children; 

Whereas Native Nations within the boundaries of Massachusetts were kept in a state of 

serfdom, and their members legally considered incompetent wards of the state until the 

nonviolent action of the so-called Mashpee Rebellion of 1833 led to the granting of Native 



 

45 
 

self-rule by the Massachusetts legislature in 1834, as if the sovereign right of Native self-

government was the Massachusetts legislature’s to confer; 

Whereas Native Americans were legally prohibited from even stepping foot into Boston 

from 1675 until 2004, when that law was finally repealed; 

Whereas the 400th anniversary of the landing of the European Colonists at Plymouth 

Plantation, which gave rise to the long chain off genocidal wars and deliberate policies of 

cultural destruction against Native Nations of this continent, is approaching in the year 

2020, affording every citizens of the Commonwealth a chance to reflect upon this history 

and come to a new awareness of a better relationship between the descendants of the 

Euro-Colonial immigrants and the Native Nations of these shores; 

And whereas members of Native Nations have long suffered the many abuses of racism, the 

appropriation of their symbols for public schools and sports teams, the diminution and 

pollution of their ancestral lands and the encroachment of their cultural lifeways; 

Therefore, we the voters of the Town of Harwich hereby adopt this resolution in support of 

HD.2968 and SD.1495, a Resolve providing for the creation of a Special Commission 

relative to the Seal and Motto of the Commonwealth, such commission to include members 

of the legislature and members of Native Nations residing in the Commonwealth. We 

believe that this effort is long overdue and is necessary to ensure respectful treatment of a 

people long denied the full experience of citizenship in the Commonwealth 

 

GENERAL BYLAW AMENDMENT. SINGLE USE PLASTIC STRAW BAN BYLAW 
 
ARTICLE 53: To see if the Town will vote to amend the Harwich General Bylaw Chapter 
122 Hazardous Materials as follows: 
 

Article III Single-Use Plastic Straws 
 
122-9. Single-Use Plastic Straw Ban 
 
122-9-1. Intentions and Findings. 

 

It has been found that: 
1) Plastic straws are rarely recycled. 
2) Harwich’s proximity to bodies of salt and fresh water means that plastic straws that go 

uncollected by DPW have a high chance of ending up on the beaches or in the water. 
3) Plastic straws take up to 200 years to degrade. 
4) Accidental ingestion of plastics, including straws, kills and injures many animals. 
5) The degrading of plastic straws releases chemicals toxic to wildlife and the 

environment. 
6) The United States currently uses approximately 500 million straws per day. 
7) There is a national movement to reduce and ban the use of plastic straws and reasonable 

affordable alternatives are available. 
 
Because Harwich has a duty to protect the natural environment, and its preservation affects 
the economy and the health of its citizens, this amendment proposes to ban the sale or 
dispensing of single use plastic straws, including those made from polyethylene, 



 

46 
 

polypropylene, and polystyrene, by any food establishment, retail establishment, or public 
venue in the Town of Harwich. 
 
122-9-2. Definitions 
 
“Plastic straw” shall mean any single use plastic straw including but not limited to those 
made from polyethylene, polypropylene, and polystyrene. 
 
“Food Establishment” shall mean any operation, including without limitation schools, 
farmers markets and other public venues, that stores, prepares, packages, serves, vends or 
otherwise provides food for human consumption. Any establishment requiring a permit to 
operate in accordance with the State Food Code, 105 CMR 590.000, et. seq., shall be 
considered a Food Establishment for the purposes of this bylaw. 
 
“Retail Establishment” shall mean any commercial business facility that sells goods 
directly to consumers including but not limited to grocery stores, pharmacies, liquor stores, 
convenience stores, retail stores and vendors selling clothing, food, and personal items, dry 
cleaning services, theaters and all other food service establishments. 
 
“Public Venues” shall mean operations including but not limited to meeting halls, 
churches, schools, Town buildings and offices. 
 
122-9-3. Use Regulations 
Plastic straws shall not be used, dispensed, or sold by any Food Establishments or any 
Retail Establishment within the Town of Harwich on or after January 1, 2020. Any stock 
remaining after that date shall be accepted for disposal free of charge, through January 31, 
2020, at the Harwich Transfer Station. 
 
122-9-4. Administration and Enforcement 
This Bylaw may be enforced by any Town Police Officer or agent of the Board of Health 
through any lawful means in law or in equity, including but not limited to non-criminal 
disposition pursuant to MGL Chapter 40 Section 21D and Article VII General Section 37. 
Penalties And Enforcement of the Town’s General Bylaws. If 
non-criminal disposition is elected, then any Establishment which violates any provision of 
this Bylaw shall be subject to the following penalties: 
 
 First Offense: $100 fine 
 Second Offense: $200 fine 
 Third and Subsequent Offenses: $300 fine for each offense 
 
Offenses occurring within two years of the date of first reported offense will be considered 
as subsequent offenses. Each day or portion thereof shall constitute a separate offense, to 
do or act anything thereon. 
The Board of Health, after a hearing conducted in accordance with the procedures set forth 
in 105 CMR 590.14 and 590.15, may suspend or revoke the food service permit for any 
establishment failing to comply with this Bylaw. 



 

47 
 

122-9-5. Severability 
If any provision of this bylaw is declared invalid, or unenforceable, the other provisions 
shall not be affected thereby. Or take any other action relative there to.  By Petition. 
 

AMENDMENT TO THE HARWICH BOARD OF HEALTH REGULATIONS – 
RESTRICT THE SALE OF FLAVORED TOBACCO 

 
ARTICLE 54: To amend the Regulation of the Harwich Board of Health Restricting the 
Sale of Tobacco Products by adding the additional language: 
 
C. Definitions: 
Flavored Tobacco Product: Any tobacco product or component part thereof that contains a 
constituent that has or produces a characterizing flavor. A public statement, claim or 
indicia made or disseminated by the manufacturer of a tobacco product, or by any person 
authorized or permitted by the manufacturer to make or disseminate public statements 
concerning such tobacco product, that such tobacco product has or produces a 
characterizing flavor shall constitute presumptive evidence that the tobacco product is a 
flavored tobacco product. 
 
N. Prohibition of the Sale of Flavored Tobacco Products [subsequent sections relettered] 
 
The sale of flavored tobacco products is prohibited. No person shall sell or distribute or 
cause to be sold or distributed any flavored tobacco product. 
 
and to act fully thereon.  By Petition. 
 

SELECTMEN AND FINANCE COMMITTEE PUBLIC RECORD OF VOTES 
 

ARTICLE 55: To see if the Town will vote to require the individual voting records of 
Selectmen and Finance Committee members as recorded in the minutes of relevant 
meetings be included in the Warrant with any Article before Town Meeting for a vote at 
any Annual or Special Town Meeting, and to act fully thereon.  Estimated cost: $0.00.  By 
Petition. 
 
Explanation:  Many voters do not follow any selectmen’s meetings, or Finance Committee 

meetings.  Many are not substantially informed about the pros and cons of an article until 

the requirement to vote is at hand.  This proposal will establish an easily verifiable record 

for voters, and so should be of assistance at Town Meeting, when explanations may be 

required or a full sense of the Board of Selectmen needs to be understood.  It will also 

serve as a readily available record for and about any individual seeking an appointment or 

reelection.   

 
 
 
 



 

48 
 

AMEND THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF HARWICH CHARTER TO UPDATE THE 
NAME “SELECTMEN” TO “SELECT BOARD” 

 

ARTICLE 56: To see if the Town will vote to propose the following amendment to the 
Harwich Home Rule Charter, to be approved by the voters at the next annual Town 
election as follows: (new text shown as underlined) 
 
 Amend Chapter 3, §1-1 as follows: 
  
 A board of selectmen of 5 members shall be elected at-large for 3-year overlapping 

terms.  For purposes of this Charter, the Board of Selectmen shall be referred to as 
the Select Board. 

 
And further, by deleting, in every other instance in which they appear, the words “Board of 
Selectmen” and inserting in their place, the words, “Select Board”, and to act fully thereon.  
By Petition. 
 
Explanation:  To amend the charter to reflect that not only men are elected to the Board of 

Selectmen and to ensure that the Town is viewed as inclusive to all. 

 

PET BURIAL GROUND 

 
RESCIND ARTICLE 57 OF THE MAY 2016 ANNUAL TOWN MEETING 

AUTHORIZING THE PET BURIAL GROUND 
 

ARTICLE 57: To see if the Town will vote to rescind its previous action on Article 57 of 
the 2016 Annual Town Meeting and take the parcel of land containing 2.25 acres, more or 
less, located at 276 Queen Anne Road, shown on Assessors Map 69 as Parcel M1, and 
being a portion of the premise acquired by the Town pursuant to order of taking recorded 
with the Barnstable Registry of Deeds in Book 11666, Pages 103-105 from the jurisdiction 
of the Cemetery Commission and return such jurisdiction to the Board of Selectmen for the 
care, custody, management and control of said property, and to act fully thereon.  By 
Petition. 
 
Explanation:  1. The Cemetery Commissioners do not have the jurisdiction to solicit or 

evaluate alternative proposals for this valuable parcel of land, therefore, the best interests 

of the taxpayers cannot be assured under their purview.  The Town Selectmen have such 

jurisdiction and it’s within their purview to maximize and protect taxpayer interests.   

2.  The proposal for using this land as a pet burial ground relies on a significant but 

unspecified portion of its revenue coming from residents of other towns, as well as 

unknown levels of “donations.”  Any shortfalls from these unspecified revenue sources will 

result in Harwich taxpayers having to foot larger shares of the burden in effect providing 

potentially higher and higher levels of subsidy into the future.  Accordingly, this taxpayer 

petition requests that the jurisdiction of this land be returned to the Town Selectmen. 

 

 



 

49 
 

ESTABLISH ANNUAL REVOLVING FUND FOR THE PET BURIAL GROUND 
 
ARTICLE 58:  To see if the Town will vote to amend the Departmental Revolving Funds 
By-law by adding a new revolving fund to be known as the Harwich Pet Memorial 
Gardens & Walking Park Fund, as set forth below: 
 

 
Revolving Fund 

Authorize to Spend 
Fund 

 
Revenue Source 

 
Use of Fund 

 
Harwich Pet 
Memorial Gardens 
& Walking Park 
Fund 

 
Cemetery Administrator,  
Cemetery Commission 

 
Revenue received 
from the sale of pet 
burial lots and fees 

 
Maintenance, 
improvements, care 
and support of pet 
burial ground to the 
pet burial ground 
 

    
Or to act fully thereon. By request of the Cemetery Commission. 
 

COMPLETE THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PET BURIAL GROUNDS 
 
ARTICLE 59:  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from 
available funds and/or borrow a sufficient sum of money to fund the completion of the pet 
burial grounds, $60,720 and to reimburse the General Fund $70,280 for the initial cost of 
preparing and improving the burial grounds.  Funds contained within this appropriation are 
to come from the sale of pet burial lots and fees, and to act fully thereon.  By request of the 
Cemetery Administrator and the Cemetery Commission.  Estimated cost:  $131,000. 

 

LAND MATTERS 

 
APPROVE EASEMENT FOR VERIZON AND EVERSOURCE ENERGY  
AT 1464 ORLEANS-HARWICH ROAD (RTE. 39) AT FIRE STATION 2 

 
ARTICLE 60: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to grant to 
Verizon New England Inc. and NStar Electric Company d/b/a Eversource Energy perpetual 
rights and easements for telephone and electric services to be installed on (1) parcel of land 
at 1464 Orleans Road (Rt. 39).  This parcel is identified on Assessor’s Map 87, Parcel J1, 
being the site of the new Fire Station 2, on such terms and conditions and for such 
consideration as the Selectmen may determine, which may be nominal consideration, and 
to act fully thereon.  By request of the Board of Selectmen. 

 

HARWICH AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST – LIST OF TOWN PROPERTIES TO 
DESIGNATE AS AFFORDABLE 

 
ARTICLE 61: To see if the Town will vote to transfer the care, custody and control of the 
parcels of land described below from the tax custodian, the Board of Selectmen or other 
board or officer having custody thereof for tax title, affordable housing or other purposes 
for which such parcels are currently held to the Harwich Affordable Housing Trust for 



 

50 
 

affordable housing purposes including the purpose of conveyance, and to authorize the 
execution of any deeds and other documents as may be necessary or appropriate to 
accomplish the foregoing, which parcels of land are described more particularly as follows: 
 

(a) Two parcels of land located on Oak Street, one identified on Assessors May 61 as 
Parcel B1-A (containing 1.58 acres, more or less) and the other on Assessors Map 
61 as Parcel B1-B (containing 1.32 acres, more or less), shown on a plan recorded 
with the Barnstable Registry of Deeds in Plan Book 337, Page 62, and being the 
premises described in a deed recorded in Book 6233, Page 206; 

(b) The parcel of land located on Depot Street, identified on Assessor’s Map 56 as 
Parcel P12 (containing one acre, more or less), and being a portion of the premises 
described in Book 652, Page 71 and being the premises described in Foreclosure in 
Tax Lien Case in Book 21728, Page 319; 

(c) The following parcels of land located on or near: 0 Depot Street, identified on 
Assessors Map 63 as Parcel J1 (containing 1.41 acres, more or less), and being the 
premises described in a deed in Book 8241, Page 226; 0 Orleans Road, identified on 
Assessors Map 63 as Parcel J2 (containing 4.59 acres, more or less) and being the 
premises described in Book 8241, Page 230; 0 Depot Road, shown on Assessors 
Map 63 as Parcel J3 (containing 17.35 acres, more or less) and being the premises 
described in Book 8241, Page 234; 0 Middle Road, identified on Assessor Map 63 
as Parcel J4 (containing 2.7 acres, more or less) and being the premises described in 
Book 8241, Page 238; 0 Depot Road, identified on Assessor’s Map 63 as Parcel J6 
(containing 2.06 acres, more or less) and described in Book 8241, Page 242, all as 
shown on a plan recorded in Plan Book 491, Page 4; 

(d) A parcel of land located at 728 Main Street, identified on Assessor’s Map 41 as 
Parcel B8 (containing 1.38 acres, more or less), and being the premises described in 
Book 1368, Page 738 and Book 9770, Page 17; and 

(e) A parcel of land located at 265 Sisson Road, identified on Assessor’s Map 40 as 
Parcel Z5 (containing 1.11 acres, more or less), and being the premises described in 
Book 9770, Page 13.  

 
and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Board of Selectmen. 
 
Explanation:  The newly founded Affordable Housing Trust will use these properties to 

create housing for qualified persons.  The Trust will explore the ability to develop each for 

affordable housing over the next few years.  The Board of Selectmen does have the ability 

to transfer some such as Willow Street under previous Town Meeting Action. 

 

REVOLVING/STABILIZATION/OPEB FUNDS 

 
AMEND THE CODE OF HARWICH GENERAL BY-LAWS – CHAPTER 8 
DEPARTMENTAL REVOLVING FUNDS § 8-1. FUNDS ESTABLISHED. 

 

ARTICLE 62:  To see if the Town will vote to amend the Departmental Revolving Funds 
By-law as set forth below: by amending the revenue sources for the following Revolving 
Funds: Golf Pro Shop and Restaurant Lease to include the lease revenue for the Restaurant 



piii,
rillill 

 

51 
 

located at the Clubhouse, for the Golf Infrastructure fund to include a portion of 
membership fees and for the Community Center to decrease receipts from weight room 
members to 75%.  To amend the uses of the Cemetery Revolving fund to revert back to the 
original narrative of ATM 2010 Article 51, approved on May 3, 2010 to include 
maintenance, care and support of town cemetery properties, and by inserting the following 
Revolving Funds: Middle School, Sidewalks and Tax Title previously approved at various 
Annual Town Meetings; and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Finance Director, Golf 
Committee and Cemetery Commission. 
 

Revolving Fund Authorize to Spend 
Fund 

Revenue Source Use of Fund 

Golf Pro Shop and 
Restaurant Lease 
Revenue 

Director, 
Golf Committee & 
ATA 

Golf Lessons, Pro Shop 
Sales and Restaurant 
Lease Revenue 

Pro Shop expenses, clubhouse and 
kitchen maintenance, 
modernization, and lessons 
instructor 

Golf Infrastructure 
Fund 

Director, 
Golf Committee 

  Surcharge on all green 
fees and cart fees as 
well as a portion of golf 
membership fees. 

CVGC Infrastructure including 
Club House facilities, maintenance 
facilities 

Cemetery Administrator & 
Cemetery 
Commission 

90% of Lot Sales, 100 
% of all Cemetery 
Services and Fees 

Maintenance,  care and support of 
town cemetery properties 

Community Center Director & 
Facilities Committee 

75 % of the fees from 
use of the weight room 

Weight Room Equipment (and 
repair) 

Middle School 
Cultural Center 

Community Center 
Director and 
Facilities Manager 

Funds generated from 
receipt of lease or fees 
collected for short term, 
year-round, temporary 
or otherwise, room (s) 
use and rental 

Funding restorations, maintenance, 
care and support 

Sidewalks Town Planner and 
Planning Board 

Sidewalk 
improvements 
including consulting 
services and 
construction 

Monies generated from receipts 
paid to the Town in lieu of 
sidewalks required to be installed 
in new subdivisions 

Tax Title Collection  Treasurer/Collector Fees collected for 
certain costs, charges, 
and fees incurred by the 
Treasurer/Collector and 
collected upon 
redemption of tax titles 
or sales of real property 
acquired through 
foreclosures of tax titles 

To offset expenses incurred in 
connection with tax takings or tax 
title foreclosures 

 

Explanation:  The golf department would like to establish additional funding to support 
necessary kitchen renovations, upgrades and modernization of equipment of the restaurant 

facility located at the Cranberry Golf Course Clubhouse.  Allocating the amounts received 

for the lease of the restaurant will help to support this initiative.  The golf department 

would also like to establish a portion of membership fees to support the ongoing 

infrastructure needs of the golf course.  All entities authorized to spend from any revolving 



- 

 

52 
 

funds are required to submit a quarterly report of spending to the Town Administrator and 

Board of Selectmen. 

 

According to ATM 2010, Article 51 approved on May 3, 2010 the cemetery revolving fund 

was established to support the maintenance and care of town cemeteries, when the by-law 

was established the use of the fund was reduced to the maintenance only of cemeteries 

thereby limiting the uses of the fund, this amendment strives to revert the use of the funds 

back to the original intention.  The Municipal Modernization Act requires Revolving funds 

to be established by by-law or ordinance, the Middle School Revolving Fund was 

established by vote of ATM 17 Article #46, the Sidewalk Revolving Fund was established 

by vote of ATM 17 Article #47 and the Tax Title Revolving Fund was established by vote of 

ATM 18 Article #65. 

 

RESCIND THE ESTABLISHMENT OF THE CAPITAL INFRASTRUCTURE 
REVITALIZATION FUND AT CRANBERRY VALLEY GOLF COURSE 

 

ARTICLE 63:  To see if the Town will vote to rescind the establishment of a Capital 
Infrastructure Revitalization Fund at Cranberry Valley Golf Course which was established 
pursuant to the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40 5F originally 
established by vote at the Annual Town Meeting 2016 by Article 15; and to act fully 
thereon.  By request of the Finance Director 
 
Explanation:  The Capital Infrastructure Revitalization Fund was subsequently established 

as a revolving fund by vote at the Annual Town Meeting 2017 Article 48 therefore this fund 

is no longer necessary. 

 
RESCIND THE AUTHORIZATION FOR THE GOLF RESTAURANT LEASE 53D 

REVOLVING ACCOUNT AND TRANSFER THE BALANCE INTO THE PRO SHOP 
REVOLVING ACCOUNT 

 
ARTICLE 64:  To see if the Town will vote to rescind Article 49 of the 2010 Annual 
Town Meeting and to transfer the unexpended balance in said account into the Golf Pro 
Shop Lease Revenue Revolving Account; and to act fully thereon.  By request of the 
Finance Director 
 
Explanation:  Article 49 of the 2010 Annual Town Meeting referenced MGL Chapter 44, 

Section 53D and should have referenced MGL Chapter 44, Section 53E ½. This rescission 

corrects the oversight, the additional source of funding for the Golf Pro Shop and 

Restaurant Lease Revenue is authorized through the Revolving By-law.  

 
DEPARTMENTAL REVOLVING FUNDS AUTHORIZATION 

 
ARTICLE 65:  To see if the Town will vote to set spending limits for various revolving 
funds that have been authorized pursuant to Section 8.1 of the Town Code: and to act fully 
thereon.  By request of the Finance Director. 
 



 

53 
 

Revolving Fund FY 20 
Spending Limit 

Disposition of FY19 Fund 
balance 

Golf Pro Shop and Restaurant 
Lease Revenue 

$250,000 Available for expenditure 

Golf Infrastructure fund $140,000 Available for expenditure 

Council on Aging $125,000 Available for expenditure 

Cemetery $100,000 Available for expenditure 

Community Center $100,000 Available for expenditure 

Recreation $175,000 Available for expenditure 

Albro House $10,000 Available for expenditure 

ADA  $2,500 Available for expenditure 

Wetlands $6,000 Available for expenditure 

Middle School 
Cultural Center 

$100,000 Available for expenditure 

Sidewalks $50,000 Available for expenditure 

Tax Title Collection  $36,000 Available for expenditure 

Pet Burial Ground $140,000 Available for expenditure 

 
STABILIZATION FUND 

 
ARTICLE 66: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate or transfer from 
available funds a sufficient sum of money to be added to the Stabilization Fund, and to act 
fully thereon. By the request of the Board of Selectmen. Estimated cost: $400,000. 
 

OPEB TRUST FUND 
 

ARTICLE 67: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate or transfer from 
available funds a sufficient sum of money to be added to the OPEB Trust Fund, and to act 
fully thereon. By the request of the Board of Selectmen.  Estimated cost: $500,000 

 
FUND PRIOR YEAR’S UNPAID BILLS 

 
ARTICLE 68: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate or transfer from 
available funds a sufficient sum of money to pay unpaid bills of prior years as provided for 
in M.G.L. Ch. 44, Section 64, and to act fully thereon.  By request of the Finance Director.  
Estimated cost: $1,000 
 
Explanation:   

Water Department $90.70     

MA Frazier Inc. $128.00 

Duffy Health Center $250.00 



 

54 
 

Monomoy Regional School District $401.65 (to be funded from School Trust Funds) 

 

CUSTOMARY 

 

HERRING FISHERIES 

 

ARTICLE 69: To see what action the Town will take in regard to the Herring Fisheries and 
to act fully thereon.  Customary Article. 
 
 

 

 
 



 

APPENDIX A - BALLOT 
 

SAMPLE 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

TOWN OF HARWICH 

ANNUAL ELECTION BALLOT 

MAY 21, 2019 

 

BARNSTABLE, ss: 

 
To either of the Constables of the Town of Harwich in said County, 
 

Greetings: 

 
In the name of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts you are hereby directed to notify and 
warn the inhabitants of said Town qualified to vote in elections and Town affairs to meet 
in the Community Center Gymnasium, 100 Oak Street, in said Town on Tuesday, May 21, 
2019, then and there to act on the following ballot: 

 
POLLS WILL BE OPEN AT 7:00 A.M. and CLOSE AT 8:00 P.M. 

 
To choose on one (1) ballot the following Town Officers and Committees: two (2) 
Selectmen for three (3) years; one (1) Town Clerk for three (3) years; one (1) Monomoy 
Regional School Committee Member for three (3) years; one (1) Monomoy Regional 

School Committee Member to fill a 1-year unexpired term; two (2) Library Trustees for 
three (3) years; one (1) Water Commissioner for three (3) years; one (1) Housing 

Authority member to fill a 2-year unexpired term  

 

BALLOT QUESTIONS 

 

1. Shall the Town of Harwich be allowed to exempt from the provisions of 
Proposition 2 1/2, so called, the amounts required to pay for the bond issued in order to 
fund the Reconstruction of Lower County Road including all costs incidental and related 
thereto, as requested in the Capital Plan for FY20? 

        YES_____ NO_____ 
 
 
2. Shall the Town of Harwich be allowed to exempt from the provisions of 
Proposition 2 1/2, so called, the amounts required to pay for the bond issued in order to 
fund the Road Maintenance Program, including, but not limited to Lower County Road and 
other roads on the Program, and all costs incidental and related thereto, as requested in the 
Capital Plan for FY20? 

 
        YES_____ NO_____ 
 
 



BUDGET 
FT 2020 REVENUES AA.' 

FY2017 
dal 

FY201.5 
eudgirt 
FY2019 

Town Meeling 
Buclgo 	N 
FV21:120 	C hank 

R631 	& Personal Firtrierly TELTAI. $114,226,256 $46,7741413 $49,305,5511 $53,360,111311 8_2% 

LOCI 
Excise. Tax 2,324,772 2,372.7$7 2,325,000 2,350,000 1_1% 

& Me alb 1,084.891 1,oe9.n22 1,0g0,000 1,437,500 33.1% 
Anibulanoe 1,478,1i99 t A52,144 1,4e0,000 1,450,000 417% 
Waslet Ci*FiEwjl 2,740..481 .111).15-93 2,841.9,000 3,050,000 5.6% 
ice. Rmikalion 	Yckrih 371.252 .413.037 381.000 401.500 5,4% 
Harbors 8 Landings 1 a.540 929.773 861,500 898,500 5-5% 
Golf Operabcrie 1,715.101 '..856.221 1,15g,000 1,775,500 1 
Other LOMERecalpta 3,85r4,9?6 2.j06.3.62 5,352,116 2, f64,260 -59_5% 

Total Local Receipts 14,571,5610 13,53%563 15,097,618 13,518,260 -0_2% 

State All; 
Cherry 8hee1 633,13E14 705,430 670,763 E87,544 2.5% 
5haalBuilillnig Aasiatance 993,1E13 9.0% 

Other 
Pee QSih • 378,030 W.71a $11.1% 
ChernImy $1,irplid$ 125,000 100,000 1CO,00.0 100.000 01% 
PlartiprCapilml Inproviment • Wychrnere 107,1E3 110,930 €12,8013 72,227 15.0% 
Cable Fund (C 	t) 129237 141417 166.450 10.5,59.4 74% 
Septic Loan 17.358 17.358 17,368 13,674 -21_8% 
Water Enterprise InciPrect Costs 587,382 660.178 732,843 726,21g -PIA% 
FEMA 13,736 1a.50e 13,60.8 13,816 1.5% 
Road Betterments 52,750 0,194 54.i,277 56,073 -2_2% 
Allan Hartor Elekerments 151,000 195,5513 182,260 29,325 413.9% 
Golf I iiiplimeill Furcl 75,001:1 139,000 83.9% 
$AQ Mexiing 101,125 1W,E184 321% 
SAQ Wo1or.vms 70,125 101,188 44.-3% 
CPA Funds (Land Bank:. 533.400 608.950 6E.B.750 563,700 4 IA 
Town CIEFP4 &WEB AD:1 jb.FAIF.: C. 0.0% 
Toad RENEWS $62,292,050 $62,698,2116 $613,628336 $70,263,662 11.7E•i3 

 

APPENDIX B – BUDGET 
 

 
 
 
 



TOWN OPERATION BUDGET 2020 Actual 
FY2017 

Actual 
FY2018 

Voted Budget 
FY2019 

Town Meeting 
Budget 
FY2020 

PCT 
CHANGE 

MODERATOR S&W 1,000 1,000 0.0% 

2 SELECTMEN S&W 7,500 7,500 12,000 12,500 4.2% 

3 SELECTMEN - EXP 6,303 7,077 8,575 8,575 0.0% 

4 Sub-Total 13,803 14,577 20,575 21,075 2.4% 

5 FINANCE COMMITTEE S&W 2,239 745 4,000 4,000 0.0% 

6 FINANCE COMMITTEE - EXP 221 809 500 1,000 100.0% 

7 Sub-Total 2,460 1,554 4,500 5,000 11.1% 

8 FINANCE COMMITTEE RESERVE FUND 125,000 125,000 0.0% 

9 TOWN ACCOUNTANT - SAL 216,511 233,658 250,386 254,601 1.7% 

10 TOWN ACCOUNTANT - EXP 2,919 3,626 3,600 10,875 202.1% 
11 AUDIT - EXP 41,000 37,900 44,500 40,000 -10.1% 

12 Sub-Total 260,430 275,183 298,486 305,476 2.3% 

13 ASSESSORS - S&W 172,708 153,113 196,212 215,571 9.9% 

14 ASSESSORS - EXP 71,150 68,266 107,390 107,780 0.4% 

15 Sub-Total 243,856 221,379 303,602 323,351 6.5% 

16 TOWN COLLECTIONS - S&W 12,140 12,476 15,500 16,000 3.2% 

17 TOWN COLLECTIONS - EXP 4,700 3,154 3,760 3,800 1.1% 

18 Sub-Total 16,840 15,631 19,260 19,800 2.8% 

19 POSTAGE 52,104 46,452 55,000 55,000 0.0% 

20 Sub-Total 52,104 46,452 55,000 55,000 0.0% 

21 TREASURER - S&VV 227,049 234,025 256,196 281,585 9.9% 
22 TREASURER - EXP 81,993 102,106 103,250 106,974 3.6% 

23 Sub-Total 309,042 336,131 359,446 388,559 8.1% 

24 VACATION & SICK LEAVE BUY BACK 47,590 70,932 49.1% 

25 MEDICARE 202,561 217,264 217,004 221,042 1.9% 

26 ADMINISTRATION - S&W 409,417 418,242 449,807 454,908 1.1% 
27 ADMINISTRATION - EXP 113,789 75,450 89,312 81,879 -8.3% 

28 ADMINISTRATION - CAP OUTLAY 3,416 4,958 5,500 5,500 0.0% 
29 UNION CONTRACTS 5,000 5,000 - - 

30 Sub-Total 531,623 503,651 544,619 542,287 -0.4% 

31 LEGAL SERVICES - EXP 204,738 159,374 170,000 185,000 8.8% 
32 CLAIMS & SUITS - 500 500 0.0% 

33 Sub-Total 204,738 159,374 170,500 185,500 8.8% 

34 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY - S&W 97,501 99,800 101,790 178,233 75.1% 
35 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY - EXP 176,207 211,708 276,362 274,682 -0.6% 

36 Sub-Total 273,709 311,507 378,152 452,915 19.8% 

38 IT CHANNEL 18 - S&W 98,307 106,300 125,450 137,114 9.3% 
39 IT CHANNEL 18 - EXP 18,673 24,790 31,000 31,480 1.5% 

40 Sub-Total 116,979 131,091 156,450 168,594 7.8% 

41 CONSTABLE S & W 250 356 708 708 0.0% 

 

APPENDIX B - BUDGET 
 

 
 
 
 



TOWN OPERATION BUDGET 2020 Actual 
FY2017 

Actual 
FY2018 

Voted Budget 
FY2019 

Town Meeting 
Budget 
FY2020 

PCT 
CHANGE 

42 TOWN CLERK - S&W 213,478 202,280 230,930 253,418 9.7% 
43 TOWN CLERK - EXP 48,008 30,684 41,322 37,368 -9.6% 

44 Sub-Total 261,486 232,964 272,252 290,786 6.8% 

45 CONSERVATION - S&W 81,732 111,527 136,070 154,865 13.8% 
46 CONSERVATION - EXP 5,957 6,673 9,941 9,185 -7.6% 

47 Sub-Total 87,689 118,200 146,011 164,050 12.4% 

48 TOWN PLANNER - S&W 57,331 69,51587,324 93,443 7.0% 
49 TOWN PLANNER - EXP 2,279 1,928 4,531 4,531 0.0% 

50 Sub-Total 59,610 71,443 91,855 97,974 6.7% 

51 BOARD OF APPEALS - S&W 0.0% 

52 BOARD OF APPEALS - EXP 439 594 735 735 0.0% 

53 Sub-Total 439 594 735 735 0.0% 

54 ALBRO HOUSE - EXP 2,890 3,148 5,835 6,355 8.9% 

55 OLD RECR BUILDING - EXP 4,710 5,321 6,989 7,627 9.1% 

56 W. HARWICH SCHOOL - EXP 577 408 1,425 1,424 -0.1% 

57 Sub-Total 8,177 8,876 14,249 15,405 8.1% 

58 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT - S&W 230,386 218,879 221,032 235,636 6.6% 

59 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT - EXP 10,379 10,834 11,630 14,762 26.9% 

60 Sub-Total 240,765 229,713 232,662 250,398 7.6% 

61 PUBLIC BUILDINGS REPAIRS 1,100 2,133 2,133 0.0% 

62 TOWN/FIN COM REPORTS 7,869 7,658 10,000 10,000 0.0% 

63 ADVERTISING 13,514 21,671 7,500 17,000 126.7% 

64 POLICE - S&W 3,058,309 3,384,205 3,825,308 3,918,557 2.4% 
66 POLICE - EXP 313,061 544,305 570,476 569,514 -0.2% 
66 POLICE - CAP OUTLAY 165,151 121,482 126,000 120,000 -4.8% 

67 Sub-Total 3,536,521 4,049,992 4,521,784 4,608,071 1.9% 

68 FIRE - S&W 3,297,282 3,353,682 3,870,083 4,030,150 4.1% 
69 FIRE - EXP 365,663 394,875 416,211 450,761 8.3% 

71 Sub-Total 3,662,945 3,748,556 4,286,294 4,480,912 4.5% 

72 AMBULANCE - S&W 143,001 112,767 169,389 172,693 2.0% 
73 EMS - EXP 129,183 136,314 119,536 122,495 2.5% 

74 Sub-Total 272,184 249,081 288,925 295,188 2.2% 

75 EMERG. TELECOM - S&W 391,025 - 0.0% 
76 EMERG. TELECOM - EXP 133,120 - 0.0% 

77 Sub-Total 524,146 0.0% 

78 BUILDING - S&W 227,995 246,408 311,233 322,832 3.7% 
79 BUILDING - EXP 14,955 11,349 20,906 20,197 -3.4% 

80 Sub-Total 242,950 257,757 332,139 343,029 3.3% 

81 EMERG. MGMT - S&W 4,458 2,444 5,108 5,315 4.1% 
82 EMERG. MGMT - EXP 3,126 3,317 8,500 8,500 0.0% 

83 Sub-Total 7,584 5,761 13,608 13,815 1.5% 

84 NATURAL RESOURCES - S&W 93,375 96,343 102,233 110,639 8.2% 

 

APPENDIX B - BUDGET 
 

 

 



TOWN OPERATION BUDGET 2020 Actual 
FY2017 

Actual 
FY2018 

Voted Budget 
FY2019 

Town Meeting 
Budget 
FY2020 

PCT 
CHANGE 

85 NATURAL RESOURCES-EXP 26,798 226,998 27,900 28,380 1.7% 

86 Sub-Total 120,173 323,341 130,133 139,019 6.8% 

87 PLEASANT BAY ALLIANCE 16,920 17,343 20,160 23,760 17.9% 

88 TOWN ENGINEER - S&W 170,185 174,256 180,860 182,150 0.7% 
89 TOWN ENGINEER - EXP 17,738 9,831 25,670 45,670 77.9% 

90 Sub-Total 187,923 184,088 206,530 227,820 10.3% 

91 HIGHWAY - S&W 2,402,760 2,495,639 2,589,991 2,724,594 5.2% 
92 HIGHWAY - EXP 2,331,328 2,501,442 2,691,641 2,971,182 10.4% 

93 Sub-Total 4,734,087 4,997,081 5,281,632 5,695,776 7.8% 

94 SNOW/ICE - S&W 108,597 104,576 40,000 40,000 0.0% 
95 SNOW/ICE - EXP 271,908 260,924 95,000 95,000 0.0% 

96 Sub-Total 380,505 365,500 135,000 135,000 0.0% 

97 STREET LIGHTS 38,130 31,372 37,500 40,000 6.7% 

98 INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRANS - WW 70,000 150,000 114.3% 
COUNTY WW SUPPORT FUND 100,000 100.0% 

99 CEMETERY ADMIN - S&W 58,830 63,203 64,847 69,431 7.1% 
100 CEMETERY ADMIN - EXP 4,799 3,164 4,742 5,613 18.4% 

101 Sub-Total 63,629 66,367 69,589 75,044 7.8% 

102 BOARD OF HEALTH - S&W 181,111 139,795 177,593 193,863 9.2% 
103 BOARD OF HEALTH - EXP 12,252 16,209 17,038 16,930 -0.6% 

104 Sub-Total 193,364 156,004 194,632 210,793 8.3% 

105 COMMUNITY CENTER S&W 152,894 165,498 188,468 185,367 -1.6% 
106 COMMUNITY CENTER EXP 109,636 131,306 119,521 142,556 19.3% 

107 Sub-Total 262,529 296,804 307,989 327,923 6.5% 

108 COUNCIL ON AGING - S&W 359,322 370,042 370,480 377,594 1.9% 
109 COUNCIL ON AGING - EXP 68,198 63,690 77,286 77,507 0.3% 

110 Sub-Total 427,521 433,732 447,766 455,101 1.6% 

111 YOUTH COUNSELOR - S&W 75,637 81,511 85,203 93,443 9.7% 
112 YOUTH COUNSELOR - EXP 3,932 4,017 4,310 4,310 0.0% 

113 Sub-Total 79,569 85,528 89,513 97,753 9.2% 

114 VETERANS EXPENSE/BENEFITS 96,671 99,997 134,500 122,400 -9.0% 

115 DISABILTY RIGHT - EXP 300 500 66.7% 

116 HUMAN SERVICES 79,980 72,605 81,580 82,250 0.8% 

117 LIBRARY - S&W 597,668 630,719 676,741 707,968 4.6% 
118 LIBRARY - EXP 252,696 269,410 274,111 282,372 3.0% 
119 Sub-Total 850,363 900,128 950,852 990,340 4.2% 

120 RECREATION - SEASONAL - S&W 175,732 174,725 215,988 228,507 5.8% 
121 RECREATION - S&W 212,853 228,268 250,115 264,615 5.8% 
122 RECREATION - EXP 44,636 41,735 45,575 45,575 0.0% 
123 RECREATION - CAP OUTLAY 7,319 - 12,000 12,000 0.0% 
124 Sub-Total 440,540 444,728 523,678 550,697 5.2% 

 

APPENDIX B - BUDGET 
 

 
 

 



TOWN OPERATION BUDGET 2020 Actual 
FY2017 

Actual 
FY2018 

Voted Budget 
FY2019 

Town Meeting 
Budget 
FY2020 

PCT 
CHANGE 

125 HARBORMASTER -S&W 280,246 289,490 311,576 333,851 7.1% 
126 HARBORMASTER - EXP 108,556 171,596 173,300 253,280 46.2% 

127 Sub-Total 388,803 461,086 484,876 587,131 21.1% 

128 BROOKS ACAD MUSEUM COMMISSION 10,138 10,754 12,694 12,894 0.0% 

129 HISTORICAL COMMISSION 80 540 - - 0.0% 
130 HISTORICAL COMMISSION - 350 350 0.0% 

131 Sub-Total 80 540 350 350 0.0% 

132 CELEBRATIONS 1,299 1,600 1,600 0.0% 

133 GOLF - S&W 762,933 798,628 870,333 917,841 5.5% 
134 GOLF-EXP 578,068 621,381 676,367 676,766 0.1% 
135 GOLF CAP OUTLAY 69,548 66,277 73,000 73,000 0.0% 

136 Sub-Total 1,410,549 1,486,286 1,619,700 1,667,607 3.0% 

137 GOLF IMA MRSD 84,363 82,760 -1.9% 

138 ELECTRICITY - CVEC 64,315 66,254 65,925 69,610 5.6% 

139 Total Departmental Budgets 21,001,165 21,737,254 23,873,100 25,321,862 6.1% 

140 Total Debt Service (Prin & Int) 3,730,596 2,494,459 4,652,464 5,881,626 26.4% 

141 STATE ASSESSMENTS 245,490 261,135 269,897 284,978 5.6% 
142 BARNS CTY RETIREMENT 2,364,925 2,681,194 2,763,836 3,024,763 9.4% 
143 CAPE COD COMMISSION ASSESSMENT 207,455 217,944 229,452 203,498 -11.3% 
144 BARNSTABLE COUNTY ASSESSMENT 193,497 203,280 202,302 213,571 5.6% 
145 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 2,567 5,087 10,000 15,000 50.0% 
146 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE 3,563,522 4,296,270 4,778,977 4,815,339 0.8% 
147 OPEB 100,000 100,000 125,000 150,000 20.0% 
148 GENERAL INSURANCE 450,389 656,366 681,000 790,830 16.1% 
149 GENERAL INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE 8,151 4,603 5,000 10,000 100.0% 

150 TOTAL TOWN 31,867,758 32,657,592 37,591,028 40,711,467 8.3% 
151 OVERLAY (Abatements/Exemptions) 460,000 460,000 

152 C C REGIONAL TECH HIGH 1,437,053 1,437,053 1,581,237 2,332,198 47.5% 
153 MONOMOY REG. SCH. DISTRICT 
154 Operating 21,644,248 21,644,248 23,282,215 24,280,721 4.3% 
155 Capital/ other 224,723 224,723 260,038 260,748 0.3% 
156 Transportation 412,558 412,558 430,896 554,789 28.8% 
157 Debt Service- Middle School 1,776,772 1,776,772 24,328 - -100.0% 
158 Debt Service H.S. 1,611,913 1,658,018 2.9% 

0.0% 
159 TOTAL MRSD ASSESMENT 24,058,301 24,058,301 25,609,390 26,754,276 4.47% 
160 TOTAL 57,363,112 58,152,946 65,241,655 70,257,941 7.7% 

Reconciliation to Article 5: 
Total from line 160 $ 	70,257,941 
Less: 

State & County Assessments 702,047 
Overlay 460,000 
Wastewater/Sewer 250,000 
Cape Cod Technical High School 2,332,198 
Monomoy Regional School District 26,754,276 

Total Reductions 30,498,521 
Article 5 $ 	39,759,420 

 

APPENDIX B - BUDGET 
 

 
 

 
 



Al FIRSIMN C -Mail I COAX! MM.- Feiiirl Aiirtil•194 war A CoOk.ifOrreigol - 1 I  C0114tftw I Crii$ nal V25,Q0 1 r 	2/22.12Dig 
.c nziav CPC aliaies . 

&wpm!! i *ma immti Mk Mid UZI ara FY al Hli Mil 
_ 

Moms IM Nip 
Ms* lilwrhsk ClIpl cr MA 310Prill ihyliN J 2 94 1 suce S 	;gsg, 

11•Iirmirli Lila A Pd f•-k 	PK.. APPdrClisIl 6'•=1 JAI* 4 i Nan,. lime 1 • S 	• 
4Iep1t. repFrr inivi - ; Aso . - 

AitrA• .111-911.9ise 	Fp1%,  } 	• .F • 1 • Aso 
Ms* eler+9149rp.. „ti, 	•••,.,.... •-.--I 7,-1 P. • ily li4 it......1T.Frli I ]2 94 1 KM S 	.91; wc. 
.14144 14bolv•mole, o.:J . - e... % % ; ! . d ' I .. • il.. 	01.1. &.11121e.h...1 pi) fc' 9 • I 	1 moo:. 

- fial'idt lilinho•Itim9rweL . % % ; % . g ' I .. . rig' .I1,1704 014121{41:PKISIN•WIT mil! S 	• I 	• 

AM* liNblingop .lefibtrart%.+ 6... .1  ' l•-•',...11h Ct•I Itc I+Fre it I 	• 1 .99.9.opy 
IA* Icvbict• 109.4. 1.91bRivio,  ::r I I 1.410WIT. k0614446 2.154 kr' I 0,244/11  $ AM X 	ht WC PM • 
41%•• kW &Lip. Appl +1Aaluw. Fs Aro Pm ePPIP MORN iiii FC re Fe i 
Wu* 44t94.41414.4 PPF 1~:i if Gait& JAW- gnarl kler kers P14.11:14V 049. r 	NO 
144.444- lipi:•bm no- clb LIMA:4 [...war .LaiLir pm FM2Irf LLAweapn..1 

.1alui• •Gombrarl Jilleirrl Flaw Rialmsarr•I Xdia:INI EIWALPIPI g - r 	27.110 . 14409 i .r AM -9 	91W1 1 ,aory $ 	ty}lei 
11:1010 AO- ra IA . X . 1 J*Mg I 	a.91',1 AVID 4 	3excip 4 11. EU $ 	%4010 A soma $ 	aim 

Ermi.37  Jr- laid akmmicm•Apum ,Vima• a orml 	&Rx rmi Sclif Jilt EmaPr. I . 7 J-1(.0121 A 	.IIKIA 

151rOm Mirebdri Meet Cmuitcry kiNessi mil SRN RI -  it OilbAliltIlL I S • A W-L30 t 	MLR 4 MAO 

Grolwr 1:611-147C41 F JE1I13 A 	161.111  i •103417 4 	- . • 5 	• 5 • 1 	• 

~WIT al rei 
opp0.4ireQr4re rw0...iiemmtwei-rkesipoophibiespimi 1 	- t - $ 	• 
r.p...Arec. A.A........s..F.E.I. wii...po $ _ ig 	. 1 
ceiwyser fAi ria4 SLIM Pt I - t 	- % • 1 	- - S 	- " • $ 	- 

remonmwor 
1:Terliz. awrichuitgpdmi zwipleitiee grarroi ; 	ZWIAPQ 4 - 
Cmareriar Arms FIctierplme!Mtr Lrhmim rri Arm. err. •Orr A MAI t MAW 0 	J MUM A • 

CEREDIVATICIA 2114G•Glo. 4 mace 4 woo 4 	.11212i$ ; • 4 	IF12407 F • ir 	. 1 
. 	tffi 	

• 

Erri OM 4.m5 

Wart. +1? akrtirlpe S.;Irre .151.9i wile Pi. c411.menhrtamil 4 Otillad. I e de 9 	41109 1 20(4:11 A 	IR EV $ 	3 111.010 
Fr 	c+ End b.Ng uir.ii • dips i b•Arr ilim.5 +117 PrrIN7IIII4 I PNII Z •Et *. I 	UAW 
ereileatiWiliti• rO PI L I itc11442 -4 	1.r..PEI $ bY1,10IS YR ICIP A .140:110 $ 	- F - A 	• 

Trciey 4.43i1.-DrW - 
Fra'rf 11211.-DPW 

Fran ii*.. DF•IS 

.MaIrove Fmallial PPM AAA Corsol‘m Pim Impvemrso .rr . 	- EUIF 1 	'' 
ilairome Fm2liar !NM ADA IEN•pperm IP:r. Impvembroi MINT 

rpriely 112m-CIFW IsprEr Ilm.prarol .Frm icy LIPmp ILIC imix 
roare main- DPW Zvi:mild! Creme - PIA= Ilm...lir Commropra 	4 L Fr 212,1S• 3 	2.1.0o s 	_ 	• 
rrclar lialrL-CIFW .5.10.•Ke Owl LirlY list- imalsilm 	 I .GI Fr .0 	1D1-110 - - 
Darn !iln.-CIFW SP re rzookka •:•••• lowemk Srup iromMySlrap Clrld 

IR 2311 

- I 
Z CAW 

rs;c1rtr fillin.-CIFW SP 2r kr GlmItr Arrrs-21 I 

rpm? ILIm.-EIFW ion Llurrr .11•N+ $ .0:EXEM 

mart. fillin.-CIFW {Awe CDl rr • WIT IligLarwrl A 	lain- - A 	• 
rratr fillin.-CIF9.1r (Amyl Cm! rr • Hi •Eire Nmkomrspl SmIl Pirmires BE Dalin' t 	- A Mae - - 
rucletr fillin.-CIF9c XvII wri rml rr • FR sire 7L.p1m-yrpl •{N•From-M 1714 ekrors• 14419.9rra t 	• 1 • s ; - 
rrwrr  did,-mp •[....rr  [mow Cimmit! lama 

I a lma 

rratr dorm.-Erop .formwer Crier hr.prec cud 1• 13.:%- Ikerrrr Fmrc t

$  

	371121 

2ral r 1111m.-PPW •DprwmbIr OGEE r 3 rmoirrn In w.11•:11.44 Hricied A 2J Le 
hsEltr 11111.-12194 apormrr Colon AmbIgnImr.prr1 4 	714.1 
rrau roomi.-Erw ihei." wk. kelOrtirepr $ Llama r 
mat . pair, 01.9 •64wioln. km*. •kare Wevestai 

i 21•;.ew-  
$ woo t 

marffr mum rawly' 511.109.4 I t 902x4 I 	%99, NI 4 . r 	31:2„2:13 5 4E5,101 I A 	eicpmo $ Nem $ 	J,2111.010 

 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX

 C
 - C

A
P
IT
A
L
 P
L
A
N
 

 

 
 



NorAmnpie cpc Mat 
aid= 	 I Jam iSmsid PI Irs iliii snit . Pal ff_ar &if Rai ELM 

0 II _ 
.03. Alibi. a re......prp re Jassak. NY ars .1:010,101= 5:1basi• 	 .5-1 . FE 5 	DAM $ 	"Kg $ 	• 2 	• 6 	• F 	•i 6 	. 
.ricr  Sri rpm...1* rr 346k.k. NY ars .ImPs Spam 5:lbsall 5 	• 1 	• $ 	WWI $ 	25.11.0110 $ 	M45.10 $ 	:magi.i rk i 	• 
-AT'  dzirrr Ha 	

. 
S 	• .5 	- 5 	skim 

hr Aralielm Prpirm•spl rharsp, 	 I S 	• I 	• t 	ma_v_c $ 	• .$ 	aux $ 	f2;20  
Orr AWN kErr:WIcp ralmrsr4 ; Lmr.1 0.1All Om Ivy A OIC 2 	I.226 I 	!fir t 	• 5 
J h r afro Fkiegfoxa Ifaca ...1  • :60,16rEfgrore Casco F 	Furaoy LI meg I 	60.221  2 	MCI 2 S 	• 
J b., Jar Ile.1..11eplaw WPM MreinvE • fir YEMPe Fotlal . •••  :- 	X 	314111  2 	• 6 	• 
Are Air Pall Arjbled cisi mreiram • 15,1 arokakam .7=4 .romIrs. Lyme 5 	- F, 	- E 	wan j 	- - 	. 
hr .51.sprr sm. I slew ligral cars..3.1 av 5-mirKrisullw mlefilll 5 	- 2 	- y 	kackaa 
.riff 	 :5slarr ?Ira 111.4rrs.1554 ells 11114.50 - 1 	

- -. 
• 

.1151E -q.1.5 HIM I 	wan $ .. Mtn $ .3rd 111.325 1 	MANs .. . AWN% -1. -Mil $ 	415,161 

•11:5 5 - 
Jsmiais Ad.:W.1.751m Dal Allp• 31rs ors 	 21 ..

. 
.34 Imprar ''•Sa.1 5 	3210131$ 3.5.1141 y 	- 

Sr! iala• ilmr1.10. rgalvo Z•malilw. MI ITTESIti 	 % cfoie ifip•x I 	.raa2o t 	7,,:w 
5r4 •uPlrik-re Carl Palk ilk alikk1,9 Mart 61212 s6 0 r .hl MAI it MAI 	A 6:4112•00or 2 	UAW t 	Wig I 	141.44, 
re! 6:1,166o Wm" etiyoitor ler lAme di CA.  "VC J 	87o151  f 	VAP PAO RI' $ 	AIN. 2 	dtalgi 
6 op:1  .1910.1amfei, a:. .0 1 er ad-Ne 12sair Gay Radc i 	11.033 i 1131:413  

"7 Mar Sri Loa Jopre•ramemb rAds• Km Arylserl 	 T  Ode Rads l 	mass 1_ J moo 
I 	•S Pm) •N1 Crays Jnpls. Ltilolt doh' Mri! $ 	• $ 	- l 	- .11,105 I 	iI y 	mr:sao .$ 	73,11131 

Gaic-lila ram y 	2.57.01511 7 	zrztool y 	20.ffla $ 	ngsso .$ 	aci, IA s 	wa y 	mfr $ 	non 

irafpismrw FL 
LINWairlar PlIma Deo Jevials loyowsli LI PE y 	mov, g 	al.ew - 
17•5•5m-rlaz leY• !Yip Ilhglorom-E Orman Meg. N•d Gma IwItql .111•512 $ 	-J 2fr=1  $ 	201, NI 
WNW:m-1 Yr Ain 15:047r AI tr Itapaorwaltp LI lust. a•mlip •ari ,-Erph slIcp.1  It r4 Y 	17..:46, I 	!PAO I 	2.010411, 1 
iftiPERWAT a'03 h:PrOlk DMA I bai sad befall:014159r A .Iv!)61.1404"041p I 	• Y 	imps. 1 	.-_ R6a..a6, 
ioNswprut,  orp9•Frok 0.4fr 141bfloo a.oaglpp _ .  . 	. 6 	• 	2 	• 1 	gillade 
ilefkw•init,• azaad CEO Jo.limal .11ap.:bworml dilialk. arlin eml erman. - • •E_ 	• i 	411-01-.411-01-. AIP Mt 
Paturvialer .lemitma In rral• Plylorrawit 

7 	7177.050 
I 	- • S 	- 2 	- I 	• .g 	44J:ifi 

61.1514351414 RR 11.1•713142 	
_ _ 

. $ 	- j 	wow $ 	zoolopo $ 	.es• 	$ 	.2511,15a $ 	.11.11J3M $ 	034.181. i 	weloaa 

1 tahL5. 

r-- 1 Icearr Llbsre IsalemlickiztImArm ate. - $ 	40310 $ 	.Le4ala 
I May Limb Illwr Pena cal Itpol mil .Wrn ii spc Tvr 0 A-1•5:. OW re jr 	'am, I 	two $ 
1 ISEARVJUP•TaDU _ $ 	woo $ 	azsma $ 	41.coo $ 	• s 	- $ 	.asiaa $ 	• % 	- 

0+111401 111VI6US 
W1.1.011,:a.brei Ireminscall2mmovika par Mares 10 1  -t 	- 
WILEY Irma= rod 1.-331 for Ilslipl Amoco aryl ft MU 
1.1171.5111 51:5E4.15103 .R1IL MU - 1 	- $ 	- $ 	• 5 	- P 	- F 	- 

no %Ire* 
Ali aJap 

 

LYE Iterrilmin Enrols:1w gtIllario• 3tml I $M1m5T 134 CIF-41Nals. 1 .P5lJ= $ 	ICAO $ 	7114M0 3E3 . - PM TM. spa Tsp. 
5L _Anal 11:mp.tiolm Pim almlEs• JP' MUM 

immh. L=1145141pIrsetr1.irt filllIN& e4 6 	112Al2 SIIII - 
. 	. 

•5141.111Aili Sli-3133312 s4 I 5.111•3 ,4 	- 4 	- % 	- t 	- 
. 	. 

1:4:R Eg 
$ .1.s,i7eT !rim Pb 35m• Priplow.irE el ys. rrrm • 24 i Fro 2, rimy J 3 r4 t 	31-1130 1 	mai 4 	sgati $ 	- $ 	sr_pma 

Pplia llipirm:rit RI 005.1 h-Flaari K-A i 1 rerr Ok! Pair ilVieg& MIN t 	WEI 
triirlrin11' gi 6.44 Iits•W•ii Q-A I knime On flair  ?Ile.F lt•AR Jag t 	kW 

IPA% hvon.• s.....d riedazav kale. J I AC i 	____ KW' 
NM itllok No Iv= KAP 
FON cstr,-  F13 n;r•Im Irlstlku ymme Ipploarmll $ 	AA , 
Ilmlo EMI KR* 11...14:•1 l 	3.111‘3 
PauL5 sus ra ros t 	%no $ 	4J. $ 	.114.11IP $ 	Jklia l 	43.010 $ 	u,saa .$ 	.L $ 	2r.E66 

 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX

 C
 - C

A
P
IT
A
L
 P
L
A
N
 

 

 

 



Mil . AMU MS .. 

MU' iiICITS 
Ned I15clz _ .EF J,~11:1  $ 	rfica.ao ; 	eriokii .5 	9..944 gor 4 	.1.4444410 

M F.IPM 
Reg-11th Mai Adyrld. "rad 21' Enslyelagi Pt 20 .I Gro•Ig.skIrr vbr rri1PrAl i• s 	.ray 

rro I WrvekA VI..rr TV kiikliA4:ffilWi nil. MI 051151  S 	3, MEW • 

PEW 144* t'0.4.yr .1104510.1e le 5...mrs Old tannal 71:. Raabe .33. • . 

Rear In la 
1 0,31:41,14 	1 ear Rae 14.050:0 dem 'al 2c. INTL= .1raz • • 
• Or J 3:nra.Kr4 1.00 5.:4m 5.:4•453eve ele 111703d. 

.. 
S $ 	11WIN3 

Reic141343N Ow,  WO tint gwalr5d,  NH tall. A firtireinl 
1:541.5 	141.14. • $ 	AA 9 9F 
Pr* ____ • • t-3103 • 	no.* -AEI IR • . 

IR $ 	41101 AM° 
Rein 1.0::4 10. -r.Ig Rani .br?4 1110 0041:1 t 	JSJWW S 	3sq 
em}ic 114 k• • . 	- Ji-itix• lb* 14 hlrir Mow • "Ado r 9:9G. I t 
Pete lialz 01015104 lidem 1;1'2J La Al ismoy . 	As.cm9 ; 	.11313313 S 	MN 
1:3111C 1.5311:311.1..Tatil 4 	Z•4 #P F 	1.714.4109 J Jrtiglill 5 	1W 
PE{ .S. 1.M.,1,1 
1:1.4 .A rjt- re•do 10.0.55 iii1010201.11:0410 .. . 	P, ]4 MO - 

Rd 1 resk• .53roml• Mee {cam.5001:5; lal .PreaLklmany .1.3 $' 	112,in % 	IMAM . - - 
Rri rue.. SEW Fre Porrorrr 0.0 Puiromml Impraycrwo .R1 • .9 maw 9 	LIVE. 117,101. rE1P 	

- . 

Mr 4 nher midi rf.rms hrb0 }:4 dam t InhirrplailkOir AWN' - .1 	IVO 
Om 41 N4511. .11.11:1m.. 1..40 5 .1.40.105a3 174 _.e.-..__  Ircomlema 
Oleg nrek. £0453:41.4:RM Srst5 Aarbm $ { 	L1S, KO 
MEM noir NIS KW ry 351.7774 1 $ -  4 { - IA in .$ 	- 
IAN el OE' 
1:04.0. CAA Rdolem.• .• • -•- Er Roccre Amide NW Idadis. Lb, M E:MI:M 1= .  
.-Fm. 
RUM al= 111 AIM 

kori ordisr • mpliiEr Ail tordecrirdi 

1 • S sr.= - $ 	- $ 	- 
113137155311M Mg MIMI 
Wye  - OMR fnrIerdr 
WErimatm• bb•Ebti.14R1. ‘041.14rf Pirt eLY 	41 IC 9 	- • 1 1 •92.9.cv9 
51.5.3.1 15514 *Mum F 	- ; 	AA Pei 

FPO blidEblr • alL .$ 	i1001.3 
Menem Atm !Anal 	11PrOrnAre 11:11red7 	dui 1 Cm. $ 	- • $. t • t 	41;14130  t 'Tarr $ 
1.10.147.1a 113.105511445.3 ft1411 14 R45170.1e Pm+ A AeppniA19:• 9 i• 1 	similp 9 

i 	Accosia, r9e±s revomr MIMIC M l=r1=11==ir I:E1 EMI= iir-r=1 - 
Vila" 
Voir Jrnrur elrivri Hiarrr lzr erviErrretor 11.1dti4140. Wiwi' AriIFt1 Tri•th'i• 
!Tree %prow 1 Oa Rdt• Feabroikia.... 

inG... et ilia 31.m:rds REMir 
Ji ki..... 

EFS ...pier 
$ 	Kan !Mgr Salm .1m. 331. .15:rckm $ 	MAW 

'Mr Mr, 1rodrAine 111.1.1•14.0.005 tylwrinu cm.0 .15m-ippird A:LS 41  .1 7_cR ssissi - 
7frld 21:117 1,14 ir Spit,  II.pip r-Fil 119099t• FreFluF ~Fp caw +MI WM 
-rro Pt,  91.• a .1.15.4 5.1010 	. 	• 	is • 	.. 41:=Irmilm 
ON 14.• Gds I Ream. 2 . 111.1 

Mao .0.0000 gari .Pdrrrrl 
4

IYkirr $ 	xr:Jam 
Phi" Plirnsf 1/42 .3  rift Frio tribdihm lid t peslimi 9 
Phitr Mani 1  elm mal..il af Wc.F."1: l'IN3Mr-W-P-1 .1, siCau* 
194wr censheri."~rph:romAsu 300 kid 
PPOr Vein 	• 	• 	4 	.. 	• 94s9.9 • 	• re-rtitmi harm E=2=I 
MUM 1.11-TEgi2 1 	ME3111

7  
. 	a99.42 istim J 31,010 .1,..114251=1  IMIIM.1,3101110 

I 40E441 	5 	Mk 	. • •: 6111.3431& .:1714.19114  t ~99 Ind-14505iPril0,11.0K Atblr 1•451.11 r ... ... = % 7lsrur4 4 &Ross; s 	J 9. 4246:95 
LIA9Irr APIA 9 	JI_Larli, 

4.1rt 7orr515 "dr CPC 3.0611•4.51  
1,444 .5,4*di pKad gsald...10150.non Ircsarram 1 What J El • 

Gam leastrp.5.031.151r 411 .• S 	7.11r .$ 	.t-510 $' 	7,3M 
,0•54 .1•P 1.53.3116 HP& r0 44 0'15•6:it . 	19 UP 

Jimpaa...= Awls Err 1 	.1211.369 t 	•S S 	 • 

 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX

 C
 - C

A
P
IT
A
L
 P
L
A
N
 

 

 
 



. 5r5a5. I 

M- I .1: 	 fill fril 171a ME' ESL tri! 	WI 
:121kamer_ .1144p4sa Amoral RI 10 re H .re .e; 'KIP 	Re IP A' 41 RP jig 

rc-. in% 1 	• 	6 	ARAM° 5' 	41:4,4111 S 	Am r 	Rom . 	aim ; 	.!91%;- 
1.2em-ripp 11V4r r•ep t arl 5 	• 	6 	Awe. 1 	"mem S 	• 6 	 - $ - • - 
M ••.K.e IAA $ 	IA 4.1119 4 	UMW 5 	MAW t 	mul..M X 	eatinr 	9 	• 1 	• S 	- 
w kops.1.4perrphs 	•y 	• • _wim i 	2.11.494 0' 	95M 1 5 4 	INIM .5 	434 goo 5 	MAI 9 	L.1.0‘000 

-_ Eamerir Inn prpolla Fan ; 	GA tit IPIMI, $ 	41;61.ras 0' 	sgs.2.1‘ s 	IN liv 4 	MAI§ 0 	NA 11.90 i 	.1911.•%9 
Limy tEnEEI.InsinuffirnEs rm.' ...I Pit esImIREI t 	2111, EH. I S 	111:9;150 5 	.emeese t 	=Asa s 	2112.1:FP 2' 	J4AW $ 	es, ox .; 	7s..ema 
PEI4 Gin In 5 	9.24 En I 	=OKI 5 	241111.21141 5' 	35.41541 S 	20t IA -I 	swami $ 	SHAM 6 	.1.5:44010 
04E11 i 	K41:11ThF Me i 	W. J 	.. X 	• 6 	36spec $ 	• 6 
*cm.* opw.......:••ogrdmiarg j__ i.p", gni - - X 	• . 5 	• 6 

----Eme 24 $' 	xem, IA NOW - - € 	• • • .1 	• 
145:4r Erwin • illialml II•nho $' 	AP5.5:1; 6 	44..teo $ HAS { 111.101 .11,1110 4 	.i.poe .s 	"pap 
Mal cr I nerips Akrr.E1 • elrpwrn t 	• 6 	4•413.3.2 9 	2_416..ar $' 	c. IT' S 	ers.rkeem 6 	4.0zr,EN. .$ 	., 6 	3,76u.s. 
Op sMAO F 	91bk 9.5C. 5 0 	tn." X 	E.13.1151P 6 	2.-J. ref _4 	- 6 
ark.{ eftanibp Appip44 Pmealweri • i 	W sdo F 	• $ 	- ; 	0. Fr& 014 .F 	rompond o 1 	. I 	4.11pike 

ess 6 	mewl 1 	...Z1.010 { 	J521.01111 { 	2.E15.101 .E 	MANE . 	urs,si ,s 	9,rAtass. 
Yadko 'X • A 	.11.-Mmr $ 	?-110 F0; $ 	alarahl ; 	12.20.1;;G F 	I lk GA GIG 4 	40444 4 	.1.0.44111FP 

,SAM 	AyslElls 11Pro eon F AJET.0:1•1 Cow ra !h.. Prdinenza CeplIP11.11-01.1f5 I HP MO RINI E h T Fo2 D RI FY 2E. 

•..9pliblE•edeti Men; 	51 F 	L.J17_01.: 0.4.01101Ne p.i.k..19 9 	i I m.0.010 
1.44REvit OAP AP:Wil ;71A1119 PIN 9;010 G 1 TrIral IN'.4 71e 	E F 	411%74-1 UR %MA. ; 	Mt 54', 

• 5rna an for 	14 k 	.-..,. •:. 	sp. $ 	wig ' 
Mink $ 	.11=3N 	1):'.)"6 

C14.4111 OMNI 0144111:1515S41;4•10r_ 1 1 S 	U .., S 	...q...4-; 

Sashi rhum 'i ! 	leer ---. 9 	ZP.IPATI 5 PL.551= 
Elwin; 41;:rwm EE 41 F 	30v P5ICILI31 ?mu 	! 

Limns. 	...1 5 	our IRI Dills $ 	1.11~3 I 
p11.1141{ KEPI 	El 5 	'..• Z1 Gyp. 5 	I s K 

- 
Ops6pdi.5reed r.491R.1199.04 F-4,14 s.04. laroebeur IN. re 14.0.01 '.01w F9 9 F 	I 71 	I. Irk 5 rAlleNIA 

• 0...1•00. - F :-..e_ $ 	aux.! 	11.):01* . • 
TE:P.L Pliar-.1.111{ . : rail 11PC lenel 	i 

111144 S 	MiLkfell ' 

1 

cipm AFL PI JI 	 .. 	r; 1 I F 	AIM 1 	 h :1 	I r 7 	 ir11 	Fr 1 p 	Fl Al 
Hine $_ 	IIAMEI : 

44141.14 	4. h....11.4 4'r 4 15p-1.1 4nE. .4rs 	n•pll 	n n. 	E 1.bn 	 • 
30,41:a . 

• 
4.1pL PsEnn41111En 	Min 	II Fit &via Ells L re 	• ..: .• WM 

I 	 I 	 I _1 	 C.P.P :1 00_ r1.114 D NG Err ONCE Mk wrk:i 
-1 de P.4 rd la r. Re sl 	We I Teo !di ;ism • ; MAIM 

, 	 IDPIIIIIre..P.A'4.11R:1A41551.1td & Propos ed De Ix 	

1- 	 
	  ;La.= 

5101.- 5•104 	 5IH 

. 	5 km 	 -. -.-'-'-'..'-.- 	 11.144ini 

WEE.= NM 

' 	i 1 AN 

P 1 m 	- - 

1.I.=.= 
.  

I 5•5511 
 i 	III 	5 I 211  1 	 

El 	_ 
-- 	- 	P . 	- 	g 	La 	 • 51.M iE 

1151E e 

I 

M / 

_ _ 	 4: 

I/ 	/ 61* 	

x. 

'KM 50"lhandr: 

 g 

I 
•

" e  	 I- 
- 	

1 	eel 	
Ira& remra 1....m. nibs. 1.1.1.... VI il.FI 1 r .E ri rm..% ii nu F. ppm in En 

• - • 4 	.... r-4.• 

I 	 I 	I 	I 	 1 	 I 	 . 	 . 	 I 

 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX

 C
 - C

A
P
IT
A
L
 P
L
A
N
 

 

 
 



FY 20 Selectmen's Proposed Budget Adjustments (Revised for No Increase on Rooms Fees) 

Revenue Changes 

 

 

011414/469901 	Hotel Tax (BOS Budget Shortfall) 

Free Cash Funding (Sick & Vacation Buyback) 

337,500 

(50,000) 

 

Total Revenue Changes 287,500 

Budget Reductions/Adjustments 

 

ORG/OBJ  

014212/554000 

012201/513000 

012311/513000 

011452/573500 

011551/516000 

014111/511900 

015411/516000 

019142/575000 

01/596000 

TBD 

Description  

DPW Road Supplies 

Fire OT 

Ambulance OT 

Treas - Citizen Self Serve 

IT Administrator 

Surveyor 

COA - 8 additional hours 

Group Health 

Transfer to Sewer Ent 

Police - TBD 

Legal Budget 

Town Report and Fin Com 

Streetlights 

Unemployment 

 

Amount  

(25,000) 

(46,211) 

(3,943) 

(5,924) 

(69,840) 

(69,840) 

(9,391) 

(50,544) 

(25,000) 

(50,000) 

(5,000) 

(2,000) 

(2,000) 

(5,000) 

 

Total Reductions 
	

(369,693) 

Budget Increases 

ORG/OBJ  

011501/511900 

011482/515000 

011482/515005 

015432/530900 

Description  

Non Union Salary Adjustments 

Vacation Leave Retirement 

Sick Leave Retirement 

Veteran Assessment 

IT Support Contracts 

Surveying Support Contract 

 

Amount 

15,000 

13,675 

12,622 

2,863 

20,000 

20,000 

 

Total Increases 
	

84,159 

All Adjustments 	Revenue + Reductions + Increases 	 1,966 



Category FY 19 Budget FY 20 Budget $$ Increase % Increase 

Salaries & Wages 16,914,202 17,556,858 642,656 3.8% 

Utilities 591,912 630,641 38,729 6.5% 

Maintenance & Repair 751,231 755,885 4,654 0.6% 

Professional/Technical Services 937,962 990,093 52,131 5.6% 

Education 27,190,627 29,086,474 1,895,847 7.0% 

Communication/Purchases Services 2,084,752 2,351,980 267,229 12.8% 

Office Supplies 194,315 228,615 34,300 17.7% 

Departmental Supplies 1,639,994 1,660,836 20,842 1.3% 

State & County Assessments 3,465,487 3,726,810 261,323 7.5% 

Dues & Travel 80,657 86,444 5,787 7.2% 

insurance 5,623,885 5,718,325 94,440 1.7% 

Other Expenses 277,412 301,320 23,908 8.6% 

Capital Outlay 306,600 370,500 63,900 20.8% 

Debt Service 4,652,464 5,881,626 1,229,161 26.4% 

Transfer to Other Funds 73,600 225,000 151,400 205.7% 

64,785,101 69,571,407 4,786,306 7.4% 

Departmental Budget 

Category FY 19 Budget FY 20 Budget $$ Increase % Increase 

Salaries & Wages 16,914,202 17,556,858 642,656 3.8% 

Utilities 591,912 630,641 38,729 6.5% 

Maintenance & Repair 751,231 755,885 4,654 0.6% 

Professional/Technical Services 937,962 990,093 52,131 5.6% 

Communication/Purchases Services 2,084,752 2,351,980 267,229 12.8% 

Office Supplies 194,315 228,615 34,300 17.7% 

Departmental Supplies 1,639,994 1,660,836 20,842 1.3% 

Dues & Travel 80,657 86,444 5,787 7.2% 

Insurance 5,623,885 5,718,325 94,440 1.7% 

Other Expenses 277,412 301,320 23,908 8.6% 

Capital Outlay 306,600 370,500 63,900 20.8% 

29,402,923 30,651,498 1,248,575 4.2% 



Health Director Monthly Report 
February 2017 

o Departmental news- 

1 was asked to attend a "Girl Power" session at the Community Center. This program matches a 3rd  
grade girl to a mentor-an adult woman who volunteers her time to provide leadership and guidance 
to the young lady. Each week the group gets together and learns something new. I presented the 
group with a healthy hand washing program. I brought the County's "glo germ" system over and 
explained proper and washing techniques in a fun session. We worked on a word cross and 
definition quiz. It was a lot of fun to see the enthusiasm in these kids. 

I chaired the Cape and Island Health Agent Coalition Meeting. We discussed the new Food Code 
and conferenced called the State Department of Public Health to get a better handle on the changes. 

We also had a presentation from Cape Cod Healthcare regarding Quality of Life Planning/health care 
proxies. CCHC has a program that has been well received but requires more outreach on the 
importance of having end of life discussions with loved ones. The Health Care Proxy documentation 
is important to be on file with the healthcare system in order for it to be effective. The organization 
is looking for avenues to pursue education opportunities-presenting this information to large 
numbers of people. 

o Wastewater- 

Attended the Wastewater Support Committee meeting, updated them on the 130H decisions over the 
last few months. They have developed a "contact card" that was mailed out to all residents in Phase 
2. This card requests an email and cell phone number so future information can be sent out 
electronically. 

Attended the Harwich/Chatham sewer coordination meeting. Things are on track for the design and 
installation of the sewer connector between Harwich and Chatham. Chatham has received comments 
back on their application for funding through the State. We are on track for putting the Phase 2 
construction out to bid at the end of March, early April. 

o Food Service Prozrant- 

Mark and I attended a seminar presented by the Massachusetts Environmental Health Association on 
the new Food Code. This day-long seminar reviewed the majority of the changes chapter by chapter. 
The inspection form and code references are different, many definitions and requirements have 
changed as well. I am still planning on doing an informational seminar for food establishments in 
the next few months. 

o Wellness Committee- 

February wellness challenge was successful-yoga challenge. I attended the wellness committee 
budget meeting. We are presenting a balanced budget for FY 20 with new monthly challenges. 

Meggan Eldredge 3.4.19 

1 



February Disbursements 
FY 2019 

Accounts Payable 	 $6,643,061.66 

Payroll 	 $1,289,091.59 

Total: 
	

$7,932,153.25 

Respectfully submitted, 
Amy Bullock, Treasurer/Collector 

FY 2018 
$2,723,540.60 

$1,226,418.64 

$3,949,959.24 

TOWN OF HARWICH 

OFFICE OF THE TREASURER/COLLECTOR 
732 MAIN STREET, HARWICH, MA 02645 

TEL 508-430-7501 FAX: 508-430-7504 

Amy Bullock 
	

Nancy Knepper 

Treasurer / Collector 
	 Assistant Treasurer/Collector 

Monthly Report to the Board of Selectmen 

February 2019 

Along with our regular weekly duties and responsibilities, which include but are not 
limited to processing payroll, receiving, reporting and depositing tax/water payments and 
departmental receipts, processing accounts payable checks, assisting Taxpayers and 
Employees with any requests and other various customer service, the following took 
place: 

February Collections 
FY 2019 FY 2018 

Tax/Water Collections: $4,055,656.93 $2,802,748.72 

Departmental turnovers: $2,021,251.18 $1,183,131.42 

Total: $6,076,908.11 $3,985,880.14 



Cape & 
Vineyard 
Electric 

Cooperative 
Inc. , 

$39K 

$34K 

$31K $31K 

$21K 
$23K 

$16K 
$18K 

$13K 

CVEC Net Metering: FY 2018 Participant Report 

Participant 

Harwich 

Benefits and Costs by Year 

kWh Share NMC Share 
Developer Cost 

Share 
CVEC Admin 

Cost Share 
Revenue 

Sharing Share 
Net Benefit 

FY 2015 2,555,095 $438,583 ($181,413) $0 $71,191 $328,362 

FY 2016 3,465,668 $560,843 ($246,062) $0 $97,410 $412,191 

FY 2017 3,592,642 $533,759 ($255,078) $0 $86,239 $364,921 

FY 2018 3,252,635 $529,625 ($230,937) ($14,658) $87,894 $371,925 

Total 12,866,040 $2,062,810 ($913,490) ($14,658) $342,735 $1,477,398 

FY 2018 Benefits and Costs by Project 

	

Developer 	CVEC Admin 	Revenue 

kWh Share 	NMC Share 	Cost Share 	Cost Share 	Sharing Share 	Net Benefit 

3,252,635 	$529,625 	($230,937) 	($14,658) 	$87,894 	$371,925 

Participant 

Type 	System Name 

Host 	Harwich Landfill 

FY 2018 Benefits and Costs by Month 

50K  $47K 
	

$50K $48K 

40K 

tr-
at 301( 
a) 
co 
a) 

20K 

10K 

OK 

Jul 2017 Aug 2017 Sep 2017 Oct 2017 Nov 2017 Dec 2017 Jan 2018 Feb 2018 Mar 2018 Apr 2018 May 2018 Jun 2018 

www.cyecinc.org 	 largo@cyecinc.org  774-722-1812 



eill.1111.1Cape 
Vineyard 
Electric 

Cooperative 
Inc. , 

CVEC Net Metering: Commercial Year-End Report 

Round 

System 
Name 

1 Systems: Years 1 - 4 

System 	 Est. Ann. 
Start Date 	End Date 

Year 	 Output (kwh) 	Output 
Guar. Ann. 	Actual 

(kWh) 
Output 

(kWh) 
Actual vs Est. 

(%) 

Actual vs 
Guar. (%) 

Eastham 1 4/14/2014 5/4/2015 498,600 398,400 785,460 158% 197% 
Landfill 

2 5/4/2015 5/3/2016 496,107 396,408 755,280 152% 191% 

3 5/3/2016 5/3/2017 493,626 394,426 689,040 140% 175% 

4 5/3/2017 5/3/2018 491,158 392,454 556,860 113% 142% 

Harwich 1 7/10/2014 8/9/2015 4,888,500 3,910,000 5,388,120 110% 138% 
Landfill 

2 8/9/2015 8/8/2016 4,864,058 3,890,450 5,642,640 116% 145% 

3 8/8/2016 8/8/2017 4,839,737 3,870,998 5,770,980 119% 149% 

4 8/8/2017 8/8/2018 4,815,539 3,851,643 5,335,740 111% 139% 

Katama 1 6/9/2014 5/31/2015 1,239,622 991,697 1,373,740 111% 139% 
Farm 

2 5/31/2015 5/30/2016 1,233,424 986,739 1,555,560 126% 158% 

3 5/30/2016 5/30/2017 1,227,257 981,805 1,415,580 115% 144% 

4 5/30/2017 5/30/2018 1,221,120 976,896 915,900 75% 94% 

Nunnepog 1 6/9/2014 5/21/2015 1,686,186 1,348,949 1,186,380 70% 88% 
Well 

2 5/21/2015 5/22/2016 1,677,755 1,342,204 1,817,340 108% 135% 

3 5/22/2016 5/22/2017 1,669,366 1,335,493 1,500,000 90% 112% 

4 5/22/2017 5/22/2018 1,661,019 1,328,816 1,447,140 87% 109% 

Tisbury 1 7/25/2014 8/6/2015 1,244,077 995,231 1,406,160 113% 141% 
Landfill 

2 8/6/2015 8/5/2016 1,237,857 990,255 1,598,400 129% 161% 

3 8/5/2016 8/7/2017 1,231,667 985,304 1,475,760 120% 150% 

4 8/7/2017 8/7/2018 1,225,509 980,377 1,226,640 100% 125% 

774-7224812 
	

www.cvecinc.org 	 largo@cvecinc.org  



Cape & 
Vineyard 
Electric 

Cooperative 
Inc. 

System 	System 
Name 	Year 

Start Date End Date 

2,131,016 3,039,360 114% 143% 

2,120,361 3,077,160 116% 145% 

2,109,759 2,948,760 112% 140% 

1,962,984 2,393,040 98% 122% 

1,953,169 2,004,960 82% 103% 

1,943,403 2,064,480 85% 106% 

1,197,110 1,439,640 96% 120% 

1,191,124 1,567,980 105% 132% 

1,185,169 1,511,100 102% 

1,743,700 2,438,880 112% 

1,734,982 2,383,200 110% 

1,726,307 2,308,680 107% 

Chatham 

Landfill 

Barnstable 

Landfill 2 

Brewster 

Landfill 

1 9/15/2014 9/20/2015 2,663,718 

2 

3 

9/20/2015 9/20/2016 

9/20/2017 

2,650,399 

2,637,147 9/20/2016 

1 9/2/2014 9/20/2015 

9/20/2016 

2,453,682 

2 9/20/2015 2,441,414 

3 9/20/2016 9/20/2017 2,429,207 

1 

2 

9/11/2014 

9/4/2015 

9/4/2015 

9/7/2016 

1,496,387 

1,488,905 

3 9/7/2016 9/7/2017 1,481,461 

1 9/29/2014 10/5/2015 2,179,700 

2 10/5/2015 10/5/2016 2,168,802 

3 10/5/2016 10/5/2017 2,157,957 

Est. Ann. 	Guar. Ann. Actual Output Actual vs Est, 	Actual vs 
Output (kWh) Output (kWh) 	(kWh) 	(%) 	Guar. (%) 

Barnstable 

Landfill 1 

128% 

140% 

137% 

134% 

CVEC Net Metering: Commercial Year-End Report 

Round 1 Systems: Years 1- 3 

774-722-1812 
	

www cveci nc.org 	 largo@cvecinc.org  



Cape Fy. 
Vineyard 
Electric 

Cooperative 
Inc. 

CVEC Net Metering: Commercial Operation Report 

Round 2 Systems: Years 1- 3 

System 
Name 

System 
Year 

Start Date End Date 
Est. Est. Ann. 

Output (kWh) 
Guar. Ann. 	Actual Output 

Output (kWh) 	(kWh) 
Actual vs Est. 

(%) 
Actual vs 
Guar. (%) 

Airport- 1 4/15/2015 3/17/2016 6,748,131 5,398,504 6,788,640 101% 126% 
Section 2 

2 3/17/2016 3/17/2017 6,714,390 5,371,511 7,181,760 107% 134% 

3 3/17/2017 3/19/2018 6,680,818 5,344,654 6,885,840 103% 129% 

Barnstable 1 4/21/2015 4/18/2016 997,164 797,731 1,179,000 118% 148% 
Fire District 

2 4/18/2016 4/18/2017 992,178 793,742 1,147,800 116% 145% 

3 4/18/2017 4/18/2018 987,217 789,774 1,068,600 108% 135% 

DYHS 1 4/14/2015 4/12/2016 817,392 653,914 871,440 107% 133% 
Ground 
Mount 2 4/12/2016 4/12/2017 813,305 650,644 851,360 105% 131% 

3 4/12/2017 4/12/2018 809,239 647,391 807,224 100% 125% 

Marguerite 1 2/27/2015 3/15/2016 997,196 797,757 1,074,060 108% 135% 
Small 

School 2 3/15/2016 3/15/2017 992,210 793,768 1,108,860 112% 140% 

3 3/15/2017 3/13/2018 987,249 789,799 984,240 100% 125% 

Orleans 1 5/5/2015 5/4/2016 678,876 543,101 667,272 98% 123% 
Landfill 

2 5/4/2016 5/4/2017 675,482 540,385 743,784 110% 138% 

3 5/4/2017 5/4/2018 672,104 537,684 692,640 103% 129% 

West 1 1/5/2015 1/11/2016 801,442 641,154 869,760 109% 136% 

Tisbury 
Landfill 2 1/11/2016 1/10/2017 797,435 637,948 915,540 115% 144% 

3 1/10/2017 1/10/2018 793,448 634,758 857,100 108% 135% 

774-722-1812 
	

www.cvecinc.org 	 largo@cvecinc.org  


	01 Agenda.pdf
	02 Class IV Auto License Renewal.pdf
	03 Public Hearing - Capeside Kitchen.pdf
	04 Hawksnest Road - R Fratus.pdf
	05 Round Cove Road - R Fratus.pdf
	06 Raptor Road - R Fratus.pdf
	07 Golf Cart Lease.pdf
	08 Golf Cart Agreement.pdf
	09 2019 Draft Warrant.pdf
	10 TA Rpt - Budget Adjustments.pdf
	11 TA Rpt - Department Reports.pdf
	12 Status of Landfill Solar Panel Operation.pdf

